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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
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Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019
Tel: +97 11 41732000, Fax: +91 11 26487059
Website: www.iidlindia,com
Emailid: cs@ijidlindia.com

NOYICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventeenth (17™) Annual General Meeting of the Members
of “IFCl INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED” (DL} will be held on Thursday, the
19" Pay of September, 2024 at 11:30 A, M. at the Registered Office of the Company at {FCH
Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 to transact the following business:

QBRDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements and Consolidated
Financial Statemenis of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, along with
Board’s Report, Independent Auditors’ Report and cemments of the Comptroller &
Auditor Generat of India thereon.

2. Yo appoint a director in place of Shri Venugopat K Nair (DIN: 08783512} who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being etigible, offers himselt for re-
appointment.

3. Tofix remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of
Section 138(6) and Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to pass the following
resolution with or without moedification(s) as an QOrdinary Resclution:

TRESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5) and
Section 142 and all other applicable provisions, it any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s} or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) the Audit Committee/Board of Directors of
the Company, be and is hereby, authorized to decide and fix the
remuneration of the Statutory Auditor{s) of the Company appainted
by Comptroller and Auditor General of India {C&AG) for the Financial
Year 2024-25, as may be deamed fit.”



SPECIAL BUSINESS;

4. Yo consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without medification(s), the following
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other
appticable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory
meodification{s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
M/s Sunny Chhabra & Co., Cost Accountants, appointed by the Board
of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the costrecerds of
the Company for the financial year 2024-25, be paid the remuneration
of Rs. 25000/ inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, plus applicable
taxes.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
be and is hereby, authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and
take alt such steps as may be necessary or expedient to give efifect to
this resotution.”

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification{s), the following
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 1562, 160 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder {including any statutory modification{s} or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Shri Rajeev Kumar (DIN:
018798049}, who was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from
August 14, 2024 interms of Section 161{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
whose term of office expires at the Annuat General Meeting and in respect
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby, appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company whose office will be liable to retire by

rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director and/or Company Secretary
and/or Chief Financial Officer of the Company be and is hereby, severally
authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and take ali such steps as
may be necessary oF expedient to give effect to this resotution.”

Registered Office: By order of the Board of Directors
IFC| Tower, 61 Nehru Place,

New Dethi-110019 For IFCI Infrastructure
CIN: U45400DL2007G01169232 Development Limited

Tel: +81-11-41732000
Fax: +81-11-26487059

Website: www.iidlindia.com Sd/-
Pooja Vanjani

Company Secretary

Place: New Dethi
Dated : September 05, 2024



NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING, IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BEA
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM, IN ORDER TO BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE,
MUST BE DEPOSITED TO THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN
FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING, DULY
COMPLETED AND SIGNED.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50)
AND HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE.
THAN 10 PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY, SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR
ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER,

. Proxy holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting. A Proxy Form which
does not state the name of the Proxy shall be considered invalid,

. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution
autharising their representatives to sttend and vote on their behalf at the Annuatl General
Meeting,

. The Statement pursuant to Section 102{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the
special business set outin the Notice is annexed hereto,

. The Register of Contracts or Arrangement in which Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the

members at the meeting.

. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement as
well as the other documents as required under the provisions of the Cempanies Act, 2013
are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except
Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays during normal business hours up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting. The Registers required to be maintained u/s 170 of the Companies Act,
2013, witl be availabte for Inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of
the company are requested (o address their queries in writing 1o the company before the
meeting, preferably at least seven days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting, so as to
enable the management to keep the information ready.

. Members are requested to bring thelr copies of the Annual Report, Notice and Attendance
Slip/proxy form duly completed and signed at the meeting.



Details of the Director seeking_re-appeintment at the fortheoming Annual General
Meeting in pursuance of Secretarial Standard - 2 en General Meetings

Shri Venugopal K Nair

Shri Venugopal K Nair (DIN: 06783512) aged 72 Years is Director General of Police - Retired
with vast experience in the field of Policing and Administration that included Law & order,
Security, Vigilance. He also has exposure to Industry having worked as Managing Director of
the Kerata State Civil Supplies Corporation and the State Shipping and Inland Navigation
Corporation. His stint in Delhi as Director Vigilance in Steet Authority provided him with deep
ingight into Corporate Governance and Corporate Compliances with a better understanding of
corporate malfeasance. Atpresent, he is serving as an Independent External Monitor {IEM}) with
National Aluminium Company Limited (NALCO), Bhubaneswar, NTPC Limited and ITi
Bangalore {GOI). He was earlier IEM with Rashtriya lspat Nigam Ltd (RINL), Vizag and also
Director of Malabar Cements & Kerala Minerals & Metals Ltd. (Govt. of Kerala), Prior to this, he
served Reliance Industries Limited as Advisor Corporate Affairs and Advisor and Consultant to
L&T on Kochi Metro Project {(KMRL). He had served Kerala Police Administration at various
tevels from 1980 to 2012. He is MSc. (Fibre Sclence & Technology) and has a Post Graduate
Diploma {Textile Technology} Trom the University of Leeds, UK.

Shri Venugopat K Nair was appointed on the Board of {IDL on August 25, 2018, as Non-
Executive Director. He has attended all 4 {Four) meetings of the Board of Directors held
during the FY 2023-24. Further, he Is chairman/ membar on the following Committees of

HDL:

¢ Audit Committee {Chairman}
» Asset Sale Committee {Member)
+ Risk Management Committee (Member)

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their retatives
are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the re-appointment of Shri Venugopal
K Nair on the Board of the Company.

He does not hold any share in FCI Infrastructure Development Limited.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013

JTEMNO. 4

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, the Company is required to appoint & Cost
Auditor to audit the cost records of the Company. Further, in accordance with Rule 14 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of the Cost Auditors is
required to be ratified by shargholders of the Company.

Further for tha Financial year 2024-25, M/s Sunny Chhabra & Co., Cost Accountants has
been re-appointed by the Board in its Meeting held on july 31,2024 on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee as the cost auditor of the company on the same
remuneration i.e., Rs. 25,000/~ inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses plus applicable taxes
and the proposal for ratification of the remuneration for FY 2024-25 is placed at ltem No.
04 of the Notice,

The resolution as set outin item No. 4 of this Notice is accordingly recommended for the
sharehotders' approval by way of Crdinary Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or
interested in this Item/ Resolution.

HEMNO. 5

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee, the Board
has approved appointment of Shri Rajeev Kumar as an Additional Director on the Board

of iDL w.e.f, August 14, 2024, for holding an office of Director up to the date of ensuing

Annual General Meeting.

Brief Profite of Shri Rajeev Kumar is stated below:

Name Shri Rajeev Kumar

DIN 01879049

Date of Birth 08/12/1862

Qualification B. Tech and MBA Finance N
Expertise He is an experienced banker, with 30

plus years of experience in Banking,
Corporate Finance and Investmant
Banking. He retired as Executive
Director of IDBI Bank and during his
tenure has held multiple Board
positions and Senior Management
Committee positions. Inaddition, he
has served as an independent
Director on the Board of various




! companies and advised on strategic
and fundraising  to  muliple
) corporations.

Date of appointment August 14,2024

Relationship with other directors | None

and Key Managerial Personnel of
the company

Shareholding in the Company Not Applicable

Directorships in other Companies 1. Satia Industries Limited
Chairmanship/ Membership of the | Nil

Committees of the other Boards

Number of Board Meetings (from | None
the date of appointment)

The Company has received a notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013
proposing his candidature for the office Director of the Company and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has recommended his appointment as Non-Executive Director
whose office will be Uable to retire by rotation on the Board of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommended the resolution for appeintment of Shyi
Rajeev Kumar as Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation to the sharehotders for their
approval by way of Ordinary Resolution

Documents related to the appointmeant of Shii Rajeev Kumar shall be made avaitable for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours up to the

date of AGM.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, except
Shri Rajeev Kuar being appointee, is concerned or interested, financiatly or otherwise, in this

resolution.
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IFC] INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2007G01169232
Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019
Tel: #9171 1141732000, Fax: +91 11 26487059
Website: www.iidlindia.com
Email id: cs@iidlindia.com

ATIENDANCE SLIP
Please complete the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting
venue
DP.id. ¥ Folic No. *
Client 1d.

I hereby record my presence at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on Thursday, 19" September 2024 at 11:30 AM. at IFCI Tower, 61 Nehtu Place, New
Delhi-110019.

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER ..ot s nsssss rosssssansnnssnssssn s

NAME OF PROXY#

*To be filled in case proxy attends instead of shareholder
SIGNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER/PROXY*

*Strike out whichever is not applicable
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{FCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2007G 01169232
Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019
Tel: +91 11 41732000 Fax: +91 11 26487059
Website: www.iidlindia.com
Emailid: cs@iidlindia.com

Form No, MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to section 105{6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}

CIN: 45400D1.2007G01169232
Name of the Company; IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited
Registered Office: IFC] Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019.

Name of Member (3]
Registerad Address
E-mail 1D;
Folio No./Client Id:
DPID.

WWe, being the member (s) of shares of the above-named Company, hereby

appoint:

1. Name:
Address:
E-mailid:
Signature: , or failing him/her

2. Name:
Address:

E-mail id:
Signature: . or failing him/her

as myfour Proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalt at the 17th Annuat
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 19" September 2024 at 11 :30
A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company, at IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
110018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:



Resolution | Resolution Matter Type of For Against
No. Resolution

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited | Ordinary
Financial Statements and Consotidated
Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2024, along with
Board’s Report, Independent Auditors’
Report, and comments of the Comptroiler
& Auditor General of India thereon.

2. Te appoint adirectorin place of Shri VK Nair | Ordinary
(DIN: 06782512) who retires by rotation at
this Annuat General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment,

3. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors Ordinary
of the company.

Special Businesses

4, To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditer | Qrdinary
forthe FY 2024-25

5. Regularization of appointment of Shri | Ordinary
Rajeev Kumar as Director (Non- Executive)
liable to retire by rotation.

Signedthis __ dayof__ 2024

Signature of Shareholder(s) Affix
Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s) Stamp

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

meeting.
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BOARD'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

The Board of Directors of your Company has the pleasure of presenting the 17'" Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS;
The Ind-AS Financial Results of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 are summarized

below:

(Rs. in Crore)

- Particulars _ Standalone Consolidated
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Year Year Year Year
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
income from operations 17.83 20.67 20.56 2340 |
Other income 21.14 19.74 21.46 19.88
Total income (1) 38.97 40.41 42.02 43.28
Cost of Sales 3.17 4.05 3.17 4.05
Finance Cost 0.00 0.001 0.06 0.08
| Employees benefit expense 6.08 5.62 6.16 5.99
Other expenses 13,12 9.54 13,51 9.95
Depreciation 3.08 3.82 3,21 3.97
Yotal Expenditure {1} 25.45 23.33 26.11 24.04
Profit before tax (I-1f} 12.53 17.09 15.91 19,24
Exceptional items 0.00 -0.63 (.00 -0.63
Profit before Tax ' 13.53 16.46 15.90 18.61
Less: Provision for Taxation 3.54 6.33 4.55 1.17
Profit After Tax 9.99 16.13 1135 ] 17.44

The total income of your Company for the Financial Year (FY) 2023-24 was Rs. 38.97 Crores
as against the total income of Rs, 40.41 Crores. Likewise, total expenditure for the FY 2023-
24 was Rs.25.45 Crores as against the total expenditure of Rs. 23.33 Crores in the FY 2022- 23
on standafone basis,

The Company has earned PAT of Rs. 9.99 Crores in the FY 2023- 24 as against 16.13 Crore in
the FY 2023-24. Your Directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the
Company.

12




2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK

IFCH infrastructure Development Limited {HDL) was set up by IFCI Limited in the year 2007
1o veriture into the real estate and infrastructure sector, The Company, since its inception
has undertaken projects as a Developer/ Project Management Consultant {(PMC) viz.
Development of residential projects at Uttar Pradesh & Kerala, Development and running
of Serviced Apartments; PMC services for construction of the campus of “Management
Development Institute” at Murshidabad, West Bengal; “IFCl Bhawan” the office
complexes at Bengaluru & Ahmedabad; Furnishing the branches of erstwhile “Bharatiya
Mazhila Bank” at New Defhi, Ahmedabad, Guwahati, Kolkata, Bangalore and Chennai.

iDL owns the Serviced Apartments situated at Mayur Vihar, New Delhi. This is Gold
Standard property with 92 luxurious Serviced Apartments comprising studio, one bedroom
& two-bedroom apartments. it offers an ideal living environment that will impress even the
most tech-savvy guests. The property is being run by 1IDL under the name iDL Suites.

On the residential front, HDL has successfully developed twe projects viz, 21% Milestones
Residency, Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh and 1IDL Aerie at Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Kerala.
Projects are complete and handed over to respective Resident Welfare Associations/
Owners Apartments Association,

DL is developing a prestigious Financial City Project spread over an area of 50 acres near
Bengaluru international Airport, Karnataka, {IDL has deveioped the common infrastructure
for the said project and has sub-leased the plots to various Banks/institutions for

development.

HDL owns properties at various locations of the country such as Dalhi, Kolkata, Ghaziabad,
Pondicherry etc. Some of which have been let out & some have been earmarked for
develepment/sale at a future date. Some of the properties with legal issues are being dealt

appropriately,

A subsidiary of your Company viz. l[DL Realtors Private Limited {{RPL) is also having a
commercial property situated at Naman Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai.

Your Company is making effort to monetize best value from its properties, also efforts are
being made for optimizing performance of hospitality division by providing state of ant
facifities.

3.DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend dividend for the financial year 2023-24, However,

dividend of Rs.0.585 (i.e. @ 5.85%) for the year ended 315 March, 2023 on each fully paid
42,70,99,243 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each of the company amounting to Rs.24,98,53,057/-

was paid during the year,
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4. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CHANGES THEREIN, IF ANY

The Company has one class of equity shares of par value at Rs. 10. The Authorized Share
Capital is Rs. 1000 Cr. divided in 100 Cr shares at Rs. 10 each. The issued, subscribed and
paid-up capital is Rs. 427.09 Cr. as at March 31, 2024,

5.TRANSFER TO RESERVES

An amount of Rs. 8,99,33,816/- was transferred to the reserves during the pericd under
review.

6. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under
review within the meaning of Section 73 and section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7.CHANGE iN NATURE OF BUSINESS & MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the reporting period.
Further, there have been no material changes and commitments which affect the
financial position between the end of financial year and date of Board’s Report.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The following changes have occurred in the composition of the Board of Directors and in
KMP since the fast Board Report;

Consequent upon nomination by {FCI Limited, Shri Amrendra Kumar was appointed as Nominee
Director designated as Managing Director in place of Shri Vijay Kumar Deshraj w.e.f. January 18
,2024. Shri Rahul Bhave was Nominated as Director by IFCI Limited w.e.f. December 26, 2023,

Mr. Venu Gopal Kuttappan Nair whose office of director is ltable to retire by rotation at the
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for

re-appointment.

Shri Vishal Pandey has resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer w.ef. May 26, 2023, Ms,
Nidhi Agarwal has joined as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. July 13, 2023.

Ms. Tannu Sharma has resigned from the post of Company Secretary of the Company and
relieved on 15th September 2023. Ms. Meenakshi Mittal has resigned from the post of
Company Secretary of the Company and relieved on 15th March 2024. Further, Ms. Pooja
Vanjani has joined as Company Secretary w.e.f. 26th March 2024,

14



9. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of section 134 (3) (c) of Companies Act 2013 with respect to
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

a} That in preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been foliowed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b} That the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give true and fair view of state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial
year and of the profit & loss of the Company for that period;

¢} That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d} That the directors have prepared annuaf accounts on a going concern basis; and

e} That the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

10. ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return is available at
https://lidlindia,com/D3D6AD16-46DE-4897-8566-D7C2533E1D6D/CMS/Page/Annual-

Report

11. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year
with related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, were in the ordinary course
of business and on an arm'’s langth basis. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with
related parties are disclosed in the relevant notes of Financial Statements and mentioned in
Form AQC-2 enclosed as Annexure-A and forms part of this Annual Report,

12, BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on
the agenda. Additional meetings are held as and when necessary. The Committees of the
Board wusually meet whenever the need arises for transacting business. The
recommendations of the Committees are placed hefore the Board for necessary approval.
Four Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2023- 24, These were held on
May 15, 2023, August 08, 2023, November 02, 2023, and lanuary 31, 2024. The gap
between two Board meetings was in compliance of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

rules made thereunder.

15



The compaosition of the Board of Directors during the FY 2023-24 was as below:

Name of the Directors AGM Board Board
Attended | Meetings held | Meetings
during the attended
tenure
Sh. Manaj Mitttal (Non-Executive Chairman) Yes 4 3
Sh. Rahul 8have { Nominee Director w.e.f, 26 December, 2023) No 1 1
Sh. Sachikanta Mishra NoO 4 3
Dr. Sumita Rai Yes 4 4
Sh. Venugopal K Nair Yes 4 4
Sh. Vijay Kumar Tyagi Yes 4 4
Sh Amrendra Kumar { Managing Director w.e.f. 18 January, No 1 1
2024}
Sh. Vijay Kumar Deshra} {Managing Director up to 18 January, Yes 3 3
2024}
Sh. Debashis Gupta { up to 20 December, 2023) Yes 3 3

13. BOARD'S COMMITTEE MEETINGS

13.1. Audit Commitiee
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set out in Section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013, The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide an
effective supervision of the Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate
and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of
financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the financial reporting
process by the Management, internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Cost Auditors and
notes the processes and safeguards employed by each of them. Four meetings of the
Committee were held during the Financial Year 2023-24. These were held on May 15, 2023,
August 08, 2023, November 02, 2023, and January 31, 2024. Further, there have been no
instances where the Board has not accepted the recommendations by Audit Committee,
Further, Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Committee. The composition of
Audit Committee of Directors during the FY 2023-24 was as under: -

Name of the Member Meetings heid Meetings

during the tenure attended
Sh. Venugopal K Nair {Chalrman) 4 4
Dr. Surpita Rai 4 4
Sh., Sachikanta Mishra 4 2
5h. Rahul Bhave { w.e.f, 26.12.2023} 1 1

13.2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors discharges the functions of
identifying the suitable persons who are qualified to become Directors and Key Managerial
Parsonnel, senior management and recommending their appointment, remuneration etc.
Four meetings of the Committee were held during the FY 2023- 24. These were held on
May 15, 2023, August 08, 2023, November 02, 2023, and lJanuary 31, 2024. The
composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the FY 2023- 24 was as

under:
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Name of the Member Maeetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
Dr. Sumita Rai {Chairpersan) 4 4
Shit Sachikanta Mishra 4 2
Shri Vijay Kumar Tyagi { w.e.f. December 20, 2023} 1 1 R
Shri Debashis Gupta { up to December 20, 2023) 3 3

13.3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility {CSR) Committee to menitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
of the Company, and the activities included in the policy. One meeting of the CSR
Committee was held on August 08, 2023, during the financial year 2023-24. The
composition of Committee of Directors during the FY 2023- 24 was as under:

! Name of the Member teetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
Dr. Sumita Rai 1 1
Sh. Sachikanta Mishra : 1 [
Sh. Vijay Kumar Deshraj { up to January 18, 2024) 1 1

13.4. Asset Sale Committee

The Board has constituted Asset Sale Committee to consider the proposals of sale, disposal
of properties and submit its recommendation to the Board. One meeting of the Committee
was held on January 31, 2024, during the financial year 2023- 24, The coemposition of
Committee of Directors during the FY 2023- 24 was as under:

Name of the Member Meetings heid Maeetings

during tha tenure attended
Sh. Rahul Bhave { Chalrman] w.e.f. January 31, 2024) o 0]
Sh. Venugopal Nair 1 1
Sh, Sachikanta Mishra 1 1
5h. Amrendra Kumar { w.e.f, January 18, 2024) 1 1

13.5. Risk Management Committee

The Board constituted Risk Management Commitiee with a view to identify, evaluate and
give suggestions to mitigate all internal and external risks associated with the business of
the Company. One meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held on May 15, 2023,
during the financial year 2023- 24. The composition of Committee of Directors during the

- FY 2023-24 was as under

Name of the Member Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
5h. Sachikanta Mishra {Chalrman) 1 1
Sh. Venugopal Nair 1 X
Sh. Vifay Kumar Deshraj { up to January 18, 2024} 1 1
Sh. Amrendra Kumar ( w.e.f, January 18, 2024) 0 0]
e
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14. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

14.1,

14.2.

14.3,

14.4.

14.5.

14.6.

Statutory Auditors

C&AG has appointed M/s VPGS & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 507971C), as
Statutory Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023- 2024.

Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report along with Notes on Accounts are self-explanatory and

therefore, do not call for any further comments or explanation,

Cost Auditors

M/s Sunny Chhabra & Co., Cost Accountants was appointed as the Cost Auditor of
the Company, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, for the Financial Year
2023-24 to carry out cost audit. Proposal for recommendation of the professional
fee of the Cost Auditor for the FY 2024-25 is being placed for the approval of the

shareholders.

Internal Auditors

M/s JK5S & Associates, Chartered Accountants was appointed as internal Auditors of
IIDL including NDL Suites {Serviced Apartments) respectively for the Financial Year
2023-24.

Secretarial Auditors

M/s Surya Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries was appointed as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24

Secretarial Audit Report

The Secretarial Auditor has submitted their report, for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024, in Form MR-3, annexed as Annexure-B. The report does not
contain any adverse remark and observations.

15. COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA

The Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India on the Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24
along with compliance / management comments are annexed as Addendum-1.

16.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to MCA notification dated June 5, 2015, in case of Government Companies,

Section 134(3) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply. Accordingly, the
reguisite Policy has not been made part of Board’s Report.
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17.

18,

19.

20,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY {CSR} POLICY

The Corporate Social Responsthility Committee of Directors formulates the CSR Policy
and recommends to the Board of Directors on activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule Vil of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, the Disclosure of contents of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in the
Board's Report pursuant to the provisions of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided as Annexure-C and the policy can be
accessed on the Company's website at htips://iidlindia,com/ED5B8377-98F8-4545-
B119-5DFF3AEA83A2/CMS/Page/Policy

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND
SECURITIES PROVIDED

Buring the year under review, the Company has not advanced loans, or provide guarantees
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same forms part of the notes to
the financial statements. However, during the year tax free bonds amounting to Rs. 20
Crore has matured and amount of Rs, 2.04 Crores has been recognised as net {0ss on equity
investments at fair vatue in case of Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate system of internal control through the process of
Internal Audit. Internal Audit was carried cut during the year under report as per the
scope approved by the Audit Committee of the Company. The Accounts
Department/CFO monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal controf
systems in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies of the Company and its subsidiary., All the internal audit
reports along with corrective measures taken are regularly reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY AND ITS FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

{IDL Realtors Private Limited {IRPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of IDL which is having
rental and interest income during the financial year 2023-24. In accordance with
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, consolidated financial statements have
been prepared for the Company and its subsidiary, which form part of this Report.
Further, the report on the performance and financial position of the subsidiary of the
Company along with szalient features of the financial statements in the prescribed Form
AOC-1 is annexed to this report as Annexure-D.
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21,

22,

23.

24,

25.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAYEMENTS

The Consolidated financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
have been provided in the Annual Report. These Consolidated Financial Statements
provide financial information about your Company and its subsidiary as a single
economic entity,

VIGIL MECHANISM

Section 177 {9} and {10) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for establishment of a
vigil mechanism in every listed company and such other class or classes of companies,
as may be prescribed for its directors and employees to report fo the management
their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or viclation of the
company's code of conduct or ethics policy. The mechanism shalf provide for adequate
safeguards against victimization of director{s)/employee(s) who avail the mechanism
and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Commitiee in
exceptional cases. However, this policy is an internal documnent of the Company and
has been framed for the purpose defined above. The Policy on vigil mechanism may be
accessed on the Company's website at https://iidlindia.com/EDSB8377-98F8-4545-
B119-5DFF3AEAB3AZ/CMIS/Page/Policy

WWW, https://iidlindia.com/ED5B8377-98F8-4545-B119-

SDFF3AEAB3A2/CMS/Page/Policyiidlindia.com.

DISCLOSURE LINDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE
{PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place the Pelicy on Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace
and also formed an Internal Complaints Committee in compliance of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workpiace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
Further, during the year, no complaint was received and hence, no complaint was
pending with the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION AS PER RULE 5 OF COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014,

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from compliance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter Xl HDL, being a
Government Company, this information has not been included as a part of this Report.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information required under Section 134{3}{m} of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with rule 8 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding foreign exchange earnings
& outgo in regard to business operation of [IBL Suites, New Dethi are as under:
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Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

{(Rs. in Lakh)
i, Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS

No. March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Foreign Exchange

a.
Earned
Foreign Currency 1.84 1.07
Foreign Card 338.69 363.93
TOTAL 340.53 365.00
Foreign Exchange

b.
Outgo
Foreign Travel 0 0
Fee for Technical and

. ¢ 0

Professional
TraveI. . Agent 0 o
Commission
Refund 1o Guest ¢ 0
Rovaity 0 0
Promotion
TOTAL 0 0

c CIF wvalue of imporis ) .

" | (Other goods)

Further, details regarding conservation of energy and technology absorption as reguired
under Section 134 {3) {m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules prescribed thereunder are

not applicable to the Company.

26. RISK MANAGEMENT

fIDL has a Risk Management Committee which has formed a policy on Risk Management
framework and aversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact
assessment, effective implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting.

27. SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURT IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE CONPANY

During the Financial Year under review, no significant or material orders were passed hy
any regulator or Court impacting the going concern status of your Company and Company's

operations.
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238. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, none of the auditors have reported, under sub - section {12)
of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against
the company by its officers, employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned
in the Board’s Report,

29, SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

30. EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

The Company continued to maintain harmonious and cordial relations with its employees in
all divisions, which enabled it to achieve this performance level on all fronts.

31. ACKNOWILEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to express their appreciation to IFC] Limited {Holding Company) for
its continuous support and valuable guidance, The Directors also take this opportunity to
thank Government of india and other Government Authorities, Banks and other business
associates for the co-operation received from them,

Your Director’s also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the

committed services by the empioyees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
For [FCl Infrastructure Development Limited

sd/- Sd/-
Amrendra Kumar Sachikanta Mishra
Managing Director Director
DIN: 10472659 DIN: 02755068

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024
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ANNEXURE-A

Related Party Transactions
FORM NO. AQC-2

(Pursuant to clause {h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and-Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions net on Arm’s length basis. ~ Not

Applicable

i Name (s)ubf the related party & nature of relationship
i, ' Nature of co tracts/arrangements/transactlon o . NA
His i Duration oft e contracts/arrangements/transactlon B ' NLA
iv. Sahent terms ofthe ﬁontracts or arrangemél:atﬂs;mdur transactlon NA
including the value, if any R B o
V. Just:ﬁcanon for entering into such contracts or arrangements N.A
LOrransactions’ e - o
vi. : Date ofapproval by the Board ) -
ii ;}r]jount paid as advances, ifany o
i Dété on which the spemal “resolution was passe in General |
meetlng as reqmred under first prowso to section 188

2. Details of

contracts or arrangements of transactions on an Arm’s length basis,

a ar
i, 1Name (s} of the related: - Holding Company
party & nature  of ;
ii. Nature of ‘contracts /| Interest on Bonds, Rent, Salary on Deputétion and
__.lanangements/ transaction | Miscellancous expenses ..o
i, Duration of the contracts/ One year '
_____ BITANGEMeNts/ WanSBCHON & i e
iv. |Salient terms of the “Particulars mount (inRs.)
contracts or arrangements j
or transaction including the
value, if any : interest earned and accrued 7,27,50,000/-
| on investment in IFCI's Bonds
UInterest earned and accrued | 1,67,80,000/- ¢
' on Tax Free Bonds : :
“Rental  Income (including | I
i ! Reims of expenses) :
L. : i
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i benefits)
deputation

Remuneration {inclusive of !
benefits)
Rent of premises

for  staff

Electricity Expenses

Telephone Expensé:‘;

on ;

85,43,334/+

©13,30,200/-

N.A.

V. Date of approval by thegN.A
Board ,,,,,,,, e eaer = e
vi. Amount paid as advances, if
ST L

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions on an Arm's fength basis.,

' & nature of relationship

Name '('s) of the related ﬁarty ! BDL Realtors Private Limite ('!RPL] -
{(Wholly owned subsidiary Company)

utation and  Other

... Board

Date of approval by

the | NA

T P ””-Eantract's-/" 'Re”nt',' . "Séia'ifuym e Dep
arrangements / transaction _ : Transactions ettt
jit. Duration of the contracts /i Monthly / Quarterly
arrangements / transaction ¢ N
tv. | Salient terms of the contracts Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
L or arrangements or
transaction including the INCOME
e i
value, if any Rental Income 6.45,600/-
Remuneration {inclusive 7,56,965/-

of benefits) for staff on

deputation

OTHER TRANSACTIONS | Amountin Rs.

Payment made for taxes £9,33,405/- :

on behalf of IRPL s
i
|

Reimbursement 69,33,405/- | ;

received
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[T

Wi,

........................................

! Amount paid as advances, if
i any

NA

' Name (s) of the related party | IFC] FACTORS LIMITED
& nature of relationship (Group Company}
viil. Nature of contracts/ | Rent, 'S'é!ary on bepuiatioﬁ and Other
arrangements / transaction | Transactions
i, Duration of the contracts /| Monthly / Quarterly
arrangements / transaction o _
X. Salient terms of the contracts Particulars Amount (in Rs.) T
or arrangements or
transaction  including  the | | INCOME
! value, if any Rental income -
Remuneration (inclusive -
of benefits) for staff on
deputation
EXPENSES Amount in &s.
'Remuneration {inclusive 12,79,188
of benefits) for staff on
deputation
Xi. Date of apﬁrova? by the [ NA
: Board
xil. i Amount paid as advances, if § NA

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024

For {FCl Infrastructure Development Limited

Sd/-
Amrendra Kumar

Managing Director

DIN: 10472659
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ANNEXURE - B
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant (o Section 204¢1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment andRenmuamieration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
IFCH Infrastraucture Development Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate governance practice by IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited
{hereinafter calied “the Company”), Iincorporated on 10® October, 2007 having CIN:
U45400DL.2007G01169232 and Registered office at IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi -110019,
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, ils officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 3ist March, 2024 ("The
period under review") complied with the statutory provisions listed hereander and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafier:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and have relied on the records, documents and information shared to us by the Company,
for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024, according to the following provisions of {including any
statutory modifications, amendments, or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force):

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

{if) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

(iii} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investiment and External Commercial

Borrowings; fNof Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review]

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’:

a) The Securities and Fxchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 1/Net Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under

review/;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
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c)

d)

2015/Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review];

The Securities and Exchange Board of [ndia (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under

reviewf;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity} Reguiations, 2021/Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period
under reviewj;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 [Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review];

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 1o an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client [Net Applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period under review};

‘The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021~
[Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review];

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issne and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021/ Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

under reviewf;

We further report that, we have also examined, on test-check basis, the relevant documents and records
maintained by the Company according to the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

(i) Reat Estate {Regutation and Development) Act, 2016,

(i1) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013;

(i) The Employer’s Provideat find & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

{iv) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the systems and the
mechanism formed by the company for the Compliances under the applicable Acts and the regulations to
the Company,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;- Complied with,

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obiigations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 - [Net Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under
review/.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above.

We further report that-

The Board of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before

the meeting and for meaningful participation at (e meeting.

Majority decision is carried through the unanimous consent of all the Board of Directors and recorded as
part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable faws, rules,
regulations and puidelines.

We further report that there are adequate systerns and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable faws, rules, regulations

and guidelines.

For Surya Gupia & Associates

Company Secretaries
Date:
Place: Delhi
Suryakant Gupta
Prop.

M. No.: F9250

COP No.: 10828
UDIN:

Peer Review: 987/2020
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To

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members,
IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit,

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secrefarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, followed by us, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

We lhave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company,

Wherever required, we have duly verified the data/ information about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management, Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on

test basis,

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Surya Gupta & Associafes

Company Secretaries
Date:
Place: Delhi
Suryakant Gupta
Prop.

M. No.: 19250

COP No.: 10828
UDIN:

Peer Review: 907/2620
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ANNEXURE-C

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES
{Pursuant to the Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility} Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

A robust Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Company, duly recommended by the Corporate Sociai Responsibility {CSR)
Committee have been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the
Company's website at: hitps://iidlindia.com/43CB1BE4-8C16-4F4E-8B48-
10C9194FCF19/CMS/Page/Qur%20CSR%20Policy

The objectives of CSR Policy are:

1. to support activities including creation of social & physical infrastructure aimed at
inclusive deveiopment of human capital thereby enhancing the quality of fife and
weli-being of the people.

2, to support TSR activities which help create a cleaner, greener and heaithier
environment and thereby also enhance 1IDL's perception as a socially responsible
entity.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

Sl Name of Director Designation/Nature | No. of Meetings | No. of Meetings
No. of Directorship of CSR of CSR
Committee held Committee
during the year | attended during
the year
1 Mr. Sachikanta Mishra Nominee Director/ 1 (#]
' Chairman
2 Dr. Sumita Rai Director / Member 1 1
3 Shri Amrendra Kumar Managing Director/ 1 0
{w.eflanuary 18, 2024) Member
4. | Shri Vijay Kumar Deshraj Managing Director/ 1 1
(up to January 18, 2024} Member

Composition of CSR Committee (as on March 31, 2024}

MNo.

si Mame of Director

Designation/Nature
of Directorship

i 5h. Sachikanta Mishra

Nominee Director/

Chairman

2 Dr. Sumita Rai

Director/ Member

3 Shri Amrendra Kumar

Managing Director/
Member
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3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, C5R Policy and CSR
Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The

10C5194FCF19/CMS/Page/Our%20CSR%20Policy

weblink is

hitps:/fidlindiz.com/43CB1BEA-8C16-4FAE-8848-

4. Provide the details of impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rufe {3} of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, i applicable. NIL

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rute (3} of rule 7 of the
Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy} Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set-off for the financial year, if any — NIL

Sl No. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount availabie for set-off
from preceding financial years for the financial year, if any
{in Rs.) {in Rs.)
1, 2023-24 - -

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5} —Rs, 12,43,15,569/-

7. {a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135{5}— 24,
86,311/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years-NIL

{c} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any-NA

{d) Tota! CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢)- 24, 86,311/-

8. {a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount

Amount tinspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year {in as per Section 135(6) under Schedule V1! as per secand
Rs.) provision to Section 135(5)
Amount {in Rs.) Date of Name of the Fund | Amount | Date of
Transfer {InRs.) ! Transfer
699,111/- Rs. 8,44,800/- (HDL Unspent | 29.04.2024 N.A. N.A, N.A,

Corporate  Social  Responsibility
Account 2023-24)
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{b) Detaits of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

sk

Name of the
Profect

tem

from
the list

of

activiti

esin
Schedu
le Vil to
the Act

Local
Area

{¥/n)

Location of the
Praject

State | District

Proj
et
Pur
atio
n

Armount
Allocated
for the
Project {in
Rs.}

Amount
spent in
the
current
E.Y. {in
Rs.}

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR Account

for the
project as
per Section
135(6}in
fs.)

Mode of

Impleme

ntation-
Direct

(¥/n)

Mode of
implementation
-Through
implementing
Agency

Mame CSR
Reg.
Ma.

5% support
for

Awareness
Advocacy
Programs
on
Menstrual
Health
Hygiene for
Girt
Students at
81 different
Schoolsin 3
Statesin
india

Mahs
rashir

Rajast
han

Delhi

12
Mion
ths

5,07,200/-

202400

404806/

TSR support
for Bharat
Lok Shiksha
Parishad of
fs.
8,80,000/-
for
providing
all-round
hasic
education
{s} every
child across
rural india
in 40 Ekal
Vidyalaya

Ltar
Prade
sh

12
Mon
ths

8,80,000/~

4,440,000

4,40,000

14,87,200/-

6,42,400/-

8,44,800/-
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{t) Details of CSR amount spent against other thah ongoing projects for the financial year:

Mode Mode of
jtem from . of Implementation-
\ Lacation of the Amount
Name of the thfe !I?t o.f iocal Project spent for imple Through‘
Sl. No.. Project activities in | Area the Project m.enta Implementing
Schedule Vil | (Y/N) (in Rs.) t[on- Agency
to the Act Direct CSR Reg.
State District {Y/N}) | Name No.
1. Prime Minister's Citizen Assistance Y
and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund 999,111/ Y
{Pivt CARES Fund}
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - Nii
{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Nil
{f} Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e}- Nil
{g) Excess amount for set off, if any-
St Particulars Amount {in
No. Rs.}
1. Two percent of average net profit of the company 24,86,311/-
as per Section 135(5)
2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 999,111/~
3. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year {2-1) -
4, Surpius arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any
5. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial -
years (3-4)
8. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Amount
transferred
to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund Amount
Preceding CSR Amqunt specified under Schedute Vi as per | remaining to
Si.No. | Financial Account sr:zn;:?i;he Section 135{6), if any be spent in
Year under F.Y.p{in ng.} .succeeding
Section FY. {inRs.)
;LiiSR{f}? Name of Afnoum Date of
the fund | {inRs.) transfer
1 2020-21 4,16,838 4,16,839 - - - 0
2 2021-22 22,74,228 22,74,228 - - 0
3 2022-23 24,72, 892 7,11,836 - - - 16,64,958
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{b} Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for the ongoing projects of the preceding
financial years:

schools of Uttar Pradesh under
tha project "PRERNA”

S Project Name of the Project E.Y. In which Project Total Amount Cumuiative Status of
o, i3] the project Duration Amount spent on amount spent the project
was alfocated for § the project at the end of {Completed
commenced the project in the reporting F.Y. fOngaing}
{in Rs.} reporting {in Rs.)
FY. {inRs.)
1 A Construction of 15 tollets and 2026-21 2yrs 22, 25,357 4,16,839 22, 25,357 Completed
15 bathrooms at Jai Kumar 1.5 ’
Anudanit Ashramshata-aA months
residential Tribal School in
Kochai Village, Paighar,
Maharashira
2 KA MPCON foundatton for 2021-22 lyrs 4 25,26,920 22,74,228 25,26,920 Completed
innovation , educatlon, social months
transformation & research {
MPCON FINeSTAR) propasal for
installation of sanitary napkin
vending machines with
Incinerator , organising hygiene
awareness campaigns and
construction of toilets in school
/ collepes under CSR initiatives,
3% MA CSR Support for  creating 2022-23 10 24,723,892 7,131,826 7,11,836 Ongoing
entreprensurship  awareness Months
among students of selected

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details refating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset wise details)

(a} Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s}-Nil

{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset-Nil

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address, etc.-Not applicable

{d) Provide details of the capital asset{s} created or acquired {including complete address
and location of the capital asset)- No

11. Specify the reason{s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net

profit as per Section 135(5) — N.A.

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/-
Amrendra Kumar

Managing Director
DIN: 10472659
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Form AOC-1
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ANNEXURE-D

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 125 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
As per Ind-AS

(Amount in Rs.)

SR Detail
1. Name of the subsidiary {IDL Realtors
Private Limited

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different Same as of

from the holding company's reporting period Holding Company
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the fast date

of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign N.A

subsidiaries
4, Share Capital 100,000/~
5. Other Equity 10, 17, 00,917-
6. Total Assets 19, 31, 46, 039/-
7. Total Liabilities 19, 31, 46, 039/-
8. investments in Property 7,58,79,084/-
9, Turnover 2,72,85,120/-
10, Profit before taxation 2,38,01, 846/-
11. Provision for taxation 1,02,01,743/-
12, Profit after taxation 1,36,00,103/-
13, Proposed Dividend NiL
14, Fercentage (%) of shareholding 100%

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commaence operations: - Nit
Narmes of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: - NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
IFCI infrastructure Development Limited

Sd/-
Amrendra Kumar
Managing Director
DiN: 10472659

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024

sd/-

Sachikanta Mishra

Director
DIN: 02755068
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IFCY INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED FOR THE
YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 {Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
sta{utory auditor appointed by the Comptrotler and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5)
of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit
Report dated 19 June 2024 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 27 Aprif 2024,

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
suppiementary audit of the financial statements of IFCH Infrastructure Development Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2024 under section 143(6){a} of the Act. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor and
i8 limited primarily to inquiries of the statutery auditor and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records. The Audit Report has been revised by the statutory
auditar to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during supplementary audit,

in addition, I would like to highlight the following significant matters under section

- 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for

enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report:

A Comment on Profitability
Al Assets
ALY Current Assets
Inventories (Note No. 9): 69606.28 lakh

A, [FCI Infrastructure Development Limited (IIDL, the Company) overvaiued the inventories at
Bengaluru (Financial City Bengaluru Land) and Uttar Pradesh (Ramprastha Housing Complex) at
117724 lakh and T1211.99 lakh instead of ¥1101.24 lakh and €1 180.28 lakh respectively which
resufled In overstatement of inventories and profit for the year by ¥107.71 lakh besides non-
compliance with the significant accounting policy no. 1.1¢ (Inventories) which stipulates that
“inventories are valued ai cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Specifically

Jor Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor space acguired/purchased for developmens

andior saledresale and other remavable/disposable assets existing theveon, It stafes that “these
ave valued at lower of cosi or nel realizable value wherein costs are determined by adding all
considerationsicost which are attribuwtable 1o purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred

specificatly thereto V.
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For Land Bank it consists of asset purchased by the company that it intends to develop later on
into residentialfcammercial project but on which no construction has commenced. Land is initially
recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or nef realizable value whichever is less.
However, it is discounted 1o present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more

than one year.”

B. The Company valued one of its properties at 50.67 lakh. However, the said property was not
a sanctioned property, valuer in his Report (27 March 2024) had considered its fair value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesaid property should have been taken as zero. This has resulted in
overstatement of inventory and profit by ¥50.67 jakh.

A2 Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (Note 22): 944,72 lakh

A. TIDI. created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of 2106.25 lakh receivable on Preference shares
applying Income tax rate of 34.608 per cent’ instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per cens’. This
fed to the creation of deferred tax liability of ¥36.77 lakh instead of 29.56 {akh.

B. [iDL provided ¥54.69 lakh towards bad and doubtful debts during FY 2023-24. As per section
43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961, provision for bad and doubtful debt is a disatlowed expensc
for computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of ¥15.21 lakh (354.69 jakh @ 27.82
per cenly should have been created on provision for bad and doubtfu] debts. Non creation of
deferred tax asset has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax Hability (Net) by T15.21 lakh,

The above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and understatement of Profits by
322.42 lakh (37.21 lakh plus T15.21 {akh). Consequently, deferred tax liability are aiso overstated

by 222.44 fakh.

A3  Current Trade Receivable (Note No. 10)

Unsceured considered good - ¥223.76 lakh

Provision for Bad/ Doubtiul Debts: T117.61 lakh
Above includes Z10.65 takh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors’ of {IDL suites which are
pending recovery for more than seven years. The Board of Directors of the Company while
considering the proposal of write off of corporate sundry debtors, inter-alia, directed (February
2023) that above stated receivables should not be written off and proper follow up should be done

for recovery of the outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able 10 recover
anything against the above receivables. Therefore, the Company should have created the necessary

T Tax rate 32%, swrcharge 12% and cess 3% applicable vl 7Y 2017-18.

T Tax rate 25%. surcharge 7% and cess 4% applicable from TY 2018-19.

* Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited, HCL Fechnologies Limited, Samsung Heavy Industries India Py, Lid., NHT
Technologies and ONGC Limited
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.2 i1 was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018} an FIR against Shri Shivendra Tomar,
Ex. MD (11DL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (11DL), M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pv(, Ltd, (HUIPL}
and Other unknown persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and abuse of
official position by public servant involving huge excess payments (o HUIPL. Further, in reference
to C3 letter dated 02 February 2022, IFCI has conveyed (29 April 2022) the approval of
competlent authority for conducting investigation against Sh, Shivendra Tomar, General Manager,
CI Lid, (Ex-COD/CEQ/MDB, IIDL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruplion Act,
1988 (as amended in 2018) and indian Penal Code,

However, the above fraud case and [FC)'s approval to CBI for conducting investigation against
Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (IIDL) which is 2 material fact, was not disclosed in the financial
statements. Thus, financial statements are deficient to that extent.

Despite being pointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No. D.1, ne corrective action
was taken by the Company,

D.3 A reference is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17 {Trade Receivable) which
stipulates that “The Company has adopted simplified approach using the provision matrix method
Jor recagnition of expected loss on trade receivables. The Provision Matrix is based on three years
rolling average defauit rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward looking estimates. These average default rales ave applied on total credit risk
exposure on trade receivables and owtstanding for more than one year af the reporting daie io
determing lifetime Expected Credit Losses”. Though an amount of ¥54.69 lakh: was provided
towards provision for bad/doubiful Debts during FY 2023-24, the Company did not follow the
aforesaid policy as no average default rates were applied to arrive at expected credit Josses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtfu} debts was not arrived at following the above-
mentioned Accounting Policy No. 1.17.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Aunditor General of India

dffonde

(5. Ahlladini Pands
Director Generalof Audit
(Endustry & Corporute Affairs)
Mew Delhi

Place: New Delhi

Date: . '
1Y JUL 2024
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDMA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF I¥CI INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure Development
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 139 (5) read with section 129 (4) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 19 June 2024
which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 27 April 2024,

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure Development
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under section {43(6)(a) read with section 129 (4) of the
Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure
Development Limited (the Company) but did not conduct sepplementary audit of the financial
statements of [IDL Realtors Private Limited (the subsidiary) for the year ended on that date. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records, The Audit Report has
been revised by the statutory auditor to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during
supplementary audit.

In addition, 1 would like to highlight the following significant matters under section
143(6)(b) read with section 129 (4) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my

view are necessary [or enabling a better understanding of the consolidated financial statements and

the related audit report:
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A Comment on Consolidated Profitability
Al Assets
ALl Current Assets

Inventories (Note No. 9): 6966.28 lakh
A. IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (DL, the Company) overvalued the inventories at
Bengaluru (Financial City Bengaiuru Land) and Uttar Pradesh (Ramprastha Housing Complex) at
TH177.24 akh and ¥T1211.99 lakh instead of ¥1101.24 lakh and T1180.28 lakh respectively which
resulled in overstatement of inventories and profit for the year by ¥107.71 lakh besides non-
compliance with the significant accounting policy no. 1.10 {Inventories) which stipulates that
“inventories are valued af cosi or nel realizable value, whichever is lower. Specifically
Jor Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor space acquiredipurchased for development
and/or saleresale and other removable/disposable assets existing thereon. It states that “these
are vatued at lower of cost or net realizable value wherein cosis are determined by adding all
considerations/cost which are attvibutable to purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred

specifically thereto”,
For Land Bank it consists of asset purchased by the company that it infends 10 develop later on
into residential/commercial project but onwhich no construction has commenced. Land is initially

recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or net rvealizable value whichever is less.
However, it Is discounted (o present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more

than one year.”

B. The Company valued one of its properties at £50.67 lakh. However, the said property was not
a sanctioned property, valuer in his Report (27 March 2024} had considered its fair value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesaid property should have been taken as zero. This has resulted in
overstatement of inventory and profit by ¥50.67 lakh.

A2 Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (Note 22): €1012.69 Jakh

A, NIDL created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of 106,25 lakh receivable on Preference shares
applying Income tax rate of 34.608 per cent’ instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per ceni”. This
fed to the creation of deferred tax Hability of ¥36.77 lakh instead of ¥29.56 lakh.

B. [IDL provided ¥54.69 lakh towards bad and doubtful debis during FY 2023-24. As per section
43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961, provision for bad and doubt{ul debt is a disaliowed expense
for computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of 15.21 lakh (54.69 lakh @ 27.82

P Tax rate 32%0, surcharge 12% and cess 3% applicable G FY 2017-13,
*Tax rate 25%, surcharge 7% and cess 4% applicable feom T'Y 2018-19.
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per ceni) should have been created on provision for bad and doubtful debts. Non creation of
deferred tax asset has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax Hability (Net) by T15.21 akh.

Fhe above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and understatement of Profits by
R22.42 lakh (X7.21 lakh pluy ¥15.21 lakh). Consequently, deferred tax Hability are also overstated
by ¥22.44 lakh.

A3 Current Trade Receivable (Note No. 10)
Unsecured considered good - ¥223.76 Jakh
Provision for Bad/ Doubtful Pebts: £117.61 lakh

Above includes 10.65 lakh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors® of 1IDL suites which are
pending recovery for more than seven years. The Board of Directors of the Company while
considering the proposal of write off of corporate sundry debtors, inter-glia, divected (February
2023) that above stated receivables should not be written off and proper follow up should be done
for recovery of the outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able to recover
anything against the above receivables. Therefore, the Company should have created the necessary
provision lowards the same considering the conservative principle of accounting and the time

efapsed.

Non creation of provision towards doubtfut debts has resulied in understatement of Provision for
doubtful debt and overstatement of trade receivables by T10.65 lakh. Consequently, the profits for
the year are also overstated by 10,65 lakh.

B. Comments on Consolidated Financial Position

B.1.  Non-Currenf Assets — Financial Assets
Others (Note No, 8) -¥3347,90 Lakh
Current Assets ~ Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No. 11) -¥5108.77 Lakh
Bank balance other than those above (Note No, 12) -27724.41 Lakh

HDL operates in two reportable segments viz Real Estate segment dealt at 11DL HO and
Hospitality segment dealt at {IDL Suites. As on 31 March 2024, TIDL suites has 17 Fixed Deposits
(FDs) with IDB] Bank totaling 2963.45 lakh. However, the classifications of these FDs have not
been made as per clauses 8.1.11 and 8.1.16 of the Guidance Note on Division 11— Ind AS Schedule

1 to the Companies Act 2013, as detailed below:

*Bharat Petrotewm Corporation Limited, HCL Technologies Limited, Samsung Heavy Industries India Pyt Lid., NIFT
Technolopies and ONGC Limited
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Classification of FDs Amount classified in the Amount should have been
Balance Sheet (Z in lakh) classified (T in {akh)
FDs with maturity less than 3 NiL 70.00
months
FDs with maturity in between 3 356.11 57611
and 12 months
FDs with maturity more than 12 607.34 317.34
months
TOTAL 963.45 963.43

Due to the above misclassification, Cash & Cash equivalents and Bank Balances other than Cash
and Cash equivalents forming part of Current Assets are understated by 270 lakh and ¥220.60 lakh
respectively and Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) are overstated by £290.00 fakh.

C Comment on Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(.1 Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (A) - £1107.02 lakh
Nef Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) — ¥69.34 lakh

Para 20 (c) of Ind AS - 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) stipulates that, “Under the indirect method,
the net cash flow from operating activities is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the effects
aof iteins for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows”.

Further, Para 31 stipulates that “Cash flows from interest and dividends received and paid shall
each be disclosed separately. Cash flows arising from interest paid and interest and dividends .
received in the case of a financial institution should be classified as cash flows arising from
operaling activities. fn the case of other entities, cash flows arising from inferest paid should be
classified as cash flows from financing activities while interest and dividends received showld be

classified as cash flows from investing activities.”
Fallowing discrepancies in the Cash Flow Statement of 1IDL have been observed:
(i} Profit of 112257 lakh from sale of fixed assets was not adjusted while arriving at cash flow

from operating activities.
(i) 1IDL reccived interest of T1024.87 lakh on Deposit and Bonds during the vear 2023-24,

However, Interest income classified as investing activities was only 2173.27 lakh in the Cash

Flow Statement,
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This has resulted in overstatement of Cash Flow from Operating Activities and understalement
of Cash Flow from Investing Activities by 3974.17 lakh (2122.57 lakh plus ¥851.60 lakh)

besides non-compliance (o the aforesaid Provisions of Ind AS ~ 7.

D, Qther Comments

D.1  Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates (Note No. 6) - Jangipur Bengal Mega
Food Park Limited: ¥450,73 lakh

During FY 2023-24, HDL valued the investment in the Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited

{(Associate) at 5.30 per share and has shown investment of 450,73 lakh (85,04,288 * £5.30 per

share} and booked impairment loss of ¥204.10 lakh based on the valuation of appointed

valuer. However, IFCl Venture Capital Funds Limited (arother subsidiary of IFCY Limited) has

valued its investments in the Associate at T1,14 per share during FY 2023-24,

The issue is considered material in audit as there is substantial difference in the valuation of
Investment in the same A ssociate by two group companies of IFCI Limited which carries an impact

ol T353.78 {akh ((%5.30 per share minus X).14 per share) *85,04,288) on the Investments of {IDL..

D2 Nt was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018) an FIR against Shri Shivendra Tomar,
Ex. MD (ITDL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (1IDL}, M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pvt. Ltd, (HUIPL)
and Other unknown persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and abuse of
official position by public servant involving huge excess payments to HUIPL. Further, in reference
to CBI letter dated 02 February 2022, IFCI has conveyed (29 April 2022} the approval of
competent authority for conducting investigation against Sh. Shivendra Tomar, General Manager,
IFCI Ltd. (Ex-COR/CEQ/MD, 11DL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruption Act,
1988 (as amended in 2018) and Indian Penal Code.

However, the above fraud case and IFCI's approval to CBI for conducting investigation against
Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (JIDL) which is a material fact, was nol disclosed in the financial
statements. Thus, financial statements are deficient (o that extent,

Despite being pointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No. D.1, no corrective action

was taken by the Company.
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D3 A reference is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17 (Trade Reccivabic)
which stipulates that “7he Company has adopted simplified approach using the provision matrix
method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The Provision Matrix is based on
three years rolling average defaulf rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on fotal
credit risk exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for more than one year at the reporiing
date 1o determine lifetime Expected Credit Losses”. Though an amount of 54.69 fakh was
pravided towards provision for bad/doubtful Debts during FY 2023-24, the Company did not
follow the aforesaid policy as no average default rates were applicd to arrive at expected credit
losses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtful debts was not arrived at following the above-
mentioned Accounting Policy No. 1.17.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Audifor General of India

(8. Ahliadini Panda)

Director General of Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi

Date: 1 g JU_L 2024
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LY

Aeplies of CAG Comments on the Annual Accounts (SFS) of IIDL for the year 2023-24

S.N.

CAG Observations

Management
Comments

A
Al
Al

Comment on Profitability

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories (Note No. 9): €6966.28 lakh

AJIFCT Infrastructure Development Limited (IIDL, the Company)
overvalued the inventories al Bengaluru (Financial City Bengalura
Land) and Uttar Pradesh {(Ramprastha Housing Complex) at T1177.24
lakh and ¥1211.99 lakh instead of ¥1101.24 lakh and ¥1180.28 lakh
respectively which resulted in overstatement of inventories and profit
for the year by Z107.71 lakh besides non-compliance with the
significant accounting policy no. 1.10 (Inventories) which stipulates
that “inveniories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever
is lower. Specificaily for Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor
space acquired/purchased for development and/or sale/resale and
other removable/disposable assets existing thereon. It states that
“these are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value wherein
costs are determined by adding all considerations/cost which are
atiributable to purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred
specifically thereto”.

For Land Bank it consisty of asset purchased by the company that it
intends to develop later on inlo residential/commercial project but on
which no construction has commenced. Land is initially recognized af

Jair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value

whichever is less, However, it is discounted to present value when
payvmeni terms are deferved for a period of more than one year. "

B. The Company valued onc of its propertics at ¥50.67 lakh.
However, the said property was not a sanctioned property, valuer in
his Report (27 March 2024} had considered its failr value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesatd property should have been taken
as zero. This has resulted in overstatement of inventory and profit by
250,67 lakh.

The same has been
reciified and updated i
financials of Quarter 1 of
Y 2024-25,

A2

Deferred tax Liabilities {(Net) (Note 22): ¥944.72 lakh

A IIDILL created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of ¥106.25 lakh
receivable on Preference shares applying Income fax rate of 34.608
per cent’ instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per cent’. This led to
the creation of deferred tax liability of 236.77 lakh instead of 229.56
takh.

B. IIDL provided 54,69 lakh towards bad and doubtful debts during
Y 2023-24. As per section 43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961,
provision for bad and doubtful debt is a disallowed expense for

A. The same will he
considered in IF.Y. 2024-
25,

B. The same has been
rectified and updated in
financials of Quarter | of

49




by

computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of T15.21
lakh (354.69 lakh @ 27.82 per cenr) should have been created
on provision for bad and doubtful debts. Non creation of deferred tax
asset has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax Hability (Net) by
1521 lakh.

The above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and
understatement of Profits by 222.42 lakh (%7.21 lakh plus T13.21
takly). Conseguently, deferred tax liability are also overstated by
722.44 lakh.

FY 2024-25.

Current Trade Reecivable (Note No. 10)

Unsecured considered good - 3223.76 lakh

Provision for Bad/ Doubtful Debts: ¥117.61 lakh

Above includes £10.65 lakh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors® of
1IDL suites which are pending recovery for more than seven years.
The Board of Directors of the Company while considering the
proposal of write off of cotporate sundry debtors, inter-alia, directed
(February 2023} that above stated receivables should not be written
off and proper follow up should be done for recovery of the
outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able to
recover anything against the above receivables. Therefore, the
Company should have created the necessary provision towards the
same considering the conservative principje of accounting and the
time elapsed.

Non creation of provision towards doubtful debts has resulted in
understatement of Provision for doubtful debt and overstatement of
trade recejvables by Z10.65 lakh. Consequently, the profits for the
year are also overstated by 210.65 lakh.

Provision for doubtful
debts of Rs. 10.65 Lakhs
has been made in
financials of Quarter 1.

Comments on Financial Position

Non-Current Assets — Financial Assets

Others (Note No. 8) —¥3881.07 lakh

Current Assets — Financial Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No., 11) -¥5095.66 lakh

Bank balance other than (iii} (Note No. 12) -¥6865.54 Iakh

IIDL operates in two reportable segments viz Real Estate segment
dealt at ITDL HO and Hospitality segment dealt at [IDL Suites. As on
31 March 2024, HIDL suites has 17 Fixed Depeosits (FDs) with 1DB]
Bank totalling ¥963.45 lakh. However, the classifications of these
'Ds have not been made as per clauses 8.1.11 and 8.1.16 of the
Guidance Note on Division II - Ind AS Schedule HI to the Companies
Act 2013, as detailed below:

Amaunt shoulkd
have been classified
(2 in lakh)

Ampount classified in
the Balance Sheet (T
in lakh)

Classification of Fis

The same has been
reclassified and updated
in financials of IIDL

Suites as  well as
Standalone/Consolidated
IiDL financials of

Quarter 1 of FY 2024-
23,
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D5 with maturity less NIL 760.00
than 3 months
D3 with maturity in 356.11 576.11
between 3 and 12 months
s with maturity more 607.34 317.34
than 12 mionths

TOTAL 063.45 263.45

Due to the above misclassification, Cash & Cash equivalents and
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents forming part of
Current Assets are upderstated by 70 lakh and ¥220.00 lakh
respectively and Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) are overstated
by ¥290.00 lakh,

Comment on Cash Flow Statement

Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (A) - ¥888.92 lakh

Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) - ¥666.24 lakh

Para 20 (c) of Ind AS ~ 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) stipulates that,
“Under the indirect method, the net cash flow from operating
activities is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the effects of
items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash

flows™.

Further, Para 31 stipulates that “Cash flows from interest and
dividends received and paid shall each be disclosed separately. Cash

HAows arising from interest paid and interest and dividends received in

the case of a financial instinion should be classified as cash flows
arising from operating activities. In the case of other entities, cash

Hfows arising from interest paid should be classified as cash flows
Jrom financing activities while interest and dividends received should

be classified as cash flows from investing activities.”

Following discrepancies in the Cash Flow Statement of 1IDL have
been observed:

(1) Profit of T122.57 lakh from sale of fixed assets was not adjusted
while arriving at cash flow from operating activities.

(i) DL received interest of T1024.87 lakh on Deposit and Bonds
during the year 2023-24. However, Interest income classified as
investing  activities was only ¥173.27 lakh in the Cash Flow
Statement.

This has resulted in overstatement of Cash Flow from Operating
Activilies and understatement of Cash Flow from Investing Activities
by ¥974.17 lakh (2122.57 lakh plus ¥851.60 lakh} besides non-
compliance to the said Provisions of Ind AS - 7.

The same will be
updated and rectified in
Half yearly Cash flow
statement i.e, Sept’2024.

D.1

Other Comments
Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates (Nofe No. 6) -

Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited: ¥450.73 lakh

During FY 2023-24, 11 valued the investment in Jangipur Bengal
Mega Food Park Limited {Associate) at ¥5.30 per share and has

Independent  valuation
from IBBI empanelled
valuer was obtained by
DL, based on  the
valuation report value of
Rs. 5.30 per share was |
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shown investment of ¥450.73 Jakh (85,04,288 * ¥5.30 per share) and
booked impairment loss of T204.10 lakh based on the valuation of
appoinied valuer. However, IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
{another subsidiary of IFCI Limited) has valued its investments in the
Associate at I1.14 per share during FY 2023-24.

The issue is considered material in audit as there is substantial
difference in the valuation of Tnvestment in the same Associate by
two group companies of IFCI Limited which carries an impact of
2353.78 lakh ((T5.30 per share minus T1.14 per share) *85,04,288) on
the Investments of JIDL.

considered.

Going forward it will be
proposed that IIDL and
IVCF gets the valuation
done by one valuer only
and after deliherations
same value will Dbe
considered.

D.2

1t was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018) an FIR against Shri
Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (TIDL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (IIDL),
M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pvt. Ltd. (HUIPL) and Other unknown
persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and
abuse of official position by public servant invelving huge excess
payments to HUIPL. Further, in reference to CBI letter dated 02
February 2022, I[FCI has conveyed (29 April 2022) the approval of
competent authority for conducting investigation against Sh,
Shivendra Tomar, General Manager, IFCI Ltd. (Ex-COD/CEO/MD,
HDL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988
(as amended in 2018) and Indian Penal Code.

However, the above fraud case and IFCI’s approval to CBI for
conducting investigation against Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD
(I1BL} which is a material fact, was not disclosed in the financial
statements, Thus, financial statements are deficient to that extent.

Despite being peointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No.
D.1, no corrective action was taken by the Company.

Shri  Shivendra Tomar
was an emplovee of
IFCI 1td and governed
by 1FCI Staff Reguiations,
therefore the case s
being handled by IFC]
Ltd. The materis under
investigation with CBIL
Further, status  was
sought from HR Deptt,
of IFCI Lid. and they
have informed that there
is no further update from
CRI.

Matter related to
disclosure will be taken
up during current
financial year 2024-25.

D.3

A reference is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17
(Trade Receivable) which stipulates that “7he Company has adopted
simplified  approach using the provision mairix method for
recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The Provision
Matrix is based on three years rolling average defauli rates observed
aver the expecied life of the trade receivables and is adjusied for

Jorward looking estimates. These average defaulf vates are applied on

lotal credit risk exposure on irade receivables and outstanding for
more than owe year at the reporting date to defermine lifetime
Expected Credit Losses”. Though an amount of ¥54.69 lakh was
provided towards provision for bad/doubtful Debts during FY 2023~
24, the Company did not follow the aforesaid pelicy as no average
default rates were applied to arrive at expected credit losses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtful debts was not arrived
al following the above-mentioned Accounting Policy Ne, 1,17,

Trade receivables policy
is being made and will
be  implemented in
current financial  vear
2024.25.
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" Replies of CAG Comments on the Annual Accounts (CFS) of TIDL for the year 2023-24

S.N.

CAG Observations

Management
Comments

A
ALl
ALl

Comment on Consolidated Profitabiiity

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories (Note No. 9): ¥6966.28 lakh

AL TFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (1IDL, the Cornpmy)
overvalued the inventories at Bengalurn (Financial City Bengaluru
Land) and Uttar Pradesh (Ramprastha Housing Complex) at ¥1177.24
lakh and ¥1211.99 lakh instead of ¥1101.24 lakh and ¥1180.28 lakh
respectively which resulted in overstatement of inventories and profit
for the year by ¥107.71 lakh besides non-compliance with the
significant accounting policy no. 1.10 (Inventories) which stipulates
that "inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever
is lower. Specifically for Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor
space acquired/purchased for development and/or salefresale and
other removable/disposable assets existing thereon. Il states that
“these are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value wherein
costs are determined by adding all considerations/cost which are
attributable to purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred
specifically thereto”.

For Land Bank “if consists af asset purchased by the company that i
intends (o develop later on into residential/commercial profect but on
wihich no construction has commenced. Land is initially recognized at

Jair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value

whichever s less. However, it is discounted to present value when
payment ferms are deferred for a period of more than one year.”

B. The Company valued one of its properties at T50.67 lakh.
However, the said property was not a sanctioned property, valuer in
his Report {27 March 2024) had considered its fair value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesaid property should have been taken
as zero. This has resulted in overstatement of inventory and profit by
¥50.67 fakh.

The same has been
rectified and updated in
financials of Quarter 1 of
FY 2024-25.

A2

Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (Note 22): ¥1022.69 lakh

A.IIDL created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of 2106.25 lakh
receivable on Preference shares applying Income tax rate of 34,608
per ceni’ instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per cent. This led to
the creation of deferred tax liability of 236.77 lakh instead of ¥29.56
Jakh.

B. HDL provided ¥54.69 lakh towards bad and doubtiul debts during
FY 2023-24. As per section 43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961,
provision for bad and doubtful debt is a disallowed expense for

A. The same will be
considered in F.Y. 2024-
25,

B. The same has been
rectified and updated in
financials of Quarter | of




computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of ¥15.21
lakh (354.69 fakh @ 27.82 per cenr) should have been created
on provision for bad and doubtful debts. Non creation of deferred tax
assei has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax liability (Net) by
T15.21 lakh.

The above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and
understatement of Profits by ¥22.42 lakh (37.21 lakh plus T15.21
lakh). Consequently, deferred tax liabilify are also overstated by
¥22.44 lakh,

FY 20624-25,

Al

Current Trade Receivable (Note No. 10)

Unsecured considered good - ¥223.76 1akh

Provision for Bad/ Doubtful Debts: ¥117.61 lakh

Above includes 210.65 lakh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors® of
IIDL suites which are pending recovery for more than seven years.
The Board of Directors of the Company while considering the
proposal of write off of corporate sundry debtors, inter-alia, directed
(February 2023) that above stated receivables should not be writien
off and proper follow up should be done for recovery of the
outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able to
recover anything against the above recetvables. Therefore, the
Company shouid have created the necessary provision towards the
same considering the conservative principle of accounting and the
time elapsed.

Non creation of provision towards doubtful debts has resulted in
understatement of Provision for doubtful debt and overstatement of
trade receivables by X10.65 lakh, Conseguently, the profits for the
vear are also overstated by ¥10.65 Jakh,

Proviston for doubtful
debts of Rs. 10.65 Lakhs
has been made in
financials of Quarter 1.

Comments on Consolidated Financial Pesition

Non-Current Assets - Financial Assets

Others (Note No. 8) ~¥3347.90 lakh

Current Assets — Financial Assefs

Cash and Cash cquivalents (Note No, 11)-I5108.77 lakh

Bank balance other than (iii) (Note No. 12) -¥7724.41 lakh

IIDL operates in two reportable segments viz Real Estate segment
dealt at DL HO and Hospitality segiment dealt at JIDL Suites. As on
31 March 2024, 11131, suites has 17 Fixed Deposits (FDs) with IDBI
Bank totalling ¥963.45 lakh. However, the classifications of these
FDs have not been made as per clauses §.1.11 and 8.1.16 of the
Guidance Note on Division Il — Ind AS Schedule 1] to the Companies

Act 2013, as detailed below:

Amount should
have been classified
(T in lakh)

Amount classified in
the Balance Sheet (2
in Eakh)

Classification of FDs

The same has been
reclassified and updated
in financials of 1IDL

Suites  as  well as
Standalone/Consolidated
IIbi. financials of

Quarter 1 of FY 2024.
25,
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FDs with maturity less NiL 70.00
than 3 months
FDs with maturity in 35611 57611
between 3 and 12 months
FDs with maturity more 607.34 317.34
than 12 months

TOTAL 963.45 963.45

Due (o the above misclassification, Cash & Cash equivalents and
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents forming part of
Current Assets are understated by 70 lakh and 2220.00 lakh
respectively and Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) are overstated
by 290.00 lakh.

Comment on Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (A} - ¥1107.02 1akh

Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) — ¥69.34 lakh

Para 20 (¢) of Ind AS — 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) stipulates that,
“Under the indirect method, the net cash flow from operafing
activities is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the effects of
items Jor which the cash effects are investing or financing cash

flows™,

Further, Para 31 stipulates that “Cash flows from interest and
dividends received and paid shall each be disclosed separately. Cash

Hows arising from interest paid and interest and dividends received in

the case of a financial institution should be classified as cash flows
arising from operating activities. In the case of other entitics, cash

flows arising from inferest paid should be classified as cash flows
Jrom financing activities while interest and dividends received should

be classified as cash flows from investing activities.”

Foilowing discrepancies in the Cash Flow Statement of {IDL have
been observed:

(1) Profit of ¥122.57 lakh from sale of fixed assets was not adjusted
while arriving af cash flow from operating activities.

(ii} IIDL, received interest of T1024.87 lakh on Deposit and Bonds
during the year 2023-24. However, Interest income classified as
investing activities wag only ¥173.27 lakh in the Cash Flow
Staterment.

This has resulted in overstatement of Cash Flow from Operating
Activities and understatement of Cash Flow from Investing Activities
by I974.17 lakh (122.57 lakh plus T851.60 lakh) besides non-
compliance to the said Provisions of Ind AS - 7.

The same will be
updated and rectified in
Half yearly Cash flow
statement i.e. Sept’2024,

bB.1

Other Comments
Invesiment in Equity Instruments of Associates (Note No. 6) -

Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited: ¥450.73 lakh
During I'Y 2023-24, 1IDL valued the investment in Jangipur Bengal
Mega Foed Park Limited (Associate) at 2530 per share and has

Independent  valuation
from IBB! empanelled
valuer was obtained by
ITDL., based on the
valuation report value of

| Rs. 330 per share was

&
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shown investment of ¥450.73 lakh (85,04,288 * 5.30 per share) and
booked impairment loss of 2204.10 lakh based on the valuation of
appointed valuer. However, IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
(another subsidiary of IFC] Limited) has vahied its investments in the
Associate at T1.14 per share during FY 2023-24.

The issue is considered material in audit as there is substantial
difference in the valuation of Investment in the same Associate by
two group companies of IFCI Limited which carries an impact of
2353.78 lakh ((5.30 per share minus 1.14 per share) *85,04,288) on
the Investments of 11D,

considered.

Going Torward it will be
proposed that 1IDL and
IVCF gets the valuation
done by one valuer only

and after deliberations
same value will  he |
considered.

B.2

It was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018) an FIR against Shri
Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (IIDL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (JIDL),
M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pvt. Lid. (HUIPL) and Other unknown
persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and
abuse of official position by public servant involving huge excess
paymenis to HUIPL. Further, in reference to CBI letter dated 02
February 2022, IFCI has conveyed (29 April 2022) the appraval of
competent  authority for conducting investigation against Sh,
Shivendra Tomar, General Manager, IFCI Ld, (Ex-COD/CEO/MD,
IIDL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988
(as-amended in 2018) and Indian Penal Code.

However, the above fraud case and 1FCP’s approval to CBI for
conducling Investigation against Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD
(HIDL) which is a material fact, was not disclosed in the financial
statements. Thus, financial statements are deficient to that extent.

Despite being pointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No.
D.1, no corrective action was taken by the Company.

Shri Shivendra Tomar
was an employee of
I¥CI Ltd and governed
by IFCI Staff Reguiations,
therefore the case s
being handled by [FCI
Ltd. The matteris under
investigation with CBIL.
Further, status  was
sought from HR Deptt,
of IFCI Ltd. and they
have infermed that there
is no further update from
CRI.

Matter related to
disclosure will be taken
up  during  current
financial vear 2024-25.

D.3

A reference is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17
(Trade Receivable) which stipulates that “The Company has adopted
simplified approach wusing the provision matrix method Jfor
recognition of expecied loss on trade receivables. The Provision
Mairix is based on three vears rolling average default rates observed
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for

Jorward looking estimates. These average defauli rates are applied on

fotal credit visk exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for
more than one year af the reporting date fo determine lifeiime
Expected Credit Losses”, Though an amount of ¥54.69 lakh was
provided towards provision for bad/doubtful Debis during FY 2023«
24, the Company did not follow the aforesaid policy as no average
default rates were applied to arrive at expected credit Josses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtful debts was not arrived
at following the above-mentioned Accounting Policy No. 1,17,

Trade receivables policy
is being made and will
be implemented  in
current  financial  year
2024-25,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of M/s IFCI Infrastructure Pevelopment Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemenis

This revised lndependent Auditor’s Report is being issued in suppression of our earlier independent Auditor’s
Report dated 27 April 2024, at the instance of Comptroiler and Auditor General (C&AG) of India, The revised
report is issued in view of certain modifications in Emphasis of matter, Report on other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements of Independent Auditor’s Report and Annexure-A of Independent Auditor’s Report pertaining to
the repulatory requirement as required by the Companies (Auditor’s “Report) Order 2020 (CARQY) issued by the
central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 201 3. Further, we
confirm that these do not affect true and fair view and our opinion expressed thereon.

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of M/s IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (“ihe
Company™), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the standalone statement of profit
and lass (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatien (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial

Statements),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’™) in the manner so reguired and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indig, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2024, and profit and s cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to point no 49A to the financial statements regarding lease hold rights for 4.37 acres of
tand in respect of financial city Bengaluru. The lease period for 2,37 acres of land expired cn 2 November
2021 and for the balance 2 acres of land, lease period had expired on 12 October 2022, The request letter (o
renew such lease agreement is submitted to KIADR and as informed to us, the renewal thereof is under
process il the date of signing of audit report. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor ‘s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of zthics. We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial stalements,

Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance concluston thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements, or owr knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and those charges with Governance® Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters staled in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect 1o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriale accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standaione financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial stafements, the Management and Board of Directors are respansible for assessing
the Comp'my‘s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to hqmdalu the Company or
10 cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Direclors is also responsible for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalene financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecenomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting {rom
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fravd may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audif in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(I) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference te financial statements in
place and the operating cffectiveness of such controls.

* Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures in the {inancial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors,

58



¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

» Lvaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have comptied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicabie, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the ¢urrent period and are therefore the key audit
matters, We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
{he matier or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in cur
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Compantes (Auditors” Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order™) issued by the Central Government
in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 10 the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act’2013, we enclose herewith, as per “Annexure-B" and
“Annexure-C” our report for the company on the Directions and Sub-directions respectively, issued by the

Comptroller & Auditor General of India,

3. {A} As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report thal:

a)  We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive
income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act.
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e)

)

(B)

i.

i1,

The provision of Section 164{2) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of disqualifications of directors are
not applicable to the Company being Government Company in terms of notification no. G.S.R. 463 ()
dated § June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure D7,

With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our epinion and 1o the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending Htigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial positions
in its financial statement -- refer Note 43 to the financial statements,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

.

Vi,

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company fo or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary

shali:

¢ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behaif of the Company Or

« provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shalk:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
{“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on hehalf of the Funding Party or

» provide any guarantee, security, or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (iv.) () and

(iv.) (b) contain any material misstatement,

The interim dividend paid by the Company during the year, in respect of the same declared for the previous
yenr, i5 in aceordance with seetion 123 of the Act to the cxtent it applies 1o pryment of dividend,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting soflware for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the
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same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come acrass any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

{C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
company 1o its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit faid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required 10 be
commented upon by us.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 507971C

Sd/-

Vivek Raheja

Partner

Membership No. 094781

Place: New Delhi

Date: 19 june 2024
UDIN: 24094781 BKAGRX9456
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of M/s IFCI Infrastructure
Development Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements® section of sur
report of even date)

i

i,

(a})

(b)

©

()

(a)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

{B) The Campany has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has a regular program of physical verification of Property, Plant
and Equipment are verified in the phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain Property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion this
periadicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and expianation given {o us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deed of immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed
in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company except

Whether .
Period held )
Gross promoter, —indicate ~ Reason lor not
Description o e Held in name director or being held in
. , carrying 5 thei range, ) p
property value y eir where name o
relative or apnropriate company®
emplovee pprop
Property located 0 £ 1l
at  Pangoorvell, nebo _é"e _‘;_ur(;e}
Ariyur Revenue [FCI number identified as
Village. Disteiot : temple land due to
age, District Infrastructure hict L
Villanour which  registration
put, Development has not taken place.
Puducherry Rs. 10.01 Limited No 14 years & 08
having area of | Crores (through sale months HDL is in  the
21.279 acres certificate process of resolving
issued by ICI the  issue wiih
Ltd} concern authorily.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of owr examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benamt Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year, In our opinion, the

frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as {ollowed by the
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i}

.

Vi,

management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical
stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanation given te us and on the basis of our examination of the

{a}

(b}

(c)

(d}

(¢}

&)

records of the Company, the Company does not have any working capital limit, Accordingly, clause
3(i)b) of the order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanation given 10 us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security
or granied any advance in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured {o companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships, and unsecured Joans granted (o other parlies during the year. The company has
not granted any loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year,

(A) Based on the audit procedure carried on by us and as per the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not granted any loans to subsidiaries.

{B) Based on the audit procedure carried on by us and as per the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of foans or stood guarantee
or provided security to any other entity during the vear, Accordingly, clause 3(iii){a) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedure conducted
by us we are of the opinion, that the terms and conditions of the loans given are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. '

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment interest has
been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans
given.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan given fafling due during the year, which has been renewed
or extended or fresh loans given to settie the overdue of existing loans given to the same party,

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of {oans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guaraniee or security
as specified under Sections 185 of the Companies Act,2013 and the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security as specified under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Further, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to
loans given and investments made,

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clavse 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section-
148 of the Companies Act. The Company has maintained the prescribed records, However, 1o
separate cost records have been maintained,

In respect of statutory dues:
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(&) The Company does not have Hability in respect of Sales tax, Service fax, Duty of excise and Value
added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into
GST. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of accounts in respect of
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees™ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Duty of Custom, Cess and other material statufory dues applicable to it have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities except for slight delays in a few
cases. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Dutyof Custom, Cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six moenihs from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanation given o us, statutory dues referred to in subclause (a),
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as under:
Name of the Statue Amount (Rupees in Period for which Forum where
lakhs) amount refated dispute

pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 63.02 AY 2012-13 ITAT

Income Tax Act, 1961 49.07 AY 2013-14 FTAT

Income Tax Act, 1961 98.73 AY 2014-15 ITAT

Income Tax Act, 1961 79.85 AY 2015-16 CIT(A)

Income Tax Agt, 1961 24.16 AY 2016-17 ITAT

Income Tax Act, 1961 58.60 AY 2017-18 CIT(A)

Income Tax Act, 1961 73.53 AY 2018-19 CPC

Income Tax Act, 196] 1.34 AY 201920 CPC

Income Tax Act, 1961 82.92 AY 2020-21 CpC

Income Tax Act, 1961 232.61 AY 2021-22 CPC

Income Tax Act, 1961 168.15 AY 2022-23 CPC

Indian Stamp Act,1899 150,62 - Allahabad
High Court

Assessment Year / Stuale Amount (Rupees in lakhs) Forum from where
demand pending / addition
imposed

2017 - 18/ Delhi 31.08 GST Appeliate

2017 - 18/ U.P, 6.81 GST Appellate

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

as income during the year.

viil.
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ix.

xi.

i,

xiii.

xiv.

KV,

(a)

{b)

{©

{d)

(e)

(f

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans and borrowings from any lender during
the year. Accordingly, clause ix{a) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the compary, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government autherity.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the company has not
obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause ix{c) of the order is nat applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us en an everall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, we report that no funds have been raised on short-lerm basis by the company.
Accordingly, clause ix(d) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined ander the Companies
Agt, 2013,

According to the information and explanation given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013

(2) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

(b}

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b} of the order
is not applicable,

() Based on the examination of the books and records of the company and according to the information

(b)

(c)

and explanation given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company has been noticed or reported
during the course of audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section {12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under ruie 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistleblower complaints received by the Company during the
year, while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According 1o the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and
hence reporting under clause (xii} of the Order is not applicable.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given lo us, the {ransactions with
rclated parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details of the refated party transactions have been disciesed in the financial
Statements as required by theapplicable Indian accounting standards,

{a) Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion

the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

by We have considered the reports of the internal auditor for the vear ended 31 March 2024 furnished

PO us;

In our opinion according to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not entered
into any non-cash fransactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.



xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The Company is not required 10 be registered under section 45-JA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934, Accordingly, clavse 3{xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The company is nol a core investment company (as defined in the Core Investment Companies {Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016). Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi¥c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does

xvit.

xviid,

Xix,

XX.

Sd/-

not have any CIC. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi¥(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the firancial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviil) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial Habilities, other
information accompanying the Financial Statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supperting the assumptions,
nothing has conie to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they falf due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We firther state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

A) Based on our audit procedure anxd as per the information and explanations given o us by the
management, the Company has only ongoing projects i.e. there are no other than ongoing projects.

B} Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the unspent amount by the Company towards C3R as on 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs
14.87 Lakhs, out of which the Company spent Rs 6.42 Lakh in April 2024 and the balance amount of
Rs. 8.45 Lakh has been transferred to special account in compliance with the provisions of Section
135(6} of the Act as on 30 Aprii 2024.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 507971C

Vivek Raheja
Partirer

Membership Number; 094781

UDIN: 2400478 I BRAGRX 9456
Place: New Dethi
{ate: 19 June 2024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors® Report

Report in terms of Directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of
the Companies Act’2013 for the financial vear 2023-2024

I

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through 1T system? 1T
yes, the implications of processing accounting transactions outside I'T system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

According to the information and explanations given o us and based on our audit, all the accounting
transactions are routed through IT system (ie. Tally software in Head Office and SAGE 300
ERP/HIS/ADS software in IIDL Suites) except the demand letters issued to buyers and rental invoices
issued to tenants. Demand letters issued to buyers and rental invoices issued to tenants are usually sent

through MS-Office,

We have neither been informed nor we have come across during the course of audit any accounting
transactions having an impact on the infegrity of the accounts along with the financial implications
which have been processed outside the IT system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest ete,
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a government company,
then this direction i3 also applicable for statutory auditor of Lender Company).

During the year, there is no instance of any resfructuring of any existing loan or cases of waiver/write-
off of debts/loansfinterest ete. made by a lender to fhe Company.

Whether funds (granis/subsidy ete.) received/receivable for specific schemes from Central /State
Government or its agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases

of deviation.

We have been informed that the Company has neither received, nor any such funds are receivable by
the Company for specific schemes from Central/State Government or its agencies for the financial
year 2023-24,

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accotmtanis
Firm Registration Number: 307971C

Sd/-

Vivek Raheja

Partner

Membership Nuinber: 094781

UDIN; 24094781 BKAGRX9456
Place: New Delhi -
Date: 19 June 2024
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditors® Report

Report in ferms of Sub-directions issued by the Compiroller & Audifor General of India under section 143(5)
of the Companies Act’2013 for the financial year 2023-24

1,

Investments;

Whetler the titles of ownership in respect of CGS/ SGS/ Bonds/ Debentures efc. are available in
physical/demat form and these, in aggregate, agree with the respective amounts shown in the Company’s
books of accounts? If not, details may be stated.

The company invested Rs, 75 Crores in Bonds issued by IFCI Limited. The possession of {hese bonds
is in demat form and the same has been shown in the Company’s books of accounis under the head of
investment in assef side of the balance sheet,

Loans:

In respect of provisioning requirement of al restructured, rescheduled, renegotiated loan-whether a systern
of periodical assessment of realizable value of securities available against all such loans is in place and
adequate provision has been created during the year? Deficiencies in this regard, if any, may be suitably
commented upon along with financial impact.

The Company has neither granted any Loans during the year nor does the Company have any such
otutstanding Loans as on 31-03-2024,

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 507971C

Sd/~

Vivek Raheja

Partner

Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 2409478 1 BKAGRX 9456
Mace: New Delhi
Pate: 19 June 2024
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Annexure - P fo the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financiat Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-scction 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Aci™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s IFCI Infrastructure Pevelopment
Limited (“the Company™) as of 31* March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Manragement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAY’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, (he
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditers’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respecls.

Cur audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audif of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal controf based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due 1o
fraud or crror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control aver
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
1) pertain o the mainienance of records thay, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;
2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles, and that receipts and
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expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
direciors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Infernal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the mherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may ocour and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internat financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controf stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For VPGS & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 507971C

Sd/-

Vivek Raheja
Partner
Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 24094781 BKAGRX9456

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024
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[FCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIVITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01165232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

) { % In Lakhs)
Partlculars Note No. As at 31st March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
ASSETS
1. Non - Currant Assets
a. Properly, Plant and Eguipment and Intangibie assets 2 15,376.15 15,695.00
b. investment property 3 - 710,72
c. Goodwill 4 - R
d. Other intangible Assots 3 8.23 20,53
e. Financial Assets - .
i fnvestmants ) 11,551.78 13,756.03
H. Leans 7 763,54 BAE.0Z
fii. Others 8 388107 248186
31,580.76 35.364.16
2. Current Asseds
A Inventeries a 6,966.28 7,145.77
h. Fimancial Assets . -
i. Trade Receivables 10 106.14 22862
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 11 5,095.66 6,0349.03
jiit. Bank Balance other than {ii) above 12 £.805.54 545028
. Loans 13 - .
v, Others 14 1,523.15 930163
¢. Current Tax Assots [Net} 15 LOST.07 564.00
d. Gther Current Assets 16 351.6% 337.05
21,905.52 21,661.38
TOTAL ASSETS 53,486.2% 55,025.54
EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
1, Equity
a. Eepuily Share Capital k) 473,300,972 4270892
b. Other Equity iB 8,082,098 a575.14
50,752.91 52,285.07
2. Nen - Current LlabHitios
4. Financial Liabilities
i, Borrowings 19 - -
ti. Other financial Liabiities 20 .00 102
ir. Provisions 21 471,14 AERES
c. Dederred Tax Liabitities {Net) 22 944.72 RE7.60
d. Qther Non - Current Liabilities 23 - -
14315885 1,402.54
3. Current liabilities
a. Financial Liabifities
i. Trade Payables 24 14).58 1350
it. Other Hnangial Liabikties 25 368.01 e2.41
b. Other Current Liabilities i 758.19 B00.44
c. Frovisions P L] 30,58
1,277.53 1,333.94
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ) 53,486.29 55,025.54
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Informalfon in Notes 1to 59
As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 507971C
sdf- ad/-

sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
FARTHNER
I, Mo, 024781

Date @ 2¥th Aprll 2024
Place : New Defhi

{Amrendra Kumar)
BN 10472652
MANAGING DIRECTOR

S/
{Nidhl| Aparwal}
M. Mo 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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{5achikanta Mishral
0itd : 02755068
PHRECTOR

Sd/-
{Pon]a Vanjani)
. W, 2 22668
COMPANY SCCRETARY



[FCT INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CiN : U45400D1L2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, iIFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 {iN)

STATEMENT OFf PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March 2024

{% In Lakhs)

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Particulars Hote Ne. March 2024 March 2023
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Incosmie
Revenue from Operations 28 1,782.39 2,066.9%
Other income 29 . 2,114.37 1,974.84
Total income (A} 3,897.26 A4041.83
Expenses
Cost of Materiat Consumed kil 317.07 4{t4.58
Employee benefit expenses 31 G827 542.46
Finance Costs 3z - o.10
Met Loss on Fair Value changes 33 204.10 -
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 34 207.58 351.57
Other Expenses ' 35 1,107.58 953 57
Total Expenses [B) 2,544.61 2,332.68
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional Hems and tax {A- B) 1,352.65 1,700.14
Excaptional Hems 36A - {6324}
Profit / {Loss) before tax 1,352.65 164591
Less: Tax fxpense
1, Current Tax 34 307.45 281.83
2. Deferred Tax i3 45 86 33.00
3. MAT Cradit Entitlement - {281.83}
4. income Tax for Earlier Years - -
Profit { (Loss) for the period from continuing operations, net of tax 980,34 1,612.91
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit { (Loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax) -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIQD () 999,34 1,612.91
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A i Hems that will tot be reclassified to profit or loss 36
&, Acturial Gain / Loss 4,20 {5.95}
it Income tay relating to items that will not to be regdlassified to
Less: prafit or toss 1.17 {1.65}
Other Comprehensive income, net of tax () 2.03 {4.29)
FOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERICD [+ 1) 1,002,237 1,608.61
Earning per equity share {for continulng and discontinuing operations} 37
1. Basic {in Rs.) 0.23 0.38
2. Diluted {in fs.} 0.23 G.28

Suemsnary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory information in Motes 1to 59

As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

EFRN: 507971C

Sd/f-
Ca Vivek Raheja
PARTMNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th Apeil 3024
Place : New Dethi
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Sdf-

Sdf-

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BQARD

{Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

{Nidhi Aparwal}
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sd/-
(Sachikanta Mishra)
DN 02755068
HRECTOR

Sd/-
{Pooja Vanjani}
. No. @ 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY




IFCIINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CiN : U45400DL2007G0H169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCE Tower, 61 Nehruo Place, New Delhi - 110 018 (IN)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31st March 2024

{2 Inkokhsl

Sg'l.’.
Ch Viveh Raheja
PARTHER
. Mo, {19478

Date : 27th Apeid oA
Flace : Mow Bethl

{Amrendra Kumar)
DIN; 10477650
MANAGIRG DIRECTOR

§3/-
[Kidhl Aparwal)
B4, Me:a13aly
CHIEF FINARCIAL OTFICER
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Particulnes for ke year ended 31zt |Far the year ended 3131 March
March 2074 2024
Tota: Compreheniive Intome before tncame Tax frem
Cernlinuing Dperations 1Lih6.8% LBIRSh
Tnceatinging Dperation bl M
Peafit bafore ntome Fax Ingiuding dtscontinued opecatlons 1.356.E5 16595
Adjustments For -
Depreciation and Amcitliation Expence 307.88 23187
Ot Covrpiehensive Income {6.20) 595
I =3k [neome elagsifien a4 Cash Flews {17307 [4,665.33)
Antome from fnvestment Property clatsifiod a5 davesting Cash Flows . -
Dividend Incami ¢iazsitied »s Financlng Cash Flows - .
Hon - Cath Interost insome [E8.53) {4
fom - Lash Finznge Costs . .19
Hon - Cash Seferced Incame . {221.49}
Mot Gain £ Loss on fair value ehanges 204,140 -
Opeixiing Prafit belore warking capftel changes 162253 1-:5.56"
Change In cperating 2ssety ang Labiities, net of effects from purchase of controlied entitins and
saie of subsidiarier .
Pecrense f {inttease) : Hnantial Assets {233.05] (341.41)
Docreate f {Increase] D iayentoris 178E0 FCEXr
Oaerease f{inereate]  Cusrent Tax Assels 193.05) {86.73)
Diecrease fIncresse) - Other Current Assels [14.64) 9132
rcrease / {Decrease) : Finungal Lebiltiee 148 [223.84)
trorease fiDecesrsn) ! Provisioas (E0.23) 1153
Inirearn f {Deceaase} - Other Currem Liabilities [42.25) (0.77)
Cash Generated from Operations 1,i96.27 165.4 -'._é
Inzome Tanes Paid [E0Y.45) -
et Cash inflov, / foutflow} from Operating Activilies (&) E88.92 I65.86)
LASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACHVITIES
nepme fram Heposity & Bonds i72e7 1,B05.33
Rark depcsits with satutity ovier 3 months bat fess than 12 menths (840,207 2EIFGE
Hank depozity with maturity over 12 eneaths {1,559.21} {1.584.03)
Purchase of Fropedty, Flant & Equipment (LR [20.30}
Purchase of Intangisle Assets (012 :
Purchase [/ Meaturity of Tak Feee Bonds 2.051s
Fental Incorne fram Ingestment Froperty - .
Sale of Fecparly, Plant & fquisment FELEGY 17.408
jlmveeiment in SAGE Fund - (100,00
et Cash tnflow f Lautfiow] fram lnvesting Activitles (8] £55.24 273733
CASH ELOW FAOM FINANONG ACTIVITTES
Interim Qriicend Recelved - -
intenm Divigend Pald [2,498.53)
Dividend Distribution Tax Faid -
Suy-back, of Eguity Shaces
Eramivm paid on bly-bated of Eguity Shares
Tax paid on buy-back of Equity Shares -
Repayment of 9.7% Ner-Corvertivhe Bonds
Finanes Costs : -
Ret Cash inflow f Iputliow] from Hnanting Activitfes & [24495.5%) -
Ret lncroase tn Cash and Cash Egoiralents [A+BsCh 1943.37) 267189
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Eepinning of the yeas 6.033.03 336714
Cosh and Cash Equivalents at the end of Lhe year {0} 5,095.66 £,035.03 |
S
Recondillation of Cash ang Cash fquivalents st the end of the year
Cash onifand 165 1.79
Chegues f Drafis on Hand .
fialantes s Current / Spuings Avcourts with Banks B0.42
Balances in Depesit Atcounls with maturity 1025 than 3 months 501558
Toral Cash and Cayh Equivalonts ot the end of the year 500565
Gt of [}, siznificant cash and cash equlvalent bolances held by the cnilty thak are not avallahic
for use B R
Non Cash FInsnding and Investing Actilties 6253 L4
Suramary of Significant Agtrunting Pohgies and Gther Explanatary information in Hotes 1to 5%
As e our report of eeen date attached
For WeGs & Co. FOR AKD DN BEHALF OF THE B{ARD
CHARTERD D ACCOUINTANTS
Foih: S0975C
4d g

(Sachlkanta dlsheral
Di 2 02755008
DIRECTOR

el
IPeeia Vanlarnh
FAL Mo, : PIGEE
COMPANY SECRETARY



FCEINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELCPMENT LIMITED

CIN : U454005L2007G01169232

Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FC! Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Defhi - 110 019 {IN}

A EQEITY SHARE CAPITAL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31st March 2024

{5 in Lirkhs)

Particatars

Balance at the heglnning of

the reporting pertod

Share Capited 1ssued
during the year

Share Capltal redeemod
during the year

Balance at the end of
the reporting periad

Balance as 2t 313t March, 7023
Balance ac a1 31t March, 2024

42,709.92
42,700.92

A2,705.92
42,705.92

& OTHER EQUITY

{% In Laklys)
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive income [OCI)
Particubars Lapital Redemption Remeasurement of Total
Reserve Retalned Earnings Defined Benelit Plans Others
Balance as at L5t Aprif 2022 681291 1,127.4% 6.20 - 7,970.53
Changes in Accounting Palicy / Prior Peviod Breors
Brofit for the period - 1,612.91 - . 1,612.93
Grher Comperehensive incame for the yeer {net of
laxes} - {4728} - {4.249)
Changes in Equily due to Lease Extension - .
interim Cividend Paid to Equity Sharehoiders - - - -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - - - - -
Balance at 315k Mareh, 2023 6.812.91 1,740,312 25,93 - 0.579.14
Changes in Accounting Fokey / Prior Feriod Errors
Profil far the poeiod 499,34 - - G49.34
Other Comprehensive ncome for the year (net of
tpres) - - 3.03 - 3.03
Chanpes in Equity due to Lease Extension - . - .
interim Bividend Paid te Eguity Sharcholders - [2,458.53) - - 12,408.53)
Dividend Bistribution Tax Fard - - - -
Balance at 315t March, 20249 6,812.91 124113 78.94 & 082.98
summary of Slgnificant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatary infurmation in Notes 1 to 59
As per our report of even date attached
ForupGs & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALT OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: S07971C
Sdf- sdf

Sdf-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
B Mo, G94785

Bale ; 27tk Aprif 2024
Place : New Delhi

{fsmrendra Kumar}
DN: 10472658
WMANAGING DIRECTOR

sdf-
{Nithi Agarwal}
M. No 413357
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

74

[{Sachikanta Mishral
DI : 02755068
DIRECTOR

S/
{Pao)a Vanjani)
M. No., : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY




IFCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007601169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, FC Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi~ 110 019 (IN)

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

iFCl Infrastructure Development Limited {“the Company”} is a company registered under the Companies Act, 2013
“which was incorporated on Qctober 10, 2007. The Company has been primarily engaged in the activities relating to

Real £state Project Advisory and Execution, promotion, construction and development of Commercizl and

Residential Complexes and Serviced Apartments of its own as well as under joint parlicipatory agreements with

others.

The hospitality project of the company under the brand name "HIDL Suites’, Service Apartments located at Mayur

Vihar has commenced its commercial operations from 1st of October, 2011,

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared by the Company
in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of india
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards} {Amendment) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, in this regard.

Further, the financial statements comply in all material aspects with the indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS} including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,

2013 {the Act).

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in
these financial statements.

1.2 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR}, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in INR and rounded off to the
nearest two decimals, except where otherwise indicated.
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i3

1.4

1.5

1.5.1

IFC1 INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G01169232
Repd. Office — 7th Floor, IFC1 Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 {IN)

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the following material items:

» Financial assets at FYTOCH that is measured at fair value

» Financial instruments at FVTPL that is measured at fair value

» Net defined benefit {asset) / liability - fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obHgation

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although, such
estimates and assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all
available information, actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years.

PROPERTY, PEANT AND EQUIPIMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment held for use or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumnulated impairment losses. The cost includes
non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and
installation of the respective assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and its
corresponding replaced assets removed / retired from active use are derecognized.

If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost of similar new
parts / inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection component
was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried out.

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation / amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,
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IFCIINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400D12007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Foor, IEC Tower, 61 Nehru Piace, New Dethi— 110 019 (iN)

In the case of commissioned assets, deposit works / cost - plus contracts where final settlement of
bills with contractors is yet to be affected, capitafization is done on provisional basis subject to
necessary adjustrents in the year of final settlement.

Spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which meets the recognition criteria of
Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Investment properties include those portions of fand and bulidings that are held for long-term rental
yields and/for for capital appreciation or for a currently indeterminate use, Investment properties
inctude properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties,

Investment properties are stated at cost of acquisition / construction less accumuiated depreciation.
On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss,

Method of Depreciation used is Straight Ling Method and the useful [ife of the asset taken is 80
years.

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has considered the carrying value of Invaestment
Properties (if any) as per previous GAAP to be the deemed cost as per ind AS 101,

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumidated impairment losses.

Government licenses essential for the company’s operations and having a validity of over one vear
are initially recognised at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation calculated on the
basis of remaining validity period.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
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1.5.2

153

1.5.4

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CiIN: U45400DL2007G 01169232
Regd, Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {iN}

Depreciation / Amortization

Depreciation is provided using the Straight-Line Method over their estimated useful life as prescribed
under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2012 or based on Management assessment of useful fife, if
lower than what is prescribed under the schedule. Depreciation is calculated on pro — rata basis,
including the month of addition and excluding the month of sale / disposal. Leasehoid improvements
are amortised over the underlying lease term on a straight-line basis. Residual value in respect of
items of Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property are considered as 5% of the cost.
Property, Plant and Equipment costing less than Rs. 5000/ individually are charged to the statement
of Profit & Loss Account in the year of their purchase itself.

The estimated useful ives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

intangible Assets consisting of Computer software with indefinite period utility / user rights and
having a useful life lasting with that of the egquipment have been capitalized with the cost of
computer. Software carrying an identifiable utility of at least five years is amortized on a straight-line
basis over a period of five years from the date put into use. Software with limited edition / period
utility Le. requiring annual revision is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year of
purchase. Government licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of their validity.

De — Recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets is de-
recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and eguipment or investment property is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS
The Company has efected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant and
Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets recognised as of the transition date measured

as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date as
perind AS 101,
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1.6

1.7

1.8

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400D1.2007G01169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, tFC Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi -~ 110 019 {iN}

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantiaity ready for their intended use or sale. Interest income carned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on gualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other horrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON — FINANCIAL ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non — financial assets {other
than assets held for sale and deferred tax assets} to determine whether there is any indication of
Impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash infiows of other assets or
CGUs., The 'recoverable amount' of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. 'Value in use’ is based on the estimated future cash flows, discountad to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent

that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrving amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily
through sale rather than through continuing use,

Such assets measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell with gains
and losses on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. Once classified as held for sale, assets are
no longer amortised, depreciated or impaired.
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1.9

110

1.11

IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I169232
Repd. Office — 7th Floor, iFCI Tower, 63 Nehru Place, New Dethi — 110 019 {IN}

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

tnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost. The cost comprises
price paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost. On each reporting date, consequent
upon existence of any external or internal indication to impairment, the impairment loss shall be
recognised as difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The quantity and valuation
of inventories at the yearend is taken as physically verified value and certified by the management,

Inventory of real estate business comprise of -

i, Building / Residential Complex, Built-up floor space acquired / purchased for development and / or
sale / resale and other removable / disposable assets existing thereon, These are valued at lower of
cost or net realizable value wherein costs are determined by adding all considerations / costs which
are attributable to purchase / acquisition, and other expenses incurred specifically thereto.

residential / commercial project but on which no construction has commenced. Land is initially
recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value whichever is less, However,
it is discounted to present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more than one
year.

fiil. Work in Progress — Work-in-Progress includes consfruction work in progress and unsold portion of
completed Real Estate Projects. Increase / decrease in Work-in-Progress is accounted for as income
or Expenditure for the year, as the case may be. Valuation of Work-in-Progress including unsold
portion of reality project is being done on basis of actual cost and overheads incurred which are
directly attributable to project, till completion or net realizable value whichever is less,

iv. Direct Materials, Stores and Spare Parts are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

v, Consumables incleding Cantering, Shuttering and Scaffolding, Loose Tools, Laboratory Equipment,
empty containers & others are valued on the basis of realizable value, based on the engineering
estimate.

Inventory of hospitality busingss comprises of closing balance of consumables purchased. FIFO
method is followed for ascertaining the cost price considered for valuation. Closing inventories are
valued at cost or replacement value, whichever is less, after providing for obsolescence and damage,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Lquivalents comprise Cash in hand, Balances in Bank Account, Remittance in Transit,
Chegues in hand and Demand Deposits, together with other short-term, highly liguid investments
{original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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1.12,2

HFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400BL2007G0I169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, ¥CI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi ~ 110 019 {IN)

LEASES (IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 116)

The company identifies lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
asset {the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The company checks
for conditions needed to be fulfilled i the contract is to be classified as lease as under:

i identified asset,

i Lessee obtains substantially all of the economic benefits

ti. Lessee directs the use

The Company as a [essee

i. The company recognizes assets and liabilities for all leases for a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

ii. It then recognizes a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments.

tit, The company measures right-of-use assets simifarly to other non-financial assets (such as
property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities,

iv. The company recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability.

V. Lease liability = Present value of lease rentals + present value of expected payments at the
end of lease. The lease liability will be amortized using the effective interest rate method.

vi. Lease term = non-cancellable period + renewable period if fessee reasonably certain to
exercise,

wii. Right to use asset = Lease liability + lease payments {advance}-lease incentives to be received

if any initial + initial direct costs + cost of dismantling / restoring etc. The asset will be
depreciated as per ind AS 16 Property Plant and eguipment,

The Company as a Lessor

i The company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

ii. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards,
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset, For finance leases, the company derecognizes
the underlying asset and recognizes a net investment in the lease,

iii. A lease is classified as an operating lease H it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For operating leases, the company
continues to recognize the underlying asset.

v, Any selling profit or loss is recognized at lease commencement.
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1.13

1.13.12

1.13.2

1.13.3

1.13.4

IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400D1L.2007G01169232
Regd. Ofiice - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dalhi— 110 019 (IN)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES RELATED 1O CLAIMS, LITIGATION efc,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
he reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. ‘

Contingencies

Contingent Kabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the controi of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent fiability is
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Arbitration Awards

Arbitration / Court's awards along with related interest receivable / pavable are, to the extent not
taken into accounts at the time of initiation, are recognized after it becomes decree, Permanent
Machinery of Arbitration, Government of India, is accounted for on finalization of award by the
appeltate authority. Interest to / from in these cases are acceunted when the payment is probable
which the point is when matter is considered settled by management.

Liguidated Damages

Liquidated Damages / Compensation for delay in respect of clients/ contractors, if any, are accounted
for when payment Is probable which is the point when matter is considered settled by management.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent Liabilities
A comtingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable cbiigation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation

whose amount canpot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed uniess the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are disciosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits is

probable.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from retained earnings, net of any refated incomne
tax benefits.

Other companents of equity include Other Comprehensive Income {OCI} arising from actuarial gain
or loss an re-measurement of defined benefit liability and return on plan assets,

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with owners
of the parent are recorded separately within equity. Annual dividend distribution to shareholders is
recognised as a liahility in the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and
corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity.
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CIN: U45400DL2007G0I169232
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initiatly measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Classifications and Subsequent Measuremaent
Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income {'FVTOCI} or FVTPL, depending on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the Company’s business modei for
managing the financial assets.

Business Model Assessment

The Company makes an objective assessment of the business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolic level, because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

» The stated policies and objectives for the portfolic and the operation of those policies in practice,
In particular, whether management’'s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

v The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such safes and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered
in isclation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company's stated objective for
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized;

« The risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within
that business model} and how those risks are managed.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to thelr initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business mode! for managing financial assets,
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Fair Valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction hetween market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects it non — performance risk,

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.”

1.16.10 De-recognition / Medification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

{A)

{i}

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily de-recognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’' arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or [b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contrel of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially afl of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. The Company also
recognise a liability for the consideration received attributable to the Company’s continuing
involvement on the asset transferred. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On de-recognition of # financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset de-recognised} and the sum of (i} the
consideration received (including any new asset obiained less any new liability assumed) and {i} any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl s recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial liahility when its contractual cbligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

Madifications of financial assets and financial Habilities
Financial assets

if the terms of a financial asset are modifted, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
modification results in de-recognition of the original financial asset and new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

if the cash flows of the modified asset are not substantially different, then the modification does not
result in de-recognition of the financial asset, In this case, the Company recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss, Any costs or fees incurred adjust the
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are-amortised over the remaining term of the
rmodified financial asset by recomputing the EiR rate on the instrument.

if such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or
loss is presented together with impairment lesses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income,

Financial liahilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial fiability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with medified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.

i the modification is not accounted as derecognition, then the amortised cost of the liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original £IR and the resulting gainor loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified
financial liahility and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by
recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument.”

1.16.11 Offsetting of Financial instruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simuitaneously.
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1.16.12 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises impairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not
measured at FVTPL. No impairment loss is recognised on equity investmaents.

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

» Financial Assets that are not credit impaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

s Financial Assets with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired — as the present
value of all cash shortfalls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial asset,

* Financial Assets that are credit impaired — as the difference between the gross carrying amount
and the present value of estimated cash flows

* Undrawn Loan Commitments ~ as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive with respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,

toss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets, For financial assets at FVTOC, the loss allowance is recognised in OCH

1.16.13 Write-off of Financial Assets

1.17

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the
company determines that the borrower does not have assets or scurces of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write — off. This assessment is
carried out at the individual asset level.

However, financial assets that are written off could stil be subject to enforcement activities under
the group's recovery procedures, taking inte account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision matrix
method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on three
years rolling average default rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on total credit risk
exposure on trade recaivables and outstanding for more than one year at the reporting date to
determine lifetime Expected Credit Losses.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The expenses and income in foreign exchange transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing
on the date of transactions / at the forward rate, if booked, for such transaction. Assets and liabilities
held in foreign currencies and accrued income and expenditure in foreign currencies are transiated
into Indian Rupees at the rates advised by Foreign Exchange Dealers Assoctation of India (FEDAI)
prevailing towards the close of the accounting period. Gains / losses, if any, on valuation of various
assets and liabilities are faken to Statement of Profit & Loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

iii,

wi,

Rental income from Investment Property / Flats held as Inventories is recognized on a straight
line basis over the period of lease terms.

Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the Effective Interast Rate method,
Interest income from Bank Deposits is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis.

income by way of Fees for Project Advisory and Execution services is recorded on accrual basis
as per services rendered pursuant to the specific service agreements.

Revenue from the external project services is recognized based on the Cost-plus method. A fixed
mark-up percentage is added to the cost incurred towards construction and the total is
recognized as revenue. The stage of completion is determined on the basis of work completion
certificate obtained from the engineer/ architect.

Revenue from real estate development of constructed properties is recognized based on the
“percentage of completion method”, Sale consideration as per the legally enforceable
Agreements to Sell entered into is recognized as revenue based on the percentage of actual
project costs incurred to total eslimated project cost, subject to following:

Actual cost incurred is not less than 25 percent of the total estimated project cost,

No significant uncertainty exists regarding receipt of consideration from the customers,
In case of overdue, on actual realization basis.

All significant risks and rewards are transferred to the customer.

o0 T

Project cost includes cost of land, estimated cost of construction and development of such
properties. The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed periodically and effact of
any changes in such estimates recognized in the period such changes are determined.
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vil. Revenue from hospitality services is recognized on accrual basis.

a. Seling price is determined on the basis of published rack rate less discount offered to

customers,

b. Income in foreign exchange: The bills for services rendered are raised in Indian Rupees.
The payment received in foreign currency against these bills, is credited and accounted
for at the rate / rates prevalent on the date of receipt of payment. The gains/ losses
arising out of the fluctuation in the exchange rates are accounted for on realization.

viii. Dividend income is recognized at the time the right to receipt s established.

ix. Other items of income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when control of
respective goods or service has been transferred to customaer,

%. The company shall recognize revenue in accordance with ind AS 115 — "Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” as and when any such revenue instance occurs.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends and Dividend Distribution Tax thereon are recognised if and only when the same are
approved by the shareholders in the general meeting and conseguently paid to the sharehoiders.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Employee benefits include: short — term employee benefits, post -
employment benefits and other long —lerm employee benefits.

Short Term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the company during an accounting period, the company
recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service as a liahility {accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid
and as an expense. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve
months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the reporting date.
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Defined Benefit Plans — Gratuity & Leave Encashment

Defined benefit plans are those pfans that provide guaranteed benefits to certain categories of
employees, either by way of contractual obligations or through a collective agreement. The company
operates unfunded defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each fiscal year end. The
obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earped in return for their
service in the current costs and the fair value of any plan assets, if any is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Accrued Benefit Method (same as Projected Unit Credit Method),
which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of emplovee benefit
entitlement and measures each unif separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation
results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contribution to the plan,

The change in defined benefit plan liability is split into changes arising out of service, interest cost
and re-measurements and the change in defined benefit plan asset is split between interest income
and re-measurements. Changes due to service cost {which is the increase of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from the employee service in the current period} and net interest
cost / income {which is the change during the period in the defined benefit Hability that arises from
the passage of time)} is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements of net
defined benefit liability / {asset} which comprise of the below are recognized in other comprehensive
income:

» Actuarial gains and losses;

» The return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

fiahility {asset)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the income Tax Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax
effects of temporary differences between tax base and book base). it is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it refates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity
orin OCL.

Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year
in accordance with the income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the tax payabie on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. it is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Minimum
Alternative Tax {"MAT'} under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and loss. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b} intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simuitaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s judgement, are
reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that the refated tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can he
used, Deferred tax is measured at the tax rales that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tox rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

h) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority.
Current and Deferred Tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to iterns that are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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1.22.4 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set —off against the normal tax lability.
MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the
extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for
prior period presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, by restating the opening statement of financial position.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Rasic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the vyear attributable to the
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year atiributable to the

shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during
the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two reportable business segments namely — ‘Real Estate Activities'
comprising of Advisory and Execution Services, Purchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and
Development of Real Estate Projects and in "Hospitality’ provided throuph Serviced Apartments
under the brand name ‘Fraser Suites’.

ALLOCATION OF COMMON COSTS

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow statement is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 - "Statement of
Cash Flows”.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{®% it Lakhs}
Nete No, Particubars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
PROPERTY PLANT AND ECHHPMENT
Gross Carrylng Value
Opening Balante
a. Land 6,225.29 £,22829
b. Buildings 10,63048 10.630.46
¢, Plant and Equipments £114.1% 2,118,058
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,847.90 1,851.24
o. Vehlcles 76,80 Te.o0
{, Cthers 178,80 11854
21,026.54 21,023.52
Additions f (Sale) during the perlod
a. Land - -
b. Buddings B .
¢ Mant and Equipments 17.44) {3.89)
d. Furniwre aod Fiures {0.25} {3.34}
e, Vehicles - -
f. Others 064 10,25
{7.03} 202
Closing Balance -
2 Land 622829 6,726.2%
k. Brdldings 10,630.46 1363046
c. Plant and Fquipmoents 2,106.74 7,114.1%
. Fuznituee and Fisteres 1,841.67 1,847,580
&, Vehicies 76,90 7680
f. Others 129.44 12880
21,019.51 21,006.54
Accumubated Depreclation
Opening Bafance
a land 3238 29,13
& Baildings 195416 1,785.50
. Plant and Equipments 1,411.23 1,268.52
Note d. Ferniture and Flxtures 1, 74941 174561
Ne. 2 [& Wehicies 70.80 63,26
[ Othes 108,77 99,20
5,327.54 4,687.432
bepreclation for the period
2 Laad - 3.05
by fuidings 168,57 168.57
¢, Flant and Equipments 24055 142.71
o, Furniture and Fixtures 1.89 3.80
e Vehicles 1.43 1.43
{. Dthers 3.37 10,56
315.82 330,13
Clostng Batance of Accumulated PBepreclation
a tand 32.18 3r1%
b, Buildings 2,122.74 1,556,160
. Plant and Equipments 1,551.78 1,411.23
vl Fersituee and Fixtures 1,751.30 1,749.41
e, Vehities 72.23 VO.BO
f. {Otdsers 113,13 108,77
& f43. 30 532754
Wet Carrying Value of Property, Plant and Equipment (A)
a. Lang 6,186.12 £,1%0.12
b, Buitdings 8,507.72 BE7E.29
¢. Ptant and {quipments L5496 0296
d. Furpiture and Fixteres 9657 G849
o Vehicles (R 6.11
{.(Mhers 1£.20 1903
TOTAL 15,376.15 15,6900
Chut af {A) above, ieaschold property, plant and cquipment
[5.72}

a. Right of use of Land on Finence Leass




FCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CiN : U45400DL2007G0O1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 019 (1)

NOTES FORMING PARY OF BALANCE SHEEY
as at 31st March 2024

(% I Lakhs}

Note
Na.

Particulars

As at 315t Mareh 2024

As at 3xst Miarch 2023

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Gross Larrying Value
Cpening Balante

a. Flats 92040 029,40
Additions / {Sale) during the pariod
u. Flats -731.37 -
Closing Balance
& Flats 198,02 ©729.40
Note jaccomutated Depreciation
Mo, 3 Opening Balinge
& Flats 21868 16308
Depreciation {or the peried
a, Flats -20.6% 3839
Closing Balance of Accomulated Depreciation
a. Flats 198.02 215.68
Wet Carsying Value of investment Property
a. Fiats - 710,72
{X in Lakhs}
MNote .
No. Partitulars As at 315t March 2024 #s at 315t March 2022
GOODWILL
Note {Gocdwil : -
No. 4 "
% in Lakhs)
iote
No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
GTHER INTANGIBELE ASSETS
Gross Carrying Value
Qpening Balance
a. Computer Sofbwsre 2619 26,19
b Licenses and Franchises H0.00 &0.00
£6.19 86,39
Additlens / (Szle) during the period
a. Computer Software 012 -
b Lrennses and Franchises - -
0.1 -
Clasing Bajance
& Computer Saftware 6,31 P L]
1. Licenses and Franchises £0.400 60,00 |
8631 856149
Accurmulated Amortization
Note {Opening Balance
No. 5 fa. Computer Seftware 24.90 2363
b, Licenses and Franchises 40.76 2877
h5.60 S2.40
Amortization for the period
a. Computer Soitware {40 1.87
b, ticonses sne Franchises 12,02 11,99
12.42 13.25
Cinsing Balance of Accurmulated Depreciation
. Compuiter Software 2530 2450
L. Licensos and Franchises 5278 40,76
7808 6206
et Carrying Value
2. Comauter Software 1.0 1.29
b Licenses and Franchises 22 15.24
T0TALY £.23 e
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
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NOTES FORMING RPART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{% In Lakhs)
Note .
No. Particufars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS
a, Investments in Equity instruments
i. Subsidiaries
1. HDL Realtors Private Limited 2,895,322 2,995.32
ii. Others
1. Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited 450.73 £54.83
2. Other Entities 100.00 160.00
3,546.05 3,750.15
b. Investments in Preference Shares
i. Subsidiaries
Note 1. HDL Realtors Private Limited 505.73 505,73
50573 505.73
No. 6 ¢. investmenis in Debentures / Bonds
1. IFC! Limited - Bonds 7,500.00 7,500.00
2. IFCI Limited - Tax Free Bonds - 2,000.15
7,500.00 9,500.15
11,551.78 13,756.03
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 11,551.78 13,7%6.03
Market Value of Ungquoted nvestmants 11,551.78 13,756.03
Aggregate amount of iImpairment in value of investments 389.70 195.60

(% in Lakhs)
r\]l“ote Particufars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3ist March 2023
o.
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
a. Security Deposits
i Secured, considered good - B
. Unsecured, considered good 763.54 £96.02
Note iit, Doubtful . .
763.5 02
No. 7 ' 63.54 696,02
b, Loans to related parties - i
¢. Other loans - -
763.54 696.02
{2 in Lakhs)
NNote Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
o. _

Note
No. 8

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Sundry Deposits

Finance Lease Receivable

Bank Deposits with malurity more than 12 months

647.47 647.18
3,233.60 1,834.68
3,881.07 2,481.86
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fFCT INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400D1L2007G0O1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (iN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(% in Lakhs)

Note No. Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
INVENTORIES
a. Raw Materials $.89 6.55
Cut of {a) above, goods in transit - -
9.89 6.55
b Work - n - Progress . 1,321.23
Out of [b) above, goods in transit - _
- 1,321.23
Not ¢. Stores and spares 720 a8.17
ote Qut of {c} above, goods in transit - -
No. 9 7.20 8.17
d. Others
i. Land 5,759.88 4,518.27
ii. Land on iease cum sale basis 1,177.24 1,276.85
tit. Consumables 12.06 14.69
5,949.19 5,809.82
6,966.28 7,145.77
{% in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
a. Secured considered good
b. Unsecured considered good
i. Due over six months 184.67 216.00
Note ii. Other Trade Receivablas 39.09 72.54
No. 10 223.76 288.54
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtful Debts 117.61 62.92
Net Unsecured considered good 106.14 225.62
106,14 225.62
{% in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As 3t 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a. Balances with Banks 80.42 69.06
80.42 69.06
b. Cheques and Drafts on Hand
Note c. Cash on Hand 1.65 1.79
No. 11 1.65 1.79
d. Others
i. Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 5,013.58 506818
5,013.58 5,968,148
5,005 .66 5,0359.02
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CiN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi- 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{Xin Lakhs}
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
BANK BALANCES OTHER TBAN {iii)
Note |Deposits with maturity between 3 and 12 months 6,805.54 5,859.28
No. 12 6,805.54 5,959.28
{T in Lakhs)
Nate Na. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
a. Security Deposits " "
b. Loans to related parties - -
¢. Other loans
Note i. Doubtful 4.49 0.35
No. 13 4.49 .35
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtful Debts 4.49 0.35
et Other Laans - -
{% in Lakhs)
Note Na. Particuiars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Note a. Interest Accrued on Deposits 388.34 356.81
b. Interest Accrued on Bonds £634.32 633.82
No. 14 1,523.15 980.63
(X in Lakhs)
MNote No, Particulars As at 31ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TAX ASSETS
a. Advance Tax - -
Note b. Tax Deducted at Source 802.17 625.12
¢. MAT Credit Entitlement 836.75 836.75
NO. 15 |t ocs - provision for Tax 581.86 457.87
1,057.07 64,00

MNote: Provisian for tax, TDS, TCS, reconciliation process is under way.
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{FCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{€Lin Lakhs}
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHERS CURRENT ASSEYS
a. Capital Advances - -
b, Advances Cther than Capital Advances
Note _
Other Advances 351.64 337.05
No. 16 351,69 337.05
¢. Others - -
351.69 337.0%
{% in Lakhs)
Nate No. Particulars As gt 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
EQUITY
Authorized Share Capital
100,00,00,000 {Previous year - 100,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
issued Share Capitat
42,70,99,243 {Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
cach 42,709.92 42,709.92
N 42,709.82 42,709.92
ote Subscribed Share Capital
No. 17145 70,599,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
cach 42,709.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,708.92
faid Up Share Capital
42,70,99,243 [Previous year - 42,70,99,243; Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
cach 42,705.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,709.92
TOTAL 42,709.92 42,709,932
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G 01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN})

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{Xin Lakhs)

Note No. Particuiars

As at 31st tviarch 2024

As at 31st March 2023

QOTHER EQUITY
Share application money pending allotment
Equity component of other Financial instruments

Note {reserve and Surplus
No. 18 |Capital Redemption Reserve £,812.91 6,812.91
Retained Earnings 1,241.13 2,740.22
Other Comprehensive income 28,94 25.91
8,082.98 5,579.14
Note No. 18 {i)
Capital Redemption Reserve {X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 5,812.91 5,812.91
Appropriations during the year - -
Closing Balance 5,812.91 5,812.91
Note No. 18 {ii)
Retained Earnmings (% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 2,740.32 1,i27.41
Net Profit for the period 9949.34 1,612.81
tems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings - -
interim Dividend paid to Equity Shareholders -2,488.53 -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - -
Closing Balance 1,241.13 2,740.32
Note No. 18 (i)
Other Comprehensive income {%in Lakhs}
Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 2591 30.20
Remeasurements of post - employement benefit obiigations, net of taxes 3.03 -4.29
28.94 2591

Closing Balance
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IFCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st Mareh 2024 As at 3kst March 2023
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Note 3. Preference Shares -
b. Bonds / Debentures - .
No. 1% - -
(¥ in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL UIABILITIES
a. Retention Mongy . -
Note
b. Finance Lease Liability 0.00 1.02
No. 20 0.00 1.02
{% in Lakhs)
Note No. Particuiars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
a. Provision for emplovee benefits
i. Gratuity 81.37 86.05
Note i. Leave Encashment 2831 28.81
119.68 114.86
No, 21 b. Gthers
i. Provision for Expense 351.46 388.97
471,14 503.83
{T in Ltakhs)
MNote No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES {NET)
3. Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of
i. Due to depreciation 393.34 365.09
ii. Others £658.23 639.45
Note 1,051.57 1,004.54
No. 22 jtess
i. Others 106.85 106.85
106.85 106.85
944.72 897,65
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IFCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCi Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs}
Note No., Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Deferred income - .
Note
b. Others - _
No. 23 - -
{% in Lakhs}
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3ist March 2023
CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES
a. Mi i A
Note a. Micro and Small enterprises .40 4.87
b. Others 141,19 105,63
No. 24 141.58 11050
{% in Lakhs)
Note Na. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Note |Other Payables 369,01 392.41
No. 25 369.01 352.41
{X in Lakhs)
Note Na. Particuiars As at 31st March 2024 As at 3ist March 2023
OTHER CURRENT UIABILITIES
a. Advances Received 689.78 7H4.68
Note [b. Other Advances 40.11 27.81
No. 26 |c Statutory dues payable 28.30 7.85
758.19 8200.44
{% in Lakhs}
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
a. Provisions for employee benefits
i. Gratuit 5.82 5.42
Note ' y
i, Leave Encashment 2.92 3.05
No. 27 h. Others - 22.1%
B.74 a0.58
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IFCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (iN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(% in Lakhs)
Note No. particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 WMarch 2023
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a. Sale of Properties 53.55 168.60
b. Sale of Services 32.20 31.79
Note ¢. Room Rent 1,456.18 1,630.71
d. Proceeds from Restaurant 177.14 215,12
No.28 e. Revenue fram external projects - -
f. Other Operating Revenues 63.83 19.76
1,782.89 2,066.99
{% in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
OTHER INCOME
a. Interest income
i. Earned and Accrued on Deposits 956,52 710.03
il. tarned and Accrued on IFCES.7% RRB Bonds 728.00 127.50
iif. Farned and Accrued on Tax Free Bonds 167.80 167.80
iv, Others 68.53 60.35
Note 1,920.85 1,66568
b, Dividend Income - -
No. 29 ¢, Deferred Income - Land . 221.49
d. Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 122.57
e. Provision Reversal - -
f. Miscettaneous Income 70.95 B87.67
193,52 308.16
2,114.37 1,974.84
{% in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No. Particulars March 2024 March 2023
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
a. Opening Stock 7,116.36 7,344,727
b. Purchases i37.84 176.23
Note 7,254.20 7,520.95
No. 30} ... Closing Stock 6,937.13 7,116.36
317.07 404.59
{% in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No. Particulars March 2024 March 2623
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Note a. Salaries and Wages 571.87 559.36
b. Staff WeHare 36.40 33.10
No. 31 608.27 597.46




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 019 (1N}

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars for the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
FINANCE COST
Note a. Fair Value Changes in EQuity Investments -
b. Other nterest Costs - 0.10
MNo. 32 N 0.10
{% in Lakhs)
Note No. particulass For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
NET 1OSS ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value though Profit and Loss
Note {a. Oninvestments 204,10 -
No. 33 |b Others - -
204.10 .
{Xin Lakhs)
Note No Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
) March 2024 March 2023
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATICN
a, Depreciation on Tangible Assets
N i. Property, Plant and Equipment 315.82 330.13
ote i, Investmant Property -20.65 38.59
No. 341y amortization an Intangible Assets 12.42 13.25
307.58 381.97
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FCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CiN : U45400D1L2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCt Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{¥X in Lakhs)
Note No. particulars For the year ended 315t For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
OTHER EXPENSES
a. Repairs and Maintenance
i. Building 50.72 41.71
it. Others 38.08 33.57
88.80 75.28
fr. Rent Paid {including Lease Rent) 17.64 63.74
c. Rates and Taxes 92.44 65,12
d. Travelling and Conveyances 5.28 6.27
e. Legal And Professional Expenses 62.45 25.70
f. Security Expenses 85.72 89.63
g. Auditors's Remuneration 2.27 2.00
h. insurance Charges Paid 10.55 13,39
i Training & Development Expenses - 8.50
i. Tetephone & Postage Expenses 3.98 7.52
k. Laundry & Cleaning 23,05 16.22
Note . Tete.:vis:.ion & MusiF 0.48 1.20
m. Printing and Stationery 5.44 5.75
No. 35 n. Directors Fee 2.86 362
o. Fuel & Gas 4857 61.73
p. Commission & Brokerage 140.96 135.95
g. Marketing and License 8.08 548
r. Advertisement and Exhibition Expenses 1.56 3.35
s. Compensation-21st Milestone Project i8.74 .
t. Vehicle Running & Maintenance 0.35 0.90
w. Electricity & Water £xpenses 255.79 268.73
v, Provision for [nterest & Expenses 22,11 22.11
w. Provision for Service Tax Cenvat 36.88 -
x. Provisian for Doubtful Debts S6.21 -
y. Corporate Sociat Responsibility Expenditure 24.86 24,73
z. Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 12.57 14.04
aa. Other Miscellaenous Expenses 79.94 32.61
1,107.58 953.57
{% in Lakhs)
Nota No Particulars For the year anded 31st Far the year ended 31st
' March 2024 March 2023
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFT AND LOSS
a. Acturial Gain / {Loss) 4.20 -5.95
Note 4.20 -5.95
No. 36 jtess: Tax on Above 1.47 ~1.65
3.03 -4.29
{% in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No. Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Exceptional items
Note | japitity Written Back -
No. frovision Reversal -
36A
Provision Reversat - -63.24
Total - -63.24
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TFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN}

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 37 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

{X in Lakhs}
parti For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
articulars
March 2024 March 2023
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders {in Rs.} 1,002.37 1,608.61
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 4,270.99 4,270.99
Face Value per Equity Share {in Rs.) 0.00 0.00
Sasic and Diluted Earning Per Share {in Rs.} 0.23 0.28
Note No. 38 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
{X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 315t | For the year ended 31st
Particuiars
March 2024 March 2023
Audit Fees .50 1.50
Certilication and Other Services 0.77 0.50
Travelling and Out of Pocket expenses .02 .
TOTAL 2.28 2.00
Note No., 39 - TAX EXPENSES
[X in Lakhs)
Particutars for the year ended 3ist | For the vear ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Current Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 307.45% 281.83
b. In respect of Previous Years - -
307.45 281.83
Deferred Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 47.03 31.34
TOTAL 354.48 31358
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{FCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : UA5400DL2007G0OH169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 {IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 20249

Note No. 40 - SEGMENT REFORTING

The Company operates in two reportable bursiness segment namely ‘Real Estate Activities” comprising Advisory and Execution Services,
Furchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and Development of Real Estate Frojects and in "Hospitality' comprising of Serviced
Apartments ender the brand name ‘DL Suites’, Hence the sepment wise disciasure as required by ind AS - 108 is a5 undor:

{% tn Lakhs}

. Division
Particulars Consolidated Total
Real Estate Haspitality

SEGMENT REVENUE
Sates -
Bramestic 85.75 1.687.14 1,742.89
Export - - .
Inter Sepment Sates . - -
Other income 2,080.90 33.46 2,114.37
Total Revenue 2,166.65 1,730.61 3,807.26
SEGMIENT EXPENSES
Operating Expenses 855.07 1,381.95 2,237.03
Depraciation & Amartizalion Allocated {8.58) 316.17 307.58
Operating Profit 1,320.16 32.48 1,352.65
interest Cost Allocated - - -
Proflt Before Exceptional item and Tax 1,320.16 32.48 1,352.65
OTHER INFORMATION )
Sepmental Assels 36,893.07 16,593.22 53,486.28
Segmental Liabilities 36,853.07 16,593.22 53,486.29
Exceptipnal [tems - - -

Note No. 41 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

i. Name of the related partles and doscription of ralationship -
A, Enterprises having significant influence aver the company

IFC| Limited - Hotding Company

HOL Reallors Private Limited - Whotly owned Subsidiary Company

B, Enterprises having retated party dealings whth the company
langipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited - Investment in Equity Shares
HFCH Facters Limited - Controlled by Parent Company

IFCYVENTURE CAPTAL FUNDS UMITED - Controlied by Parent Company
C. Key Managerial Personnel {Directors during the £Y 2022 - 23 and Fy 2023 - 24}
e, Prasoon : cessation wee f. 19/08/2022

t4r. Sunil Kurmar Bansal: cessation w.e.f, 18/05/2022

tar. Sachikanta Mishra : appointed w.e.f. 02/10/2022

nar. Mijay Kumar Tyagi @ appointed we £ 26/04/2023

ke, Debashis Gupta ; cessation w.e £ 20/12/3023

wir. Rahul Bhave | appointed w.e.f, 26/12/2023

M1, Vijay Kumar Deshia ; w.e.f, 02/098/2022 (MD till 18/01/2024)

Mr. Amrendra Kumar : appoimnted w.ef. 18/01/2624

Me. Manaj Mittal -~ appointed w.e.f, 15/06/2021

Mz, Venugopal K Nair @ 25/08/2018

Dr. Sumita Rai @ 14/05/2018

wir. Vishat Pandey (CFO} : till 26.05.2023

fis. Hidhi Agarwal {CFO) © appointed wef 13.07.7023

Wis, Tannw Sharma (CS): til} 15.02,2023

fis. Ricenakshi Miltal (08} cwoo f 23100023 10 15.03.2074

K, Pooir Vanjani {L5) : appoimted woe f 26.03.2024
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IFCE INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007GOI169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

iii. Dretalls of transactions with KMiPs during the year

(% In Lakhs}
particulars For the year encded 335t { For the year ended 235st
March 2024 March 2023
i. Whole Time Directors f CFO [/ Company Sacretary
a. Short term employes benefitg 73.97 7267
b. Other leng term employee benefits 5.25
¢. Post employmient beaefits 4,79
. Others {specify} - -
23.80 72.67
il. Independent / Nominea Directors
a. Sitting Fees 286 362
b, Others {Conveyante} Q.12 -
2.98 3.62
86,78 76.29
Note No, 42 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{. Interest Rate Risk Managemant
The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because company has borrowed funds at fixed interest rates,
il, Break up of Financial Instruments carried at falr value through Profit and toss
{2 th Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 Karch 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans 763.54 GIE.02
Other Financial Assets 2,170.63 990.63
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES - -
Other Finantial Liabifities 0.00 1.02
2,934.16 1,687.67
iii. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at amortised costs
) {€1n Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
fnvestments 11,551.78 13,756.03
Trade fieceivables 106,14 22542
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,085.66 6,03%.03
flank Batances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,039.13 7,703.95
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trage Payables 141.58 65.56
Other Financial Liabilities 369.01 428.17
TOTAL 27,303.31 28,308.36 |
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 019 {IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No, 43 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Note No. 43 [i) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
{% In Lakhs}

Particulars As gt 315t Miarch 2024 As at 315t March 2023

A} Claims against Company not acknowiedeged as Debts
{B) Bank Guaranlees provided -
{C} Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o he exccuted
{i} On Capital / Revenue Account {net of advances) and not provided for -
{D} Export obligations under EPCG Licenses
(E} Contingent Liabillty towars income Tax/Gst is as under - -

Note Na. 43 {ia) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS INCOME TAX

Forum from where
Assessment Year Amount [Rs. in Lacs) demand pending /
addition imposed
2012-13 63.02 1TaY
2013. 14 49.07 ITAT
2014 - 15 48.73 ITAT
2015 16 75.85 Cit{A)
2016 - 17 24,16 ITAT
201718 58.60 CITiAl
2018 - 19 73.53 crC
2018 - 20 1.34 CPC
2030 - 21 82,92 [ax s
2021. 22 222.61 CrC
2022-23 i68.15 cro

for AY.12-13, 13-34,14-15 and 16-17, appeat has been filed with income tax appelate Tribunal, For ALY, 15-16 and 17-18, the cases arg
pending before T Appeals. For rest of the cases, rectification under section 154 has been fited with Income Tax Deptt,

Note No. 43 (ib) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS G5T

Forem from where
Assessment Year [ $tate | Amaunt (Rs. in Lacs} demand pending /
atldition imposed
2017 - 18/ Delhi 21.08 G5T Appealate
2017 - 18/ U.P, .81 GST Appealate

For both the above cases, appeat has been filed with GST Depli.

Note No. 43 {ii}

Against Sonepat Land Regionat Provident Fund Commissioner - H has ordered for the recovery of those defaulted by the earticr company,
i.e. Maryana Shee! Glass Hmited {HSGL). A Writ Petition has been filed by the company before High Court of Punjab and Haryana at
Chandigrah apainst the said order. The Court was of prima facle opinten that proper procedures has not been followed in assessing the
fiability, Accordingly, the impugned order has been quashed giving liberly to PF department to decide alresh after following due
procedure. The matier is Sulrjudice.

Note No. 43 {iH) .
The Company has receivad a notice from AIG Stamp Ghaziabad, for short payment of stamp duty armounting to Rs, 150.02 Lakhs. The

Honable hiph court has pranted stay in favour of the company & the case is pending for the further hearing.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCt Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {iN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 43 (lv}

An award dated 25.01,2018 was passed by the Arbitral Tribunal in the arbitration proceedings belwesn M/ Subir Enpinesring Work{s) Pvt
Ltd, vs. DL directing M, to pay claimant Rs.768.00 Iakhs wilh interes! @ 6% from 27.10.2016 against the total claim of Rs.2118 lakhs
claimed by the Claimant, {The Award includes VAT amount of Rs, 309,00 fakhs and security deposit of Rs.272.00 lakhs}, HDL has fited &
petition vfs 34 of The Arbitration and Conciliation Act 129G before Hom'ble Delli High Court against this award. Further, an amount of Rs,
405,00 fakhs bas bean deposited in the courl as per the direclion of Honalde High Court. The matter is Sub-judice before DHC.

Naote No, 43 (v}

The Company is contesting several matlers pertaining toits project 2150 Milesione Restdency al Ghaziabad before Real Estate Regulatory
Authority/Rest Estate Appeltate Tribunal. in two of the matters i.e, Bwarikesh Sugar Industries Limited and Amit Kumar Shrivastava, an
altachrent order was passed by the RERA authorily against which the company has fited an appeal before REAT. Wherein as per the
direction of the tribunat, the company has deposited an smount of Bs, 19,51 Lakhs,

Note No. 43 {vi)

The Arhitrator passed an award on 21.02.2022 observing that the Claimant has been found entitled to a total sum of Rs. 442,47 Lakhs as
against sum of Rs, 200.61 Lakhs held recoverable by HDL from SBTL under its Counter Clatm with respect to amount to be recovered from
Wifs SBTL from its retention money for work done by 1IDL and Rs. 100 takhs towards liquidaled damages recoverable under Lhe Counter
Claim of BDL, Setting off the said amount against the amount found payalle to SBTL, SBTL shall be entitled to a sum of Rs. 141.87 Lakhs
anly,

accordingly, an award of Rs. 141,87 Lakhs in favour of SBTL in full and linal settlement of all the disputes and the dlaims and the counter
claims arising rom the dispuies along with intergst on the amount awarded in the favor of S8TL @ 9% p.a from 5.08.2019 tIiE the date the
awarded amount is paid, passed by the Arbitrator. Further, SBTE shaill also be entitled 1o propartionate costs of arbitration proceedings @
Rs. 15 Lakhs. The same paid to SBTL on 26-07-2022. The matter is Subjudice belore DHC.

Note No, 44 - DIsclosure as per IndAS - 11 Construction Contracts
{i} DL has constructed & campus for MBI Gurgaon at Jangipor, District - Murshidabad, West 8engal. The financials refating to the contrac]

are as undor:

PARTICULARS Arnount (75, in Lacs)

Contract

Contract revenue recognized during the year
Contract expenses recognized during the year
Recognized Prafits

Total Contract Costs {spprax.) .
Amount recoverable lrom MDE 24,14

-Cost-plus Contract Melhod has been used to determine the Contract revenue recopnized in the period.
-The stage of completion has been determined on the basis of Work Completion Certificale obtained from engineer / architect,
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN : U45400DL2007G0I169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

NOTE NO. 45 - ADDITIONAL INFOGRMATION PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

{X i Lakhs)
Quantitative Information in respect of Inventories
Description Purchases i Sales
CURRENT YEAR
Units Amount Unlts Amount
{Locations) {Locations)

Land & Building - - 5355
wachinery & Equipmaont .
Additional Costincurrod on
Existing Properties
Raw Material Consumables
and Stores - 52.67 177.314

PREVIOUS YEAR
Lang & Building - - - 169.60
Fachinery & Equipment - - -
Additional Cost incurred on
Existing Properties -
Raw Materta! Consumables
and Stores - 50,93 - 215.12

Opening Stock Closing Stock
CURRENT YEAR
Hnlts Units
{Locations) Amount {Locations) Amauint

Land & Bullding - 5. 705,12 - 6,937.13
tdachinery & Equipment - -
waork-in-Fropresss - 1,321.23 -
Consumables and Stores - 23,86 - 19.26

PREVIOUS YEAR
Land & Building - 5,795.13 5,7095.13
hachinery & Eguipment - -
Work-in-Progresss - 1,549.59 1,321.23
Consumables and Stores - 35.94 23.86
Note:

1. Land and Bulldings include units of differemt areas having varied description for ts types f stage of construction / develppment, for

which it is not practical to make it individually descriptive for guantitative disclesure,

2. Consumables & Stores Include various F&S, House Keeping, Diesel and Engineering refated stores for which it 1s not practical to make

It Incfividually descriptive for guantitative disclosure,

3. Work in progress is classified/ Included In Land and building as there Is no WIP in the company.
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JFCIINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT HIMITED

CIN : U45400D12007G01169232

Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FCt Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 018 {IN)

NOQTES FORMING PARY OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Naote No. 46 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Noto No, 46 {i) - Defined benefit plans

Brief Description: A general description of the lype of Employee Benefits Plans is as follows:
1. Earned teave (EL) Benefit

Salary - Last drawn qualilying salary

Accrual - 33 days per year

Maximum Accumulation - 300 days

Encashment while in service - 100% of earned leave balance, subject to maximum 90 days per vear

Encashment on retirement - Maximum uptlo 300 days or actual accumatation, whichever is 1ess, subject to 30 days balance in the account

of the employee

2. Gratuity

Satary - Last drawn gualifying salary

Accrual - 15 days salary for each completed year of service
Vesting Periad - § years of service

Limit - Maximum of INR 20,00,000

Note No. 46 (i) - The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows -

Assumptions as at March 33, 2024

5. No. Particutars March 31, 2024 Narch 31, 2023
oL - Corporate office
Gratuity
1. Discount fate 7108 7435
2. Eupected return on plan assets NA B
3. Annual increase in cosls Ty WA
4. Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00%
Leave Encashment
5, Discount rate 7.10% 7.43%
o, Expected return on plan assets NA, NA
7. Annual increase in costs NA NA
A Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00%
iDL Sultes - A unit of HDL
Gratutty
1. Discount rate 1.23% 7.38%
2 Expected return on plan assets 278 MA
3 Annual increase in costs WA A
4. Annual increase in salary B.00% B.00%
Leave Encashment
5 Discount rate 7.23% 7384
f. Expecied return on plan assets WA 3
7. Anndal increase in costs HA WA
8. Annual increase in salary R.00% 8.00%

Note Mo, 46 (i) - The discount rate is based upon the market yield avatlable or Government bonds st the Accounting date with @ term
that matches. The calary growth takes account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor on long term basis. Expected rate
of return onr plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, lor return aver the entire life of the related

obligation.
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{FC1 INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007GOI169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 47 - Disciosure ufs 22 of MSMED Act, 2006

k. The company has requested information {rom ait Its vendors regarding their status of registration in accordance with the Micro, Smali
ang Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("The Act™). Out of the same, vendors who did not send any conlirmation have baen
taken to be non MSME vendors, Disclosure required under Section 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006 is as under -

{% in Lakhs)
Particelars Far the year ended 315t For the year ended 315t
March 2024 NMarch 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the Act and remaining unpaid 0.40 087

as al year end

Interes! due 1o supphers registered under the Act and remaining unpoaid as at year
end .

Frincipal amounts paid 1o suppliers registered under the Act, beyond the
appointed day durlng the year

Interest paid other than under Section 16 of the Act to suppliers registered under
the Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

tnterest pafd under Section 16 of the Act Lo suppliers registered under the Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

interest due and payabtle towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
2006 {or payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

Note No. 28 - iIMPAIRMENT LOSSES

As certified by the management of the company, non financial assets of the company have not been impaired during the year and there is
ne indication of a potentiat impairment loss, therefore the need to make an estimation of recoverable amount does not arise,

Note No. 49 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY {ind AS 40)

{i) Amout recognized in Statement of Prefit & Loss for investment Properties

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 33st for the year ended 335t
Warch 2024 March 2023

Rental income 31.79%
Maintenance & Other Reimbursements received .
Direct operating expenses from property generating Rental income fincluding
Repair & Maintenance} )
Profit from Investment Froperties - 31.79

The rental income of Rs. 31.79 Lakhs was from varicus properties and not specHic 1o the Investment Property at Vasanl Vihar, which was

not {eased diring the Year 2022-23.
{it} Leasing Arrangements

Mo inwestment properly was leased.

(iH] Fair Value

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Flat 31 Vasenl Vihar, Dethi®

947.70

* Above property was seld during the Financial year 2023-24,
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IFCEHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, iIFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEETY
as at 31st March 2024

Mote No. 48 A -
inventory includes fease hold riphts of Financial City Bengaluru property amounting 10 Rs. 1377.24 lakhs for 4.37 acres of land, lease period
for 2.37 acres of land was expired on 02.11.2021 and for other 2 acres of land, lease period was expired on 12.10,2022, however the same
is extendable under clause no. 23 of the Lease cum Sale agreement entered hetween 0L and KIADS. The request tetter for renewal of
tease period of 50 acres fand has been submitted with KIADE and renewal of the same is under process till the finalization of books of
FCLounts,

Note No. 50 - ADDHTIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER PARA 53 OF IndAS 116 - LEASES

i. Additional distlosures required under Para 53 of ind AS 116 are as under -

{% in Lakhs)
parti For the year ended 3%t | For the year ended 31st
articulars
March 2024 March 2023

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assels by class of underlying asset B .63
Interest expense on lease Habililies - .56
income from subleasing right-of-use assels - 0.5
Total cash outfiow for leases - 4.25
Additions to right-of-use assets - -
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of reporting period 0.00 102

ii. Right ol use assets accounted is for land received from Karnataka Industrial Development Board measuring a total of 50 acres, out of
which, 38.63 acres has been further sub-leased on sub-lease cum sale basis to various financial institutions, Further, an ares of 7 acres has
been reserved as area for common facilities development, The company still holds fand measuring 4.37 acres as inventaries on lease cum
sale basis.

Note No. 51
As per campany policy, investment held in Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited was revalued during 2023-24. This has resulted in
impairment of fair value from INR 7.70 per share to INR 5.30 per share teading to net 1oss on {air value changes of Rs, 204.10 Lakbs.

Note No. 52 - DUES TO SMALL SCALE INDUSTRIAL UNDERTAKINGS
‘there are no dues payvable ta Small Scale Industrial Lindertakings as defined under Industries {Development & Regulation) Act, 1951 as at

the period end.

Note No. 53 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / {HIABILITIES)

[% in Lakhs)
Partlculars Amount
beferred Tax Assets / {Liabilities)
Dpening Balance [8a7.6%)
Nel Additions {47.03)
el Deferred Tax Acseis f {Liabifities) [944,72)

118




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN ; U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 54 - CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE uys 135 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

{% in Lakhs}
Particutars Far the year ended 335t | For the year ended 315t
March 2024 htarch 2023
Gross Amount required to e spent by the company 24.86 24.73
Amount speat by the campany during the year on -
a. Construction / acquisition of assets -
h. Towarids P Cares Funds* 9,99 -
. On other purposes - Transferred to IFCESocial Foundation** - 2473

* Made provision for balance lunds Lo, Rs. 14.87 Lakh for (SR, which will betransferred to Unspent Afc.
*Contribution made o [FCI Social Foundation falls under the definition of contribulion to & related party {trust controlied by the parent
company) in relation to CSR Expenditure as per Ind AS 24,

Naote No, 55 - CHANGE IN USEFUL LIFE OF FIXED ASSETS

As per CAG recommendation, il is 1o be disclosed that during the Financial Year 2019.20, useful life of Furniture & Fixture at DL Suites
{Hospitality Division) has been changed from 10 years 10 & years resulting in depreciation rate imbacting the profit of the company by
argund Rs, 3.32 Crores,

Note No. 56 - 8alance Confirmation
The batances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payabie are subject to confirmation.

Note No. 57
Previous period figures have been regrouped / rearranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable to the current
year's presentalion.

Note No. 58

We are using an accauting software which is operated by a third party software service provider for maintaining books of accounts, There
is o foatore of Maker checker mechanism. Usor wise edit bog and audit trail is available in the software.

Mote Vo, 59
The notes referred to above from an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per schedube 1, Annexure 1 (Ratios), Annexore 2

{Deblors Ageing), Annexure 3 [Creditors Agelng) & Annexure 4 {CSR Disclosure) are integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of oven date attached

For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 5079710
Sdy- Self-
{Amrendra Kumar} [Sachikanta Mishra)
sdf- DIN: 10472659 DIN 1 02755068
LA Vivek Raheja DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
PARTNER
M. Mo, 084781 S Sebf
[Midh! Agarwai) [Pooja Vanjani)
Date © 27th April 2024 M, Na: 413217 ivt. No. : 22668
Place 1 Now Deitd CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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Anhexure-4

Corporate Social Responsibility {€SR}

Total CSR obligation for the financial year is Rs. 24,86,311/-. IFCl Infrastructure
Development Ltd spent Rs. 8,99,111/- towards PM Cares Funds on 30-03-2024 and made a
provision of Rs. 14,87,200/- towards CSR initiatives,

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year ~

Amount
Total Amount $pent for Unspent
theFinanciai Year- Provision made for unspent amount
2023.24
Amount Rs. Date of Transfer
Rs. 9,99,111/- Rs. 14,87,200/- 31-03-2024 B

IFCH Infrastructure Development Ltd spent/transfer Rs. 24,72,892/- during the financial
year 2022-23 10 iFC) Social Foundation towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year

Amount
Total Amount Spent for Unspent
theFinancial Year- Balance available to Unspent CSR Account as per Section
2022-23 135(6)
Amount Rs. Date of Transfer
Rs. 94,098/ Rs. 23,78,794/- 28-04-2023 i
LS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
To the Members of IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

This revised independent Auditor’s Report is being issued i suppression of our earlier Independent Auditor’s
Report dated 27 April'2024, at the instance of Comptroller and Auditor General {C&AG) of India, The revised
reporlis issued in view of certain moditications in Emphasis of matier, Report on other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements of Independent Audifor’s Report in terms of sub section (113 of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, Further, we confirm that these do not affect true and fair view and our opmion expressed thereon.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IFCH Infrastructure Development Limited (“the Holding
Company™) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries logether referred as “the Group™) |, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated statement of profit and Joss (including
other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equily and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the financial staiements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (“the consolidated financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2613 (“Act™) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes
in equity and its consolidated cash {lows for the vear then ended.

Emphasis of Matier

We draw atiention {o point no 49A 1o the financial statements regarding lease hold rights for 4.37 acres of
land in respect of financial city Bengaluru. The lease period for 2.37 acres of land expired on 2 November
2021 and for the balance 2 acres of land, lease period had expired on 12 October 2022, The request letter to
renew such lease agreement is submitted to KIADR and as informed 1o us, the renewal thereof is under
process till the date of signing of audit report. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Basig for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Cade of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are refevant 10 our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the consolidated {inancial statements.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.
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Our opinion on the eonsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we da not eXpress any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is lo read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is maleriatly inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the andit or otherwise appears to be materiatly misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated state of affnirs, consolidated profitoss and other comprehensive income, conselidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance willi the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safegnarding of the assets of each Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a troe and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error.

It preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
Companies included in the group are responsible for assessing each Company”s ability to continue as a going coneern,
disclosing, as applicable, matlers related o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective management Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or 10 cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but o do so.

The respective Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process of cacl
Campany.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, wheiher due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise {rom fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected (o
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an andit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticisimn
throughout the andit. We also;

» Idenlify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due o
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecling a material misstaterment
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may nvolve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant {o the andit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section F43(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financiaf controls with reference (o financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
refated disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, wheiher a material uncerlainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue 28 a going,
concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we arc required o draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclogures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 10 continue as a going concern.

* Lvaluale the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation, .

*» Obtain sufficient and appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of entities within the group
{0 express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of financials information of such entities included in consolidated financial
statements. We remain solely responsible for our opinion.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriaie to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali refationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought (o bear on our independence, and where apphicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters, We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless faw or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should net be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to ontweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

Other Matier

We did not andit the Financial Statements of Subsidiary namely M/s, IIDL. Realtors Private Limited, whose Financial
Statements as per Ind AS reflect total assets of R, 19,31,46,039/- as at 31% March’2024 and the 1otal revenue of Rs.
3,72,40,325/- net Cash Flows amounting to Rs, (3,78,79,954/-) for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
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Consalidated Financial Statements. These Financial Statements have been audited by the other auditor whose reports
have been furnished 10 us by the Management and our opinion in so far as it relates o the amounts and disciosures
meluded in respect of Subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so

Tar as it

Report
1.

3

a)

b)

e)

d)

(B)

relates 10 the aforesaid Subsidiary is hased solely on the report of other auditor,

on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Audiiors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Centraj
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matiers
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act’2013, we enclose herewith, ag per “Annexure-3»
and “Annexure-C” our report for the company on the Directions and Sub-directions respectively, issued by
the Comptrolier & Auditor General of India.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of aceount as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act.

The provision of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of disqualifications of directors are
not applicable to the Company being Government Coripany in terms of notification no. G.S.R. 463 {5y
dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs;

With respect o the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial siatements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer fo our separaie report in “Annexure 17,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 17 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and accarding
1o the explanations given o us:

i.  The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024
on its financial positions in its consolidated financial statement — refer Note 43 to the financial
statements.

ii. The Group did not have any fong-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foresecabls josses.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding company and its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2024,

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belicf, no funds have been
advanced or foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its Substdiary Companies incorporated in India to or in any
ather person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Imermediary shali;

¢ whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its Subsidiary Companies
incorporated in India Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

«  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(L) The Management has represented, that, (o the best of is knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or its Subsidiary Companies incorporated in India from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Helding Company or its Subsidiary Companies
incorporated in India shall:

¢ whether, directly or indirectly, tend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) ar
* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have heen considered reasonable and appropriatein the
circumstances, nothing has come 1o our notice that has cavsed us to believe {hat the representations
under sub-clavse (iv.) (a) and (iv.) (b) above, contain any material misstatement,

v. The Interim dividend paid by the Company during the year, v respect of the same declared for the
previous year, is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of

dividend.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks including in reliance with the audit report of the
subsidiary, the Group has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for
all refevant transactions recorded in the software excepl in case of subsidiary wherein the respective
auditor has commented that In the absence of repori/certificate we are unabie to comment on whether
audit trail feature of the said sofiware was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

(C) With respect to the matter 1o be included in the Avditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given {o us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding company and its subsidiaries companies to its directors during the current year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 10 any director is not in excess of the limit
laid down under Section 197 of the Acl. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.
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For VPGS & Co,
Chartered Accowtants
Firm Registration No. 307971

Sd/-

Vivek Raheja

Pariner

Membership No, 094781
Place: New Delhi

Date: 19 June 2024
UDIN: 2409478 1 BKAGRWEO4 ]
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Annexnre A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated f{inancial stafements of IFCI
Infrastructure Development Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

{(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requiremenis’ section of our
report of even date)

(xx1) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements, the CARO reports were issued refating to them docs not contain any
qualifications or adverse remarks.

For VPGS & Cao.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 507971C

Sd/-

Vivek Raheja

Pariner

Membership Number: 094781
UIMN: 24094781 BKAGRWE941

Place: New Delhi
Date; 19 June 2024
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Amnexure ~ B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report in terms of Directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of
the Companies Act’2013 for the financial vear 2023-24

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? §f
yes, the implcations of processing of accounting transactions outside 1T system on the integrity of the
accounts afong with the financial implications, if any, may be stated,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, all the accounting
iransactions are routed through IT system (i Tally software in Head Office and SAGE 306
ERP/HIS/ADS software in YIDL Suites) except the demand letters issucd to buyers and rental invoices
issued to tenants, Demand letters issued to buyers and rental invoices issued to tenants are usually sent
through MS-Office.

We have neither been informed nor we have conte across during the course of audit any aceounting
transactions having impact on the integrity of the aceounts along with the financial implications which
have been processed outside the ¥T system.

2, Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiverfwrite off of debts/loans/interest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability 10 repay the loan? ifyes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a govermment company,
then this direction is also applicable for statutory auditor of Lender Company).

During the year, there is no instance of any restructuring of any existing Joan or cases of waiver/write-
off of debtsfloans/interest efc. made by a lender fo the Company,

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy efc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from Central /State
Government or its agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation,

We have been informed that the Company has neither reccived nor any such funds are receivable by
the Company for specific schemes from Central/State Government or its agencies for the financial
vear 2023-24 :

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 567971C

Sdf-

Vivek Rahejn

Partner

Membership Number: 094781
UDIN: 24094781 BICAGRW 804

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Audifors® Report

Report in terms of Sub-directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section
143(5) of the Companies Act’2013 for the financial year 2023.24

L. Imvestments:

Whether the titles of ownership in respect of CGS/ SGS/ Bonds/ Debentures efc. are available in
plysical/demat form and these, in agpregate, agree with the respective amounts shown in the Company’s
books of accounts? If not, details may be staied.

The company had invested Rs. 75 Crores in Bonds jssued by IFCI Limited. The possession of these
bonds are in demat form and the same has been shown in the Company’s books of accounts under the
head of investment in asset side of the balance sheet,

2. Loans:

In respect of provisioning requirement of all restructured, rescheduled, renegotiated loan-whether a system
of periodical assessment of realizable value of securities available against all such loans is in place and
adequate provision has been created during the year? Deficiencies in this regard, if any, may be suitably
commented upon along with financial impact.

The Company has neither granted any Loans during the year nor does the Company have any such
outstanding Loans as on 31-03-2024,

For VPGS & Ca,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 507971C

Sd/-

Vivek Raheja

Partner

Membership Number; 094781
UDIN: 2409478 1BKAGRW8941

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024
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Annexure - D to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Contrals under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of (he Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential componeils of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {(“ICATI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Anditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is Lo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls aver financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Iternal Financial Controfs
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
preseribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, fo the extent appficable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Conirols and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirenients and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invalves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
contrals system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and lesting and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controf based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on (he anditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of (he
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accardance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting inchides those policies and procedures that (1) perlain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
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reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements n
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assels that could irave a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internaf financial control over finaneial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in ali material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls aver financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31%
March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole o Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Repoerting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: $07971C

Sd/-

Vivek Raheja

Partner

Membership Number: 09478
UDIN: 2409478 1BKAGRW894]

Place: New Delli
Date: 19 June 2024

134



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CiIN : U45400D1L2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Flocr, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Defhi - 110019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

[ % in Lakhs}
Particulars Note No. As at 315t March 2024 As at 31st March 20023
ASSETS
1. Mon - Current Assets .
a. Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets 2 15,276.83 15,609.68
b. tnvestment property 3 758.79 1,483.00
c. Goodwill 4 2,817.94 2,827.94
d. Other intangible Assets 5 223 20.53
o, Financial Assets . .
. Hvestments 6 8,0450.73 10,254,958
H, Loans 7 - -
jil. Dthers ] 1,997.72 2.484.51
31,010.24 32,760.64
2, Cutrent Assets
a. Inventories 9 5,966.28 7,145.77
br. Financial Assets . .
i. Trade Recoivables 15 106.14 23553
i, Cash and cash cquivalents i 5,108.77 5,430.94
iit, Bank Balance other than {ii} above 12 707 6,386,837
iv. Loans 13 . -
v, Others 14 1,575.54 1,009.23
. Current Tax Assels (Net) 13 1,109.53 1,055.55
o. Other Current Assets i6 372.54 355,79
22,960.86 2260837
TOTAL ASSETS 53,971.10 5%,370.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
a. Eguily Share Capitat iz 42,708.92 A2,730%.92
b, Other Equity ig 8,417.828 9,778.03
51,127.80 51.487.56
2. Non - Current Habilities
&. Financial Liabilities
i, Boreowings 19 - -
it. Othet Financial Liabilities A 64,00 SE.LH
. Provisions 21 471.14 503.83
c. Deferred Tax Liatilities (Net) 22 1,012.68 aG2.50
d. Other Mon - Current, Liabilities 23 - 3.55
1,547.83 1,528.56
3, Current liabilities
a, Financial Liabilities
i. Trade Payables 24 141.58 130,56
ii. Dther Financial Liabitities 25 3782 A01.62
b. Gther Current Liabilities 26 766.00 B10.76
. Frovisions 27 9.60 21.01
1,245.45 1,353.89
TOTAL EGUITY AND LIABILITIES 53,871,310 55,370.41

Susimary of Significant Accounting Policies and Qther Explanatory information in Notas 11058

As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Ca,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRM: 507871C

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Self- 5d/-

sdf-
CA Vivek Haheja
PARTNER
I, No, 094781

Drate @ 27th April 2024
Place : New Delhi

{Amrendra Kurmar}
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Sef-
{MidhE Agarwal)
M. No: 413217
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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{Sachikanta Mishra)
DIk : 02755068
BIRCCTOR

sdf-
tPanja Vanjani}
i, No. 1 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY



IFCHNFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CiN : U45400D12007G01169232

Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 210 019 {IN)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended 31st March 2024

136

{Z in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. For the year ended 31st {For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
CONTINUHNG OPERATIONS
Income
Revenue from Operations 28 2,085.74 2,339.84
Other income L] 2,146.41 1,988.06
Total Income [A) 4,202.1% 1,327.85
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 30 317.07 4014.5%
Employee benefit expenses 31 615.97 5499.38
Finance Casts 32 6.34 7.890
Met boss on Fair Value changes 33 204.10 -
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 24 321.08 357.03
Other Expenses 35 1,146,972 985,13
Total Expenses (B} 261048 2,404.02
Profit f {Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A - B) 1,590.67 1,923.87
Exceplional ltems 36A - [63.24)
profit f {Loss) before tax 1,590.67 1,860.64
Less: Tax Cxpense
1, Current Tax 39 366.18 293,88
2. Deferred Tax 52 45.02 97.81
3. MAT Credit Entitlement - {281.83)
4. Income Tax for Earlier Years 39 40,12 7.37
Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing operations, net of tax 1,135.34 1,743,471
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
profit / {Loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax} - -
PROFIT f (LOSS) FOR THE PERICD (C) 1,135.34 1,743.41
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A1 dtems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 36
a. Acturial Gain f Loss 4,30 {5.95}
ii. income tax relating to itemns that will not to be reclassified to
Less: profit or loss 117 {1.65)
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax {D) 2.02 {4.29)
TOTAL COMPRERENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD {C + [)) 1,138.57 1,739.12
Earning per equity share (for continuing and discontinuing operations) 37
1. Basic {in Rs.) o027 041
2. Diluted {in s} .27 a1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 116 59
As per our report of even date attached
Far VPGS & Co, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 507971C
Shf- Sdf-
{Amrendra Kumar) {Sachikanta Mishra)
Sdf- DIk: 10472659 DIN - 02755068
Ca Vivek Rahela MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
PARTNER
M. No. 094731
Sdf- Sd/-
{Nidhi Agarwal) {Pacia Vanjani)
Date : 27th April 2024 i, No: 413317 M. Mo, 22668
Place : New Dethi CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400D1L2007G01169232
Repd. Office - 7th Floar, IFCI Tower, 51 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 130 019 (IN)

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March 2024
1% In Laktes}

Partlcdlars For the year ended 315t {For the year ended 3ict Masch
Wiarch 2024 2033
CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVIEIES e
Tatal Cernprehenslve income before Inceme Tax fram
Centlauing Operations 155487 15T ED
Disterntinuing Cperations . .
Fraflt betarte tncome Tox acluding dlicontinued operations LAG87 13569
Adfistenents For
Depreciation angd Amortizathor Expense 32108 35703
Other Comprehenihie hesime [4.20] Iag
nterest tecome classified as investng Cash Flows 1179.02) (3,641 .45)
Incame brom | Property elaseliod 3 g Cach Flews - .
Cividend income clasiilied as Financing Cash Flows - -
Ko« Cash Intetest Intome i1.13) [7.50)
Ken - Cash Finpace Costs 534 750
Kan - Cash Deferred dheome . (2#1.59}
HetGain f Lost on fale value chanpes 20414 .
Qperating frolht betore working capltal changes L AEAEDY 29513
Change in opersting assets and liabilitles, net of effects from puschase of
centrodled entities and sale of subsidlarics :
[rezreate f {necease} ; Finantial Assets [CELN. 1) 1153300
Dreceease [ [increase} : Inventorizs 17250 IEAT
Deccease f [inceepsel : Current Tax Assets [53.47) {124,770
Decresst § {iozrease] | Other Current Assets {16.74) W7E
Eherpase f{Decrease] : financtal Liabilities 13a0 152654}
Increaze / {Decrease) : Feovistans {aa.24) 775
Fncrease f{Cecrease) : Other Cureent Lahilities {48,21) 415
Cash Generated from Operations 151285 136,65
Incame Tawes Paid {405.52) [12.95}
et Cash inftow £ [putliow]) from Operating ActivRties [A) 110731 123,70
LASH FLOW EROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
inerest income from Depoaits & Bonds 17962 102145
Bank depaslts with maturly over 3 months but lesc than L mambs {1,335.20] 264155
Bank deposits waith maturity aver 12 montks {1513.21) 1355400
Furchese of Propeny, Flant & Equipmnnt {onE4] (20,10
Purchase of Intengithe Assety {o.5d) .
urchase / Malurily of Tax Free Bond 200215 -
Kental Inearae from tnvestemont Propensy - -
Sale ef Property, Flant & Equiprent FanOT iTDE
Investment in SAGE fund . 130,003
Net Cash inflow £ locifiow) fram tnvesting Activithes {8) 59,05 1,598 37
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
toletien reldend roebed .
Leerlen Cividerd Paid (498531
Drwrdend Distrlbation Tax Paid -
Buy-back of Equity Shares -
Premlym padd on buy-bagk of Equily Skarey -
Taw paid e buy-back of Lquity Shares -
Repayment of 9.7% Non-Convertible fiands - -
Flnance Costs M
et Cash inflow £ [ootow] fiam Finandng Acivities (£} {2,4598.53)
Mol Inzrease in Crsho and Cath Equivalents (A B+C §1,122.17) I 71557
Casti and Cash Egubvalents at the Beginning of the yos 0a3).94 3,730,596
Fash ?rfd_mmvalc rls 1 the zg of the yeor (D} Sg’g__ﬂ__._?? 6,430.94
Recanicllation of Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1he end of the year
Lotk on btand LB 114
Cheques { Drafts on Hand . -
Hpierces in Cusrent f Savings Accaunts with Fanks E3.7% R H
Haianees [n Depesit Avcounts with maturity [+55 than 2 months 507338 b,350.24
Total Cost and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 510877 &,q30.499
st of (), shgaliicant cash and cath equivalent balances kefd by the entity that
ara not avallable for use -
Hon Cash FInandag and tevestlop Activities o.7e FEINL]
Surnmary of Significamt Accounting Policles and Other Explanatary Infarmation in Notes 1859
As per 0w report of evea date attached
For YRGS & Lo, FOHR ANE O BYHALR OF THE ROARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FHR: 5476710
Seif- sdf
[Amrendrs Kumar} {Rachixantm Mlshra}
s/ DN 10472658 Gy ¢ G2TEE0GE
LA Vivek Rahie]s MARAGING DIRECTOR GIRECTOR
PARTNER
M. Mo, 054781
- oy
{rHdhT Agarwath {Fon]a Vanjanl}
Date : 37th Aprll 2024 B2, He: q13317 RA. Moo 276D
Flace : New Dell CHIEF FIMANCIAL OFFIER COMPANY SECRETARY
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A EQUITY SHARE CARITAL

IFCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN : U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi- 110 019 {IN)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 315t March 2024

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of the

reporting nerdod

Bafanee a1 ot 315t March, 2022
Balance as at 31t Margh, 2024

Share Capltal issuod
during the year

Share Capital redeemed
during the year

Balance at the end of
the reporting period

42,709.92
A2,709.92

42,7102.92
42,708.92

B. OTHER EQUITY

(% 1n Lakhs}
Reserves B Surphus Qther Comprehensive income {OCY)
Farticulars Capital Redemption i Remeasuremont of Tatal
Hesorve Retained Farnings Defined Aenefit Plans Others
|Balance as at 1st Aprh 2022 6,812 93 1,195.81 30.20 - 803897
Changes in Accounting Policy / Prioe Period Errars
Profit for the period - 1,743.41 - - 1,743.41
Qriver Compeehensive fncome for the year (net of tax - {4.29) - (a9
Changes in Equity dee to Lease Extenston .
Interirn Dlvidend Faid to Equity Sharehaolders - - -
Dividead Ristribution Tax Paid . - - - .
Bakance at 31st March, 2023 681291 2,939.22 25.91 9,378,023
Chanpes in Accounting Policy / Prior Poring Erroes
Profit for the period - 1,135.34 - - 1,135.34
Cither Campretiensive Incame foc the year {(net of tax - . 3.03 .03
Changes in Equity due to Lease Extension - -
feterim Dividend Faid to £quity Shareheldors - {£.458.53) - {7,498.53)
Dividend Olstribetion Tax Paid - - - - .
Balance at 315t March, 2024 6,812,891 1,576.02 28.54 HA17.28
Summasy of Signilicant Accouating Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 1 to 59
A5 per our feport of sven date attached
For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BERALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 5079710
Sdf- Sdf-
{Arorendra Kumar} {Sachlkanta Mishra)
Sdf- DIN: 10472659 Dih © (2755068
CA Vivek Rahefa MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
PARTMNER
M. No. 094781
Saf Sdf-
{Nidhi Agarwal} {Pooia Vanjani}
Oate ; 27th Aprit 2024 M. Nor 413317 M. No. 1 22668
Place : Now Delhi CHIFF FINANCIAL OFFICER CGMPAI?IY SECRETARY
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CiN: U45400DL2007G0OI169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi~ 110 019 {IN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP INFORMATION

IFCl infrastructure Development Limited {“the Company”) is a company registered under the Companies Act, 2013
which was incorparated on Qctober 10, 2007, The Company has been primarily engaged in the aclivities relating to
Rea! Estate Project Advisory and Execution, promotion, construction and development of Commercial and Residential
Complexes and Serviced Apartments of its own as well as under joint participatory agreements with others, The
hospitality project of the company under the brand name DL Suites’, Service Apariments located at Mavyur Vihar
has commenced its commercial operations from 1st of October 2011.

i SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.1.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared by the
Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {“ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 and as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of india
under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {indian Accounting
Standards} (Amendment) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, in this regard,

Further, the consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with the indian
Accounting Standards (ind AS} including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 {the Act}.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in

these financial statements.

PRINCIPLES OFf CONSOLIDATION AND EQUITY ACCOUNTING

a. The financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated, in terms of
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS - 110} - ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’,

h. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same
reporting date as that of the parent company — IFCt Infrastructure Development {1d. i.e. vear
ended March 31, 2024.

c. Subsidiaries are all antities over which the group has cantrol. The group controls an entity when
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which controlis transferred to the
group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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12

WFCLINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: LH45400DE2007G01169232
Regd. Office ~ 7th Floor, IFCH Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

The group combines the financiai statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by fine adding
together like items of assets, labilities, equity, income and expenses. intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset, Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
balance sheet respectively.

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights, Investments in associates are accounted for using the equatv method of accounting after
initially being recognised at cost.

Interests in Joint Ventures are accounted for using the equity method {see {f} below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated batance sheet.

Equity Method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit and loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee
in other comprehensive income. Dividends recelved or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

The subsidiary company considered in the financial statements is 1IDL Realtors Private Limited
which was incorporated in India and became a subsidiary with effect from 28" December, 2010,
The company holds 100% ownership & interest in the subsidiary as on 31% March, 2024.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These consofidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR}), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in Lakhs of Rupees and
rounded off to the nearest two decimals, except where otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF MEASUREMIENT

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the following material items:
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IFCIH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 63 Nehru Place, New Delli - 110 019 {4}

+ Financial assets at FVTOCI that is measured at fair value
+ Financial instruments at FVTPL that is measured at fair value
* Net defined benefit (asset) / liability - fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit

obligation

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although, such
estimates and assumptions are made on a reasenable and prudent basis taking into account all
available information, actual resuits could differ from these estimates. The estimates ang underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the peried in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future perjods if the revision affects both current and future vears,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including any

costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management,

Property, plant and equipment held for use or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost {ess accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses. The cost includes
non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acguisition and
installation of the respective assets,

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and its
corresponding replaced assets removed / retired from active use are derecognized.

if the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost of similar new
parts / inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection component
was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried out.

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
/ amontisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

in the case of commissioned assets, deposit works / cost — plus contracts where final settiement of
bills with contractors is vet to be affected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject 1o
necessary adjustments in the vear of final settlement.
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1.5.2

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CiN: U25400DL2007G0OI169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFC! Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 018 {iN}

Spares parts, standby eguipment and servicing eguipment which meets the recognition criteria of
Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Investment properties include those portions of land and buildings that are held for jong-term rental
yields and/or for capital appreciation or for a currently indeterminate use, Investment properties
include properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment properties are stated at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated depreciation.
On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Method of Depreciation vsed is Straight Line Method and the useful life of the asset taken is 60 years.

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has considered the carrying value of investment
Properties {if any} as per previous GAAP-to be the deemed cost as per ind AS 101,

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Government licenses essential for the company’s operations and having a validity of over one year are
initially recognised at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation calculated on the basis of

remaining validity period.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation / Amortization

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method over their estimated useful life as prescribed
under Schedule Ii to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on Management assessment of useful life, if
lower than what is prescribed under the schedule. Depreciation is calcufated on pro — rata basis.
improvements are amortised over the underlying lease term on a straight line basis, Residual value in
respect of items of Property, Plant & Equipment and [nvestment Property are considered as 5% of the
cost, Property, Plant and Equipment costing less than Rs. 5000/- individually are charged to the
statement of Profit & Loss Account in the year of their purchase itself.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,
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1.5.4

1.6

1.7

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G 01169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, {FCt Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi— 110 019 {iN)

intangible Assets consisting of Computer software with indefinite period utility / user rights and having
a3 useful life lasting with that of the equipment have been capitalized with the cost of computer.
Software carrying an identifiable utility of at least five years is amortized on a straight line basis over a
period of five years from the date put into use. Software with limited edition / period utility i.e.
requiring annual revision is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year of purchase.
Government licenses are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of their validity.

Pe — Recognition .

An item of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets is de-recognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment or investment property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS
The Company has elected to continue with the carryving value of all of its Property, Plant and
Eguipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets recognised as of the transition date measured

as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date as
per ind AS 101.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantiat period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitafisation,

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON — FINANCIAL ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non ~ financial assets {other
than assets held for sale and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. if any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
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1.8

1.8

1.10

IFCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi — 110 019 {iN)

For impatrment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. The 'recoverable amount' of an asset or CGU is the greater of its vaiue in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. 'Value in use' is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent

that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised,

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets are classified as held for sale if it Is highly probabie that they will be recovered primarily through
sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets measured at the lower of thelr carrying amount and falr value less cost to sell with gains

and losses on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss, Once classified as held for sale, assets are
no longer amortised, depreciated or impaired.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost. The cost comprises price
paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost. On each reporting date, consequent upon
existence of any external or internal indication to impairment, the impairment foss shall be recognised
as difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount,

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The quantity and valuation
of inventories at the yearend is taken as certified by the management,

Inventory of real estate business comprise of -

i. Building / Residential Complex, Built-up floor space acquired / purchased for development and / or
sale / resale and other removable / disposable assets existing thereon. These are valued at lower of
cost or net realizable value wherein costs are determined by adding all considerations / costs which
are attributable to purchase / acguisition, and other expenses incurred specifically thereto,

ii. Land Bank — It consists of asset purchased by the Company that it intends to develop later on into
residential / commercial project but on which no construction has commenced. Land is initially
recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value whichever is less. However,
it is discounted to present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more than one year.
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IFCT INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400D1L2007G 01169232
Regd, Office ~ 7th Floor, {FCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019 (IN)

iti. Werk in Progress — Work-in-Progress includes construction work in progress and unsold portion of

‘Real Estate Projects. Increase / decrease in Work-in-Progress is accounted for as inmcome or

Expenditure for the year, as the case may be. Valuation of Work-in-Progress including unsold portion
of reality project is being done on basis of actual cost and overheads incurred which are directly
attributable to project, till compietion or net realizable value whichever is less,

iv. Direct Materiails, Stores and Spare Parts are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

v. Consumables including Cantering, Shuttering and Scaffolding, Loose Tools, Laboratory Equipment,
empty containers & others are valued on the basis of realizable value, based on the engineering
estimate,

Inventory of hospitality business comprises of closing balance of consumables purchased, FIFC
method is followed for ascertaining the cost price considered for valuation. Closing inventories are
valued at cost or replacement value, whichever is less, after providing for obsolescence and damage.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise Cash in hand, Balances in Bank Account, Remittance in Transit,
Cheques in hand and Pemand Deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments
{original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

LEASES (IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 116}

The company identifies tease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
fthe underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The company checks for
conditions needed to be fulfilled if the contract is to be classified as lease as under:

i Identified asset.

ii. Lessee obtains substantially all of the economic benefits

it Lessee directs the use

The Company as a Lessee

i The company recognizes assets and liabilities for all leases for a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of fow value,

il. It then recognizes a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liahility representing its obligations to make iease payments.

itl. The company measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such as
property, pfant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial habilities,

iv, The company recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease

fiabifity.
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1.12

1.13.1

1.13.2

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, {FCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi~ 110 019 {iN)

V. Lease liability = Present value of lease rentals + present value of expaected payments at the end
of lease. The lease lability wili be amortized using the effective interest rate method.

vi. tease term = pon-cancellable period + renewable period if lessee reasonably certain to
exercise.

vit, Right to use asset = Lease liability + lease payments (advance)-lease incenfives to be received

if any initial + initial direct costs + cost of dismantling / restoring etc. The asset wilt be
depreciated as per Ind AS 16 Property Plant and equipment.

The Company as a Lessor

i. The company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease,

i, A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantiaily all the risks and rewards,
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For finance leases, the company derecognizes
the underlying asset and recognizes a net investment in the lease.

it A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For operating leases, the company
continues to recognize the underlying asset.

v Any selfing profit or loss is recognized at lease commencement.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES RELATED TO CLAIMS, LITIGATION etc,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obligation,
Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost,
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or maore
uncertain future events net wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to
settfe or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, Information on contingent liability is
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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1.13.4

1.14

1.14.1

1.14.2

L1S

IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CiN: U45400DEL2007G01165232
Regd. Office ~ 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 210 019 (1N}

Arbitration Awards

Arbitration / Court’s awards along with related interest receivable / payable are, to the extent not
taken into accounts at the time of initiation, are recognized after it becomes decree. Permanent
Machinery of Arbitration, Government of India, is accounted for on finalization of award by the
appeflate authority. Interest to / from in these cases are accounted when the payment is probable
which the point is when matter is considered settled by management,

Liguidated Damages

Liquidated Damages / Compensation for defay in respect of clients/ contractors, i any, are accounted
for when payment is probable which is the point when matter is considered settled by management.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent Kability exists when there is a possible bust not probable obligation, or a present obligation

that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disctosed unless

the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits is

probable.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs
assoctated with the issuing of shares are deducted from retained earnings, net of any related income
tax benefits,

Other compenents of eguity include Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) arising from actuarial gain or
loss on re-measurement of defined beneflt Hablity and return on plan assets,

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with owners of

the parent are recorded separately within equity. Annual dividend distribution to shareholders is
recognised as a Hability in the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any
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1.16.1

1.16.2

(i)

IECI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G 01169232
Repd. Office — 7th Floor, FCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi ~ 110 019 {IN}

interim dividend paid is recoghised on approval by Board of Directors, Dividend payabie and
corregsponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{nitial Recognition and Measuremant

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than
financial assets and financiat liabilities at fair value through profit or loss} are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition,

Classifications and Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income ['FVTOCY) or FVTPL, depending on the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the Company's business model for managing the
financial assets,

Business Model Assessment

The Company makes an objective assessment of the business mode! in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level, because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

» The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

= The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company's stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized;

« The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
besiness model) and how these risks are managed,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets,
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Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principat and interest

fFor the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basie
tending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

in assessing whether the contractual cash fiows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company applies judgement and considers ail the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains any contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the said
assessment, the Company considers prepayment and extension terms, features that modify
consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of the interest rates).

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:
+ it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows,
* The contractual terms of the financizl asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest,

Subseguently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less
any impairment losses,

Financial Assets at Fair Vaiue through Other Comprehensive lncome ["FVTOCH)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI only if both of the fellowing conditions are met;
» it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets.
» The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest.

Subseguently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on said financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and do not reduce the carrying ameunt of the financial asset in the balance

sheet,
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Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss {FVTPL)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account.

investment in equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of ind AS 109 (i.e. other than equity investments in subsidiaries /
associates / joint ventures} are measured at FVTPL,

Subseguently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account, However, on initial recognition of an equity instrement that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCl. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financiat fiabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabHities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or foss or amortised cost, as appropriate and is accordingly accounted for.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liahitities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.”

Measurement Basis

Amaortised cost

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the EiR
method of discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.
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Fair Valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sel! an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a
liability reflects it non - performance risk.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of refevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in
pricing a transaction.”

1.16.10 De-recognition / Modification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

{A)
(i)

Dea-recognition of Financlal Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of & financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in fill without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a} the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially alf the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to recetve cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues 1o recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. The Company also recognise a liability
for the consideration received attributable to the Company's continuing involvement on the asset
transferrad. The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset {or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset de-recognised) and the sum of (i} the
consideration received {including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed} and (il) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractuat obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

Madifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial assef are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
modification results in de-recognition of the original financial asset and new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

if the cash flows of the modified asset are not substantiaily different, then the modification does not
result in de-recognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying
amount as a modification gain or foss in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying
amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified
financial asset by recomputing the EiR rate on the instrument,

if such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or
loss is presented topether with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest incomae.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in this case, a new financial Eability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrving amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial lability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss,

#f the modification is not accounted as derecognition, then the amortised cost of the liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the originat EIR and the resulting gainor loss is
recognised in profit or loss, Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified
financial Hiability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by
recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument.”

1,16.11 Offsetting of Financial Iastruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabiiities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the Hability simultanecuslhy.
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1.16.12 kmpairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises impairment allowances for ECL on alf the financial assets that are not
measured at FYTPL. No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit josses. They are measured as follows:

* Financia! Assets that are not credit impaired ~ as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

* Financial Assets with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired — as the present value
of all cash shortfalls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
asset,

+ Financial Assets that are credit impaired — as the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the present value of estimated cash flows

* Undrawn Loan Commitments ~ as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due o the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive with respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For financial assets at FVTOC, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI.

1.18,13 Write-off of Financial Assets

117

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the
company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that couid generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write — off. This assessment is carried out at

the individual asset level.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate, Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss,

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision matrix
method for recognition of expected foss on trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on three
years rolling average default rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on total credit risk
exposure on trade receivables and oulstanding for more than one vear at the reporting date to
determine lifetime Expected Credit Losses.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The expenses and income in foreign exchange transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing
on the date of transactions / at the forward rate, if booked, for such transaction. Assets and liabilities
held in foreign currencies and accrued income and expenditure in foreign currencies are translated
inte Indian Rupees at the rates advised by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of india {FEDAL)
prevailing towards the close of the accounting period. Gains / losses, if any, on valuation of various
assets and liabilities are taken to Statement of Profit & Loss,

REVENUE RECOGNITION

i,

Rental income from Investment Property / Flats held as inventories is recognized on a straight -
line basis over the period of lease terms.

interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the Effective Interest Rate method.
interest income from Bank Deposits is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis,

income by way of Fees for Project Advisory and Execution services is recorded on accrual basis as
per services rendered pursuant to the specific service agreements.

Revenue from the external project services is recognized based on the Cost-plus method. A fixed
mark-up percentagé is added to the cost incurred towards construction and the total is recognized
as revenue. The stage of completion is determined on the basis of work completion certificate
obtained from the engineer/ architect,

Revenue from real estate development of constructed properties is recognized based on the
"nercentage of completion method”. Sale consideration as per the legally enforceable
Agreements to Sell entered into 15 recognized as revenue based on the percentage of actual
project costs incurred to total estimated project cost, subject to following:

Actual cost incurred is not less than 25 percent of the total estimated project cost.

No significant uncertainty exists regarding receipt of consideration from the customers.
In case of overdue, on actual realization basis.

All significant risks and rewards are transferred to the customer.

=T T = -~

Project cost includes cost of land, estimated cost of construction and development of such
properties. The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed pericdically and effect of
any changes in such estimates recognized in the period such changes are determined.
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vit. Revenue from hospitality services is recognized on accrual hasis,

a. Selling price is determined on the basis of published rack rate less discount offered to

customers,
b. Income in foreign exchange: The bills for services rendered are raised in Indian Rupees.

The payment received in foreign currency against thase bills, is credited and accounted
for atthe rate / rates prevalent on the date of receipt of payment. The gains/ losses arising
out of the fluctuation in the exchange rates are accounted for on realization.

vili. Dividend income is recognized at the time the right to receipt is established,

ix, Cther items of income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when control of
respective goods or service has been transferred to customer.

X. The company shall recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts
with Custormners” as and when any such revenue instance occurs.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends and Dividend Distribution Tax thereon are recognised if and only when the same are
approved by the shareholders in the general meeting and consequently paid to the sharehoiders.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Emplovee benefits include: short — term employee benefits, post -
employment benefits and other long ~term employee benefits.

Short Term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the company during an accounting period, the company
recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service as a liability {accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid and as an
expense, Accumulated {eave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated
as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at

the reporting date.
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Defined Benefit Plans — Gratuity & lLeave Encashment

Defined benefit plans are those plans that provide guaranteed benefits to certain categories of
employees, either by way of contractual obligations or through a collective agreement. The company
operates unfunded defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each fiscal year end. The
obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in
the current costs and the fair value of any plan assets, if any is deducted,

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
vatuation using the Projected Accrued Renefit Method {same as Projected Unit Credit Method), which
recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obiigation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market vields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation resuits in
a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contribution
to the plan.

The change in defined benefit plan liability is split into changes arising out of service, interest cost and
re-measurements and the change in defined benefit plan asset is split between interest income and
re-measurements. Changes due to service cost {which is the increase of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from the employee service in the current period) and net interest
cost / income {which is the change during the period in the defined benefit fiability that arises from
the passage of time) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements of net defined
benefit Hability / (asset) which comprise of the below are recognized in other comprehensive income:
o Actuarial gains and losses;

» The return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
{iability (asset}

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

income Tax expense comprises of current tax {i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961} and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects
of temporary differences between tax base and book base). It is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.
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Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax comprises the tax payable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. it is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Minimum Alternative
Tax ("MAT’} under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as turrent tax in the
statement of profit and loss. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the company:

a) has a legaily enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s judgement, are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits wilt be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reperting date.
The measurement of deferred tax refiects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and llabititles, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities; and

b} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabifities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority,
Current and Deferred Tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively,

Mirimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period
for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set —off against the normal tax ability. MAT credit
recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the
aforesaig convincing evidence no longer exists.
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PRICR PERICD ITEMS

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for
prior peried presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, by restating the opening statement of financial position.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders
and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the vear attributable to the

shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential eguity shares outstanding during
the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive,

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two reportabie business segments namely ~ ‘Real Estate Activities'
comprising of Advisory and Execution Services, Purchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and
Development of Real Estate Projects and in ‘Hospitality’ provided through Serviced Apartments under
the brand name ‘Fraser Suites’,

ALLOCATION OF COMMON COS5TS

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow statement is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 — “Statement of
Cash Flows”. :
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CONSQUIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{% tn Lakhs}
Nete N
e Particulars As ot 3fst March 2024 A3 at 31st March 2023
PROPERTY PLANT AND ECRUIPMENT
Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance
a. tand £,228.29 £.228.29
. Buildings 10,630.46 63046
. Plant and Equipments 211419 213808
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,847.90 1B51.24
e Vehrces 7680 7690
f. OFfice Equipment 1368 1368
£ Others 12880 11854
21,040.22 21 (K720
Addlitions f {Sale] during the perlod
o Land - -
b. Buitdings - .
t. Piant ant! Equipments {r.a4} {3.89)
. Furaiferd and Fixtores {023} 12.34)
£, Wehictes - -
{. Office Eguipment . .
¢ Others 064 10,28
17.03) 2.02
Closing Balante
A, Land 6,225.29 5,228.09
b. Buiidings 10,630.46 1063046
. Plant and £quipments 2,108.74 2,114.1%
d. Furnitere and Fixtures 184767 1,847.90
e. Wehicles 76.90 16.90
{. Dffice Tguiprent 13.68 13.68
£, Others 13944 12880
2103319 21,040 2%
Accumulated Deprechation
Qpondng Salance
& Land rie 2932
I, Buslelings TL9%416 1.7E5.59
¢, Plant and Equipments 141523 1.268.52
N d. Furniture and Fistures 574541 1.745.61
Ote | ¢ venictes 70.80 69.36
No. 2 | 1 office Equipment 1294 11.43
g Otheds 10677 99,20
5, 340,54 5.008.84
fiepreciation for the period
a. tand - 305
b Bullgings 168.57 16E.57
e, Plant and Equipments 14055 14771
d. Furniture ang Fixtures 185 3.80
e, Yehicles 143 143
[ Offlce Equipment - 157
8- Mhers 3.37 10.56
21582 35169
Clasing Galance af Accurmidated Dopreclation
& Land A8 32.18
b, Buildings 212274 155416
. Plant and Lquipments 155178 141123
4. Furpiture and Fixtures 1,751.30 1,749.41
&, vehickes 72,13 TGED
{. (Hiece Eguipment 1299 12.9%
g Others 11313 109,77
56,36 £.340.55
Het Carrying Valee of Property, Plant and Equipment (A}
a. land 6,196.12 6,1496.12
b, Buifelinps E5DV.F2 BT
¢. Plant and Equipments SR4.96 0296
d. Furniture and Fidtures 96,37 fE A%
2. Vebicles 4.68 £.11
f. OHice Equipment Q.68 {68
& Cifors 1E.30 1903
TOTAL 15,376 83 15,689,48
Qut of (A) ahove, leasehold property, plant and equipment
a, Right of wse of Land on Finange Loase [5.72)
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CONSCGLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SREET

8¢ at 335t March 2024

{Tin bakhs)

Note

Particulars

As at 3st March 2024

As at 315t March 2023

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Grass Carrying Value
Cpening Balance

a. Flats & Buildings 1,876.10 1,876,10
Additlons f {Sale} during the period
a. Fats & Buidings -73L.37
Cinsing Balance
a. Flats & Buildings 1,144.73 1,876,510
Note | Accumuiated Bepreclation
Mo, 3 ] Opening Balance
a. Flats & Buildings 393.10 341.02
Depreciation for the parted
a. Fiats & Buildings -7.16 52.08
Closing Balance of Accurmitated Dapraciatlon
2. Flats & Buildings 385.94 3G3,10
Net Carrying Value of Investment Property
a. Flats & Buildings 758.70 1,483.00
% in Lakhs)
'::e Parthoutars As at 31st WMarch 2024 As at 315t March 2023
GOODWIHL
Note | Goodwilt 2,817.94 1,817.04
No. 4 2,817.94 2,817.94
{x in Lakhs)
i‘:;:e Particulars As at 315t March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Gross Carrying Value
Cpentng Balance
a. Computer Software 26.19 619
b. Litenses and Franchises 60.00 £0.00
86.19 86,19
Additions / [Sale) during the period
a. Computer Software 0.12
b, Licenses and Franchises :
Q.12 -
Closing Balance
a. Computer Software 26.31 26,19
b, ticenses and franchises £0.00 [GAREY)
86.31 BE.19
Accumidated Amortiration
Note | opening Balance
No. & |2 Computer Software 24.30 23.63
b. Licenses and Franchises 40,76 28,77
H5.656 %2.40
Amortization for the periad
a. Computer Software .40 1.27
b, Licenses and Franchises 12.062 11,99
12.42 13.2%
Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreciation
a, Computer Stftware 25.30 24.9%
b. Licenses and Franchises 52,78 40,76
78.08 65,66
Mot Carrying Value
a. Computer Soltware 1.01 1.7%
tr. Licerses and Franchises 7.22 19.24
TOTAL B8.23 20.53
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Nate .
No Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
NON - CURRENT INVESTIMIENTS
a, Investments in Equity instruments
i. Subsidiaries
it. Others
1. Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited 450.73 654.83
2. Other Entities 100,00 100.00
550,73 754.83
b. investments in Preference Shares
Note ¢. investments in Debentures / Bonds
1. IFCI Limited - Bonds 7,500.00 7,500.00
No. 6 2, IFCH Limited - Tax Free Bonds . 2,000.15
7,500.00 9,500.15
8,050,73 10,254.98
Aggregate amount of Unguoted investments 8,050.73 10,254.98
Market Value of Unguoted Investments 8,050.73 14,754.98
Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of investments 39%.70 165.60
{X in Lakhs}
Note '
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
0.
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Note | a. Security Deposits
No. 7 . -
{% in Lakhs)
r:lote Particuiars As at 31st farch 2024 As at 31st March 2023
o
GTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits 650,12 645.83
MNote | Finance Lease Receivable - -
No. 8 | Bank Deposits with maturity more than 12 months 3,347.60 1,834.68
2,897.72 2,484.51
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN ;: U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 {IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs)
Note s
No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
INVENTORIES
a. Raw Materials 9.83 6.55
Out of {a) above, goods in transit - -
9.89 6.55
b. Work - in - Progress - 1,321.33
Out of {b) above, goods in transit - -
- 1,371.23
¢. Stores and spares 7.20 8.17
Note Out of {c} above, goods in transit - -
No. 9 7.20 8.17
d. Others
i. Land 5,755.88 4,518.27
it. Land on lease cum sale basis 1,177.24 1,276.85
iii. Consumables 12.06 14.69
6,949.15 5,809.82
6,966.28 7,145.77
{% in {akhs}
I::Zfe Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
a. Secured considered good
b. Unsecured considered good
i, Due over six months 184.67 216.00
Note ii, Other Trade Recelvables 39.09 72.54
No. 10 223.76 288.54
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtiul Debts 117.61 G2.92
Net Unsecured considered good 106.14 225.62
106,14 225.62
{ in Lakhs)
’:l‘:" Particulars As at 315t March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a. Balances with Banks 33,73 78.91
83.73 7891
b. Cheques and Drafts on Hand - -
Note . Cash on Hand 1.65 1,79
MNo. 11 1.65 1.79
d. Others
i. Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 5,023.38 £,350.24
5,023.38 6,350.24
5,108.77 6,430.94
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOUDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs)}
Note B
Mo Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN THOSE ABOVE
MNote | Deposits with maturity between 3 and 12 months 7,722.07 6,386.87
No. 12 7,722.07 6,386.87
{% in Lakhs}
Note A
No Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
a. Security Deposits - -
b. Loans to related parties - -
c. Other loans
Note 1. Doubtful 4.49 0.35
No. 13 4.49 0.35
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtful Debits 4,49 0.35
Net Other Loans - -
{% in Lakhs)
I:}ote Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
.
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
a. Interest Accrued on Deposits 941.03 375.21
Note | k. interest Accrued on Bonds 534.32 £633.82
No. 14} ¢ Other Receivables .20 0.20
1,575.54 1,005,232
{® in Lakhs)
Note Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
No.
CURRENT TAX ASSETS
a. Advance Tax 211.25 235.36
Note b, Tax Deducted at Source 930,08 755.33
¢. MAT Credit Entitlerment 836.75 836.75
No. 15} o5 : provision for Tax 868.55 741.88
1,109.53 1,055.55

Mote: Provision for tax, TDS, TCS, reconciliation process is under way.
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iFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN 1 U45400D1L2007G0I169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN}

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs)
MNote s
No. Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHERS CURRENT ASSETS
a, Capital Advances - -
Note b. Advances Other than Capital Advances
Other Advances 372.54 355.79
No, 16 372.54 355.78
¢. Others - -
372.54 355.79
{% in Lakhs)
Note R
No. Particulars As at 3ist March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
EQUITY
Authorized Share Capital
100,00,00,000 (Previous year - 100,00,00,000} Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
issued Share Capital
42,70,99,243 [Previous year - 42,70,99,243)} £quity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 432,709.92 42,708.92
42,709.92 42,70%9.92
Note Subscribed Share Capital :
No. 171 42 70,99,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/ each 42,709.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,709.92
Paid Up Share Capital
42,70,99,243 [Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs,
10/- each 42,709.92 42,7089.92 |-
. 42,708.92 42,709,872
TOTAL 42,709.92 42,709,92
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IFCIHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CiN : U45400D1L2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 {IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs)

Note
No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

OTHER EQUETY

Note | Reserve and Surplus

Share application money pending allotment
Equity component of other Financial Instruments

MNo, 18| Cepital Redemption Reserve 5,812.91 6,812.91
Retalned Earnings 1,576.02 2,939.22
Other Comprehensive ncome 28.94 25.91
8,417.88 9,778.03
Note No. 18 {i}
Capital Redemption Reserve {% in Lakhs}
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 6,812.91 6,812.91
Appropristions during the year - .
Closing Batance 6,812.91 6,812.91
Note No. 18 {ii)
Retained Earnings {Xin Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2823
Opening Balance 2,939.22 1,195.81
Net Profit for the period 1,135.34 1,743.41
ltems of other comprehensive incorme recognised directly in retained earnings - -
Remeasurements of post - employement benefit obligations, net of taxes 3.03 {4.29)
tnterim Dividend paid to Equity Shareholders {2,498.53} -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - -
Closing Balance 1,576.02 2,939.22
Nate No, 18 {iii)
Other Comprehensive Income {% in Lakhs})
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 2581 3Q¢.20
Remeasurements of post - employement benefit obligations, net of taxes 3.03 {4.29)
28.84 25,81

Closing Balance
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IECIH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{Xin Lakhs)
Note
No. Particuiars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
a. Preference Shares - .
Note b. Bonds / Debentures - -
No. 19 - -
(% in Lakhs)
Note .
No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
a. Retention Money 54.00 57.66
Note ) o
b. Finance Lease Liability 0.00 1.02
No, 20 64.00 58.68
{% in Lakhs}
’;‘:E Particulars Asat3lstMarch 2024 | As at 31st March 2023
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
3. Provision for employee benefits
i. Gratuity 91.37 86.05
ii. Leave Encashment 28,31 28.81
Note 118.68 114.86
Mo, 21| b- Others
i, Provision for Expense 351.46 2BB.97
351.46 388.97
47%1.14 503.83
{% in Lakhs}
MNote Particufars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
a. Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of
i. Due to depreciation 328,52 a65.09
il. Others 791.02 704.26
Note 1,119.54 1,069.35
Nog, 22| Less:
i. Others 106.85 106.85
106.85 106.85
1,012.68 962.50
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(FCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi- 110 019 {iN}

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{%in Lakhs}

Note
No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Note a, Deferred income - 3.55
b. Others _
No. 23 B P
(% in Lakhs)
Note
No Particulars As at 31st Miarch 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES
Note a. Micro and Small enterprises 0.40 4.87
h. Others 141,19 105.63
No. 24 141.58 110.50
{% in Lakhs)
Note .
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
o.
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security Deposits Received 0.10 0.10
Note Book Overdraft - -
Creditors {or other labilities 9.10 9.10
No. 23| other Payables 369,01 392.41
378.21 401.62
{% in takhs)
NN"“’ particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
.
GTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Advances Received GR9.78 764.68
Note | b. statutory Dues 3256 12.06
No. 26| ¢ Deferred iIncome 43.66 34.02
766.00 810.76
{& in Lakhs)
Note .
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
o,
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
a. Provisions for employee benefits
I Gratuity 582 5.42
Note ii. Leave Encashiment 2.92 3.05
No. 27| others 0.92 22.54
9.66 3101
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1168232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Ngo. March 2024 March 2023
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a. Sate of Properties 53.55 169.60
h. Sale of Services 32.20 31.79
Note | © Room Rent 1,456.18 1,630.71
d. Proceeds from Restaurant 177.14 215.12
No. 28 2. Revenue from external projects 272.85 272.85
f. Other Operating Revenues 63.83 19.76
2,055.74 2,330.84
(% in Lakhs)
Note . For the year ended 31st For the year ended 315t
Particulars
No. Mtarch 2024 March 2023
OTHER INCOME
a, Interest Income
i. Earned and Accrued on Deposits 1,620,021 74615
il. Earned and Accrued on iFC1 5.7% RRE Bonds 728.00 727.50
iit. Earned and Accrued on Tax Free Bonds 167.80 167.80
iv. Others 7.13 7.50
Note 1,622.93 1,648.94
No. 29] b. Dividend Income - -
¢. Deferred Income - Land - 221.49
d. Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 122,57 -
¢, Miscellaneous fncome 100.91 117.62
223.47 339.11
2,146.41 1,988.06
{X in Lakhs}
Note Particulars for the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
No. March 2024 March 2023
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
a. Opening Stock 7,116.36 7,284.72
b, Purchases 137.84 176.23
Note 7,254.20 7,520.95
No. 301 | ccc: Closing stock 6,937.13 7,116.36
317.07 4D4.59
{% int Lakhs)
Note , For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars
No. March 2024 March 2023
EMPLOYEE BENEFIY EXPENSES
Note | & Sataries and Wages 578.57 566.28
h. Staff wellare 36.40 33.10
No. 31 £615.97 599 38
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LINHTED
CIN : U45400D1.2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs)
Note Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
No, March 2024 March 2023
FINANCE COSY
Note a, Fair Value Changes in Equity nvestments 6.34 7.80
b. Other Interest Costs - 0.10
No. 32 534 7.90
{T in Lakhs)
Note No. Particutars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
NET LO55 ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value though Profit and Loss
Note |a. On lnvestments 204,10 -
No. 33 |b. Others - -
204,10 -
{% in Lakhs)
Note . For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particuiars
No. MWiarch 2024 March 2023
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
a. Deprecistion on Tangible Assets
Note k. Property, Plant and Equipment 315.82 331.69
ii. lnvestment Property -7.16 52.08
No. 34 b. Amaortization on intangible Assets 12.42 13.25
32108 397.03
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[FCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

{% in Lakhs)
Note Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 315t
No. March 2024 March 2023
OTHER EXPENSES
a. Repairs and Maintenance
1. Building 60,27 43.88
it. Others 38.08 33.57
b. Rent Paid (including Lease Rent) 24,10 72.07
¢. Rates and Taxes 107.28 79.96
d. Travelling and Conveyances 5.59 £.33
e. Legal And Professional Expenses 64,36 25,91
f. Security Expenses 85.72 89.63
E. Auditors's Remuneration 2.97 2.70
h. insurance Charges Paid 10.55 13.29
i. Bad Debts - 8.50
. Telephone & Postage Expenses 3.98 7.52
k. Laundry & Cleaning 23.05 16.22
|. Television & Music 0.48 1.20
Note [m, Printing and Stationery 5.44 5.75
No. 35 |n. Directors Fee 2.86 3.62
o. Fuef & Gas 48.57 £1.73
p. Commission & Brokerage 140.86 135.95
g. Marketing and License 8.08 5.48
r. Advertisement and Exhibition Expenses 1.56 3.35
s. Compensation-21st Milestone Project i8.74 -
t. Vehicle Running & Maintenance 0.35 0.50
u. Electricity & Water Expenses 261.36 272.55
v. Pravision for Interest & Expenses 22.11 22.11
w. Provision for Service Tax Cenvat 36.88 -
. Provision for Doubtful Debts 56.21 24.73
y. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 24.86 14.04
z. Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 12.57
aa, Other Miscellaenous Expenses 79,94 38.64
1,146.92 995.13
[T in Lakhs}
Note particutars For the year ended 3ist For the year ended 31st
No. March 2024 Miarch 2023
JTEMS THAT WHLL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT AND LOSS
a. Acturial Gain / {Loss) 4.20 -5.85%
Note 4.20 -5.85
No. 36] Less: Tax on Above 1.17 -1.65
3.03 -4.29
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No. Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Exceptionzl Items
Liability Written Back - -
MNote No. —
36A Provision Reversal .’
GST Input Reversal - -63.24
Total . -63.24
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FCi Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (iN)

CONSQLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEETY

as gt 31st March 2024

Note No. 37 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

{% In Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particutars
March 2024 March 2023
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders {in Rs.) 1,138.37 1,739.12
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 42,70,99,243 42,70,99,243
face Value per Equity Share {in Rs.} 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share [in Rs.) 0.27 0.41
Note No. 38 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
(¥ in Lakhs}
. For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
Audit Fees 198 1.88
Certification and Other Services 0.59 0.73
Travelling and Out of Pocket expenses 0.17 0.06
TOTAL 3.14 2.77
Note No. 39 - TAX EXPENSES
{¥ In Lakhs)
i For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
Current Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 366,18 293.88
h. In respect of Previous Years 40,12 7.37
406.31 301.2%
Deferred Tax
a. in respect of Current Year 50.19 96.16
TOTAL 456.50 297.41
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{FCH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN ; U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NQTES FORMING PARY OF BALANCE SHEET

Note No, 40 - SEGMENT REPORTING

as at 3ist March 2024

The Company operates in two reportable business sepment namely ‘Real Estate Activities' compurising Advisory and Execution Services,
Purchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and Development of Real Estate Projects and in "Hospitality' comprising of Serviced
Apartments under the brand name 'HDL Suites'. Hence the segment wise disclosure as reqiired by Ind AS - 108 is as under:

{% In Lakhs)
Particulars Division Consolidated Tota}
Reat Estate Hospitality

SEGMENT REVENUE
Sales
Domestic 358.60 1,697.14 205574
Export - - -
tnter Segment Sales - - -
Other Income 2,112.54 3346 2.146.4]
Total Revenue 2,471.54 1,730.61 4,202.15
SEGMENT EXPENSES
Oporating Expenses 902,11 1,281.9% 2,284.06
Depreciation & Amortization Allocated 4.91 316.17 321.08
Qperating Profit 1,564.52 32.48 1,597.01
interest Cost Allocated 6.34 - 6.34
Profit Before Exceptional item and Tax 1,558.18 32.48 1,590,67
OTHER INFORMATION
Sepmental Assets 37,377.88 16,5493.22 53,971.10
scgmental Liabilities 37,377.88 16,593.22 %3,671.10
Excoplional items - - -

Note No, 41 - RELATEDR PARTY DISCLOSURES

I, Name of the related parties and description of refationship -

A. Enterprises having significant influence aver the company

FCI Limited - Holding Comiprany

IiGL Realtors Private Limited - Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

B. Enterptises having related party dealings with the company

langipuer Benpgal Mega Food Park Limited - investment In Eguity Shares

IFCH Factors timited - Controlied by Parent Company

IFCE VENTURE CAPITAL FUNDS LIMITED - Controlled by Parent Company

C. Key Managerial Personnel [Directors during the FY 2022 - 23 and FY 2023 - 24)

Wir. Prasoon @ cossation w.e . 15/08/2022

pAr. Sunt Kumar Bansal : cessation w.ef, 18/089/2022

hir, Sachikanta Mishra @ appointed w.e.f. 07/10/2022

Wir, Vijay Kumar Tyagi | appointed w.e.f. 26/04/2023

Wir. Debashis Gupla @ cessation w.e.f. 20/12/2023

wir, Rahul Bhave : appointed w.e i 26/12/2023

M. Vijay Kumar Deshraj @ w.e £ 02/00/2022 (MD till 18/01/2024)
tr. Amrendra Kumar ; appointed w.e.f, 18/01/2024

M. Manoj Mittal - appointed w.e.f, 15/06/2021

Wy, Venugopal K Nair : 25/08/2018
Dw. Surita Rai: 18/05/2018
dr. Wishal Pandey (CFO) @ tifl 26.05.2023

ts, Midhi dgarwal {CFO) : appointed w.ef 13.07.2023

BAs. Tannu Sharma {CS): 6l 15.09,2023

Ms. Meenakshi Mittal (C8): woef 23.10.2023 to 15.03.2024
Iis. Poofa Vanjani {C5): appointed waelf 26.03.2024
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IFCT INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN ; U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, iFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN}

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

i, Detalls of transactions with KMPs during the year

as at 3ist March 2024

{Rin Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 3ist | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
i. Witole Time Directors { CEQ / Company Secretary
a. Short term employee benefits 73 72.67
b. Other fonp term employee benefits 5,25 -
¢. Post employment benefits 4,79
d. Others [specify} - .
8380 72.67
Hi. Independent} Nominee Directors
a. Sitting Fees 286 362
b, Others {specify} 0.12 -
2.98 3.62
86,78 76.25
Note Mo, 42 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
i. interest Rate Risk Management
The Company is not exposed 1o interest rate risk because company has borrowed funds at fixed Interest rates,
ii, Break up of financial Instruments carried at falr value through Profit and Loss
(% in Lakhs)
particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 315t
Masch 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans - -
Qther Financial Assets 2,225.66 1,658.06
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES - -
Other Financial Liabilities £4.00 58.68
2,289.67 1,717.74
{il. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at amortised costs
{%in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 315t
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
investmoents 8,950.?3 10,254‘98
Tratie Receivables 106.14 735,62
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5, 10877 £,430.44
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,064.66 8,221.55
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade Payahles 141.58 11050
Other Financial Linbilitics 378.21 401,62
TOTAL 24 85510 25,645,720
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U4540001.2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, {FCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 {IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

hote No. 43 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Note No. 43 {i) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(% in Lakhs)

Particutars As at 21st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

{A} Claims apainst Company not acknowledeged as Debts -
(B} Bank Guarantees provided 2.34 2.34
{C} £stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

{i) On Capital / Revenue Account {net of advances] and not provided for
[D} Export oblipations under EPCG Licenses - -
{£} Contingent Liability towars Incorms Tax/Gstis as under -

Note No. 43 {ia) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS INCOME TAX

finL IRPL
Assessment Year %in Lakhs % in Lakhs

201213 £3.02

2013- 14 49.07 -
2014 - 15 98,73

2015- 16 74.85

2016 - 17 24.16

2017 - 18 58.60 -
2018 - 18 73.53 80.53
2018~ 20 1.34 50,59
2020 - 21 82,92 -
2021- 22 232.61 -
2022 - 23 168.15 59.82

In DL, For A, 12-13, 13-14, 14-15 and 16-17, appeal has been filed with Income tax appelate Tribunal. For AY, 15-16 and 17-18, the
cases are pending before CIT Appeals. For rest of the cases, rectification under section 154 has been filed with Income Tax Deptt. in IRFL,
For AY. 18-19, 1%-20 and 22-23, rectification has filed with Deptt.

Note No, 43 (ib} - CONTINGENT LIABILIT{ES TOWARDS GST

oL IRPL
Assessment Year § State % in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
2017 - 18 f Defhi 31.08
N7 187U, 6.81 -

For both the above cases, appeat has been fled with GST Deptt.

Note No. 43 {il}

Apainst Sanepat Land Regional Provident Fund Commissioner - 1 has ordered for the recovery of those defaulted by the eariier company,
i.e. Haryana Sheet Glass Limited {HSGL). A Writ Petition has been filed by the company before High Court of Punjsb and Haryana at
Chandigrah against the said order, The Court was of prima facie opinion that proper procedures has not been followed in assessing the
fiability. Accordingty, the impugned arder has bean quashed giving Hiberty to PF department to decide afresh after following due

pracedure. The matter Is Sub-judice.

Note No. 43 {iii)
The Company has received a notice from A1G Stamp Ghaziabad, for short payment of stamp duty amounting to Rs. 150.02 Lakhs. The
Honable high court has granted stay in favour of the company & the case is pending for the further hearing.
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{FCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Fioor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {iN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 43 (iv)

An award dated 25.01.2018 was passed by the Arbitral Tribunal in the arbitration proceedings between M/s Subir Engineering Work{s) Put
Ltd. vs. HDH directing 1104, £6 pay claimant Rs.768.00 lzkhs with interest @ 6% from 27.10.2016 against the total claim of Re.2118 lakhs
claimed by the Claimant. {The Award includes VAT amount of Rs.309.00 lakhs and security deposit of Rs.272.00 lakhs). HPH. has filed &
petition ufs 24 of The Arbitration and Concillation Act 1996 before Hon'ble Delhi High Court against this award. Further, an amount of Rs.
400.00 takhs has been deposited in the court as per the direction of Horable High Court. The matter is Sub-judice before DHC.

Note No. 43 {v)

The Company is contesting severs! matters pertaining o its project 215t Milestone Resldency at Ghazisbad belore Real Estate Regulatory
Authority/Real £state Appeliate Tribunal In two of the matters e, Dwarikesh Sugar Industries Limnited and Amit Kumar Shrivastava, an
attachment order was passed by the RERA authority against which the company has filed an appeal before REAT. Wherein as per the
diraction of the tribunal, the company has deposited an amount of Rs. 19.51 Lakhs.

Note No, 43 [vi)

The Arbitrator passed an award on 21.02.2022 observing that the Claimant has been found entitied to a total sum of Rs. 442.47 Lakhs as
against sum of Rs. Z00.561 Lakhs held recoverable by [IDU from SBTE under its Counter Claim with respeact to amount 16 be recovered from
MYs SBTL from its retention money for work done by 11DL and Rs. 100 Lakhs towards liquidated damages recoverable under the Counter
Claim of 11DL. Setting off the said amount against the amount found payahle to SBTL, SBTL shall be entitied to a sum of Rs. 141.87 Lakhs
only,

Accordingly, an award of Rs. 141.87 Lakhs in favour of SBTL in full and final settiement of all the disputes and the claims and the counter
dlaims arising from the disputes along with interest on the amount awarded in the favor of SBTL @ 9% p.a from 5.08.2019 till the date the
awarded amount is paid, passed by the Arbitrator. Further, $BTL shall also be entitled to proportionate costs of arbitration proceedings @
fts. 15 Lakhs. The same paid to SBTL on 26-07-2022. The matter Is Subjudice before DHC.

Note No. 44 - Disclosure as per indAS - 11 Construction Contracts

{i} 1LOL has constructed a campus for #DE Gurgaon at Jangipur, District - Murshidabad, West Bengal. The financials relating (o the contract

are as under:

PARTICULARS {X in Lakhs}

Contract
Contract revenue recognized during the year -
Contract expenses recognized during the year -
Recognized Profits -
Total Contract Costs {approx.) -
Amount recoverable from MDI 84.14

-Cost-plus Contract Method has been used to determine the Contract revenue recognized in the period,
-The stage of completion has been deterntined on the basis of Work Completion Certificate obtained from engineer / architect.
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN : U45400D1L2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN}

as at 31st March 2024

NOTE NO. 45 - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

{Rs. in Lacs)
Quantitative Information in respect of inventaries
Description Purchases { Sales
CURRENT YEAR
Units Amount Units Amourit
{Locations) {Lacations}

Land & Building - - - 53,55
Machinery & Equipment - - - -
Additional Cost incurred on
Existing Properties - - _
Raw Material Consumables i
and Stores - 52.67 - 177.14

PREVIOUS YEAR
Land & Building - - - 169.60
Machinery & Equipment - - - -
Additional Cost incurred on
Existing Properties - - - -
Raw Material Consumables
and Stores - 50.99 - 215.12

Opening Stock Closing Stock
CURRENT YEAR
Units Amount Units Amocunt
{Locations) {Locations)
tand & Building - 5,795.13 - £,937.13
Machinery & Equipment - - - -
Waork-in-Progresss - 1,321.23 - .
Consumables and Stores - 22,86 - 19.26
: PREVIOUS YEAR

Land & Building - 5,795.13 - 5,795.1%
Machinery & Equipment - - -
Waork-in-Progresss 1,549 59 1,321.23
Consumables ang Stores | - 35.94 - 22,85
Note:
1. Land and Buildings include units of different areas having varled description for its types / stage of construction / development, for
which it is not practical to make it individually descriptive for quantitative disclosure.
2. Consumables & Stores include various F&B, House Keeping, Diesel and Engineering related stores for which it is not practical to make
it individually descriptive for quantitative disclosure.
3. Work in progress is classified/ included in Land and huilding as there is no WIP in the company.
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FFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 018 {iN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 46 - EMIPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Note No, 46 (i} - Defined benefit plans
Brief Description: A general description of the type of Employee Benefits Plans is as foilows:

1. Earned Leave {EL) Banefit

Salary - Last drawn qualifying salary

Accrual - 33 days per year

Maximum Accumutation - 300 days

Encashment while in service - 100% of earned leave balance, subject to maximum 90 days per year

Encashment on retivement - Maximum upto 300 days or actual accuemulation, whichever is less, subject to 30 days bafance in the account of
the employee

2. Gratuity

Salary - Last drawn gqualifying salary

Accrual - 15 days salary for each completed year of service
Vesting Period - § years of service

Limit - Maximum of INR 20,00,000

Note No. 46 {ii] - The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows -
Assumptions as at March 31, 2024

5. No. Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

3DL - Corporate office

Gratulty
1. Biscount rate 7.10% 7.43%
2 Expected return on plan assets NA NA
3. Annual increase in costs MA A
4, Annual increase in salary 10.00% 160.00%

Leave Encashment
5, Discount rate 7.10% 7.43%
8, Expected return on plan assets NA NA
7. Annual increase 1n costs MA MA
8. Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00%

1IDL Suites - & unit of 11DL

Gratuity
1. Discount rate F.23% 7.38%
2. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
3. Annust increase in costs & . BA
4, Annual increase in salary 8.00% 8.00%
Leave Encashment
5. Discount rate 7.23% 7.38%
6. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
7. Annual increase in costs NA MA
8. Annual increase in salary 8.00% £.00%

Note No. 46 {iii} - The discount rate is based upan the market yield available on Government bonds at the Accounting date with s term that
malches. The salary growth takes account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor on long term basis. Expected rate of
return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, for return over the entire life of the related obligation.
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IFCIH INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LHVITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {iN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 47 - Disclosure ufs 22 of MSMED Act, 2006

i. The company has requested information from alt its vendors regarding their stotus of registration in accordance with the Micro, $mall and
Mediuim Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {"The Act"}. Out of the same, vendors who did not send any conflrmation have been taken to

be non MSME vendors, Disclosure required under Section 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006 is as under -

{%in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the Act and remaining unpaid 0.40 s

as at year end

interest due to suppliers registered under the Act and rematning unpaid as at year
end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

Interest paid other than under Section 16 of the Act to suppliers repistered under
the Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

tnterest paid under Section 16 of the Adt to suppliers registered under the Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006
for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payabte for earlier years

Note No. 48 - IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

As certified by the management of the company, non financiat assets of the company have not been impaired during the year and there is
no indication of a potentiat impairment loss, therefore the need to make an estimation of recoverable amount does not arise.

Note No. 49 - INVESTMENT PROPEATY [Ind AS 40)
{i} Amout recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss for Investment Properties

(T in Lakhs)
Pasticulars forthe year ended 315t | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Rental lncome 272.85 31.79
Maintenance & Other Reimbursements received 29.96 26.14
Direc.t operafing expenses from property generating Rentat Income {including 125.96) 7.16)
Repair & Maintenance)}
profit from Investment Property befare depreciation 272.85 50.76
Depreciation 716 {52.08)
Profit from Investment Properties 280.01 {1.32)

The rental income of Rs. 31.79 Lakhs in Y. 202223 was from various properties and not specific to the investment Property at Vasant

Vthar, which was not leased during the Year 2022-23.

(ii} Leasing Arrangements

Flat at Vasant Vihar was not leased,

For Mumbai Property - Future mtinimum lease rentals receivable under long-term operating leases of Investment Property is Rs. 2146.01

takh as compared 1o Rs. 2418.86 Lakh in previous year,
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Fioor, iFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi- 110 019 {iN)

CONSQLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(% It Laldhs}

Particutars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Within one year 283.08) 272.85
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 1,471.86 1,454.13
Later than 5 years 391.06 691,88

{3ii} Fair Value

{% in Lakhs)

Particudars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Flat at Vasant Vihar, Delhi* - 947.70
Property at Moumbai 4,774.70 4,774.70
TOTAL 4,774.70 5,722.40

* Above property was sold during the Financial year 2023-24.

Note No. 49 A
tnventory inciudes lease held rights of Financial City Bengaluru property amounting to Rs. 1177.24 iakhs for 4,37 acres of land, lease period

for 2.37 acres of land was expired on 02.11.2021 and for other 2 acres of land, fease period was expired on 12.10.2022, however the same
is extendable under clause no. 23 of the Lease cum Sale agreement entered between fIOL and KIADB. The request letter for renewal of
tease period of 50 acres land has been submitted with KIADB and renewal of the same is under process till the finalization of books of

acoounts.

Note No. 50 - ADDITICNAL DISCLOSURE UNDER PARA 53 OF IndAS 116 - LEASES

i. Additional disclosures reguired under Para 53 of Ind AS 116 are as under -
{% in Lakiys}

particulars For the year ended 315t | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 fvlarch 2023

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset - . 3.69
Interest expense on fease liabilities - 0.56
income from subleasing right-of-use assets - 0.91
Total cash outtlow for leases - 425
Adgitions to right-of-use assets - -

Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of reporting period - 1.02

ii. Right of use assets accounted is for land received from Karnataka industrial Development Board measuring a total of 50 acres, out of
which, 38.63 acres has been further sub-leased on sub-lease cum sale basis to various financial institutions, Further, an area of 7 acres has
been reserved as area {for common facilities development. The company still holds fand measuring 4,37 acres as inventories on lease cum

sale basis,
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN ; U45400DL2007G0O1169232
Regd, Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110 019 (in)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 51

As per company policy, investment held in Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited was revatued during 2022-24, This has resulted in
impairment of fair vatue from INR 7.70 per share to INR 5.30 per share leading to net loss on fair value changes of Rs. 204.10 Lakhs.

Note No. 51 A - DUES TO SMALL SCALE INDUSTRIAL UNDERTAKINGS
There are no dues payable 1o Small Scale tndusteial Undertakings as defined ender industries [Development & Regulation) Act, 1951 as at
the period end.

Note No. 52 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / {LIABILITIES}

{%in takhs)
Particulars Amount
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabifities)
Cpening Balance (962.50}
Met Additions {50.19}
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) {1,012.69)

Note No. 52 - CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE u/fs 235 OF COMPANIES ALT, 2013

{Z In Ltakhs)
Particulsrs For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Gross Amount required to be spent by the company 24,86 24.73

Amount spent by the company during the year on - .
a. Lonstruction f acquisition ol assets B
b towards P Care Fund 8.9% -
¢. On pther purposes - Transfarred to IFCI Social Foundation® -

* Made provision for Balance funds e, Rs, 14.87 Lakh for C5R,
*Contribution made to FC Social Foundation falls under the definition of contribution to a reiated party {trust controlled by the parent

company} in refation to CSR Expenditure as per Ind AS 24,

Note No. 54

Additional dislcosure persuant to Part 1l of Schedule |1l of The Companies Act, 2013 is a5 under -
{*in L.akhs)

Net Assets Le, Total Assets minus Totaf LiabHitles Share in Profit or Loss
Name of the Entity %ape of Consolidated %age of Consolidated
Net Asspts Amount Profit or Loss Amount
Indian Subsidiary
HDL Realtors Private Limited 1.96% 1,018.01 11.95% 136.00

Note Na, 55 - CHANGE IN USEFUL LIFE OF FIXED ASSETS
As per CAG recommendation, B is to be disclosed that during the Financial Year 2009-20, usoful life of Furniture & Firture af HDE Suites

{Hospitality Division} hias been changed fram 10 vears to 8 years resufling in depreciation rate impacting the profit of the company by
around Rs. 3.22 Crores,
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IFCHINFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400D1L2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, iFCi Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (iN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 56 - Balance Confirmation
The balances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payable are subject to confirmation.

Note No. 57

Pravious period figures have been regrouped / rearranged [ reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable to the corrent
year's presentation.

Note No. 58

We are using an accouting software which is operated by a third party software service provider for maintaining books of accounts. There
is a feature of Maker checker mechanism. User wise edit log and audit trail is available in the software.

Note No. 59
The notes raferred to above from an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per schedule i, Annexure 1 {Ratio), Annexure 2 (Debtors
Ageing), Annexure 3 {Creditors Ageing) & Annexure 4 {CSR Disclosure) are integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For VPGS & Co., FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 5079731C
Sd/f- Sd/-
{Amrendra Xumar) {Sachikanta Mishra)
Sd/f- ' DIN; 10472655 N @ 02755068
CA Vivek Raheja MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
PARTNER
M. No, 094781
Sd/- Sdf-
{Nighi Agarwal} {Ponja Vanjani)
Date @ 27th April 2024 M. No: 413317 M. No. : 22668
Place : New Delhi CBIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Annexure-4

Total CSR obligation for the financial year is Rs. 24,86,311/-. IFCI Infrastructure
Development Ltd spent Rs. 9,99,111/- towards PM Cares Funds on 30-03-2024 and made a
provision of Rs. 14,87,200/- towards CSR initiatives,

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year —

Total Amount Spent for
theFinancial Year-
2023-24

Amount
Unspent

Provision made for unspent amount

Amount Rs,

Date of Transfer

Rs. 9,99,111/-

Rs. 14,87,200/-

31-03-2024

IFCl Infrastructure Development Ltd spent/transfer Rs. 24,72,892/- during the financial
year 2022-23 to IFCI Social Foundation towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year -

Total Amount Spent for
theFinancial Year-
2022-23

Amount
Unspent

Balance availabie to Unspent CSR Account as per Section

135(6)

Amaount Rs.

Bate of Transfer

Rs. 94,098/

Rs. 23,78,794/-

28-04-2023







